County of Inyo
Planning Commission

%e Post Office Drawer L, Independence, CA 93526
(760) 878-0263
(760) 872-2712 FAX

inyoplanning@inyocounty.us

INYO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

Howard Lehwald First District

Caitlin (Kate) J. Morley Second District

Todd Vogel Third District (Chair)
Callie Peck Fourth District (Vicechair)
Scott Kemp Fifth District

STAFF

Cathreen Richards Planning Director

Ryan Standridge Associate Planner
Danielle Visuano Associate Planner
Cynthia Draper Assistant Planner
Michael Errante Public Works Director
Nate Greenberg County Administrator
Christian Milovich Assistant County Counsel

This meeting will be held in the Board of Supervisors Room located at 224 N. Edwards Street,
in Independence California, beginning at 10:00 a.m.

Items will be heard in the order listed on the agenda unless the Planning Commission rearranges the order, or the items are continued.
Estimated start times are indicated for each item. The times are approximate, and no item will be discussed before its listed time.

Lunch Break will be given at the Planning Commission’s convenience.

The Planning Commission Chairperson will announce when public testimony can be given for items on the Agenda. The Commission will
consider testimony on both the project and related environmental documents.

The applicant or any interested person may appeal all final decisions of the Planning Commission to the Board of Supervisors. Appeals must
be filed in writing to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors within 15 calendar days per ICC Chapter 15 [California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) Procedures] and Chapter 18 (Zoning), and 10 calendar days per ICC Chapter 16 (Subdivisions), of the action by the Planning
Commission. If an appeal is filed, there is a fee of $300.00. Appeals and accompanying fees must be delivered to the Clerk of the Board
Office at County Administrative Center Independence, California. If you challenge in court any finding, determination or decision made
pursuant to a public hearing on a matter contained in this agenda, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised
at the public hearing, or in written comrespondence delivered to the Inyo County Planning Commission at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Public Netice: In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact
the Planning Department at (760) 878-0263 (28 CFR 35.102-3.104 ADA Title IT). Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County
to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate altemnative
formatting of this agenda, please notify the Planning Department 2 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in
a reasonable alternative format (Government Code Section 54954.2).

February 28, 2024

10:00 A.M.

I

2.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

ROLL CALL - Roll Call to be taken by staff.
1




10.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - This is the opportunity for anyone in the audience to
address the Planning Commission on any planning subject that is not scheduled on the
agenda.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES — Approval of minutes from the January 24, 2024, Planning
Commission Meeting.

CODE AMENDMENT 2024-01/WELQO. Staff are proposing to amend Chapter 17.04
of the County Code with the adoption of a Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance
(WELO) to incorporate by reference the California State’s Model Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO), a state mandate, and provides additional provisions for
enforcement and penalties to ensure the County meets the objectives required by the
State’s MWELO. The WELO would allow the County to implement the mandated
State’s MWELO objectives of improving water conservation through approved
landscaping and irrigation planning. The Planning Commission will be considering
providing a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors to adopt the proposed
ordinance. The project is exempt from CEQA by the “Common Sense Rule” found in 14
CCR Section 15061(b)(3).

ZONE TEXT AMENDMENT 2024-01/SHORT-TERM RENTAL OF RESIDENTIAL
PROPERTY — ACTION ITEM AND PUBLIC HEARING

At the direction of the Board of Supervisors, staff have prepared updates to the County’s
Short-term Rental of Residential Property Ordinance. These updates include adding short-
term rental areas and caps, time limits, insurance requirements, removing outside fires as
allowed and changes to the enforcement process. A moratorium has been active on short-
term rental applications since October 25, 2022, and has been extended to end November 25,
2024, unless lifted by the Board of Supervisors. This project is Exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15301 — Existing
Facilities Class 1.

2023 ANNUAL GENERAL PLAN PROGRESS REPORT - INFORMATIONAL
Staff has prepared the County’s 2023 General Plan Annual Progress Report. This report is
required to be presented to local legislative bodies prior to being submitted to the
State. Along with this, staff will provide a review of what a General Plan is and how it is
used by local governments and more specifically, the Housing Element. This item is Exempt
from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Section 15306 - Information Collection

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS/COMMENTS
PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT

ADJORN



COUNTY OF INYO

PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES OF JANUARY 24, 2024 MEETING

COMMISSIONERS:

HOWARD LEHWALD FIRST DISTRICT Inyo County Planning Commission
CAITLIN (KATE) ]. MORLEY SECOND DISTRICT Post Office Drawer L
TODD VOGEL THIRD DISTRICT (CHAIR) Independence, CA 93526
CALLIE PEEK FOURTH DISTRICT (VICE) (760) 878-0263

SCOTT KEMP FIFTH DISTRICT (760) 872-0712 FAX
STAFF:

CATHREEN RICHARDS PLANNING DIRECTOR

CHRISTIAN MILOVICH ASSISTANT COUNTY COUNSEL

RYAN STANDRIDGE ASSOCIATE PLANNER

DANIELLE VISUANO ASSOCIATE PLANNER

CYNTHIA DRAPER ASSISTANT PLANNER

SALLY FAIRCLOTH PROJECT COORDINATOR

NATE GREENBERG COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

MIKE ERRANTE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

The Inyo County Planning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, January 24, 2024. Commissioner Vogel opened the meeting at
10:03 a.m. These minutes are to be considered for approval by the Planning Commission at their next scheduled meeting.

ITEM 1: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - All recited the Pledge of Allegiance at 10:03 a.m.

ITEM 2: ROLL CALL - Commissioners, Todd Vogel, Kate Morley, Callie Peek, Scott Kemp,
and Howard Lehwald were present.

Staff present: Cathreen Richards, Planning Director, Danielle Visuano, Associate Planner,
Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner, Sally Faircloth, Project Coordinator, and Christian
Milovich, Assistant County Counsel.

Staff absent: Nate Greenberg, County Administrator; Michael Errante, Public
Works Director.

ITEM 3: PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - This item provides the opportunity for the public to
address the Planning Commission on any planning subject that is not scheduled on the
agenda.

Chair Vogel opened and closed the Public Comment Period at 10:05 a.m.
No comments were made.

ITEM 4: NOMINATION & ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON - The Commission will accept
nominations for Chairperson for 2024 and hold an election.
Commissioner Kate Morley nominated Todd Vogel.
Commissioner Callie Peek made a second to Commissioner Vogel’s nomination.

Commissioner Todd Vogel accepted the chair nomination and began to run the meeting.

County of Inyo Page 1 Planning Commission Minutes
January 24, 2024



ITEM S:

ITEM 6:

MOTION:

ITEM 7:

County of Inyo

NOMINATION & ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRPERSON - The Commission will
accept nominations for Vice-Chairperson for 2024 and hold an election.

Commissioner Scott Kemp nominated Kate Morley for Vice-Chairperson.
Commissioner Kate Morley nominated Callie Peek
Commissioner Kemp made a second to Commissioner Peek’s nomination.

Chair Vogel asked the commissioners if all were in acceptance of Callie Peek for vice-
chair nomination. All commissioners approved.

Commissioner Callie Peek accepted the vice-chair nomination.

RENEWABLE ENERGY PERMIT-2023-01/SBC (Action Item/Public Hearing) — The
applicant, SBC Investment LLC, has applied for a Renewable Energy Permit located on
two S-acre parcels (APN’s 038-340-20 and 038-340-21) in Trona, California. This permit
would allow the applicant to construct a 2.0 megawatt (MW) commercial scale
photovoltaic solar facility. The project proposes approximately 4,625 single axis tracker
solar panels, encompassing 10-acres of mostly disturbed land. The project is a Mitigated
Negative Declaration of Environmental Impact under the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA).

Cynthia Draper, Assistant Planner, presented the staff report as well as presenting a
vicinity, site map and other pertinent pictures of the area being discussed.

Commissioners asked some clarifying questions.

Chair Vogel closed the public hearing and opened discussion with the Commissioners at
10:24 am.

Commissioner Kemp made a motion to include the approval as well as the mitigation
monitoring for Item 6 — Renewable Energy Permit -2023-01/SBC with the findings 1-7 in
conditions of approval 1-10.

Chair Vogel seconded the motion.

The Motion passed unanimously at 10:26 a.m.

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 2023/BPCSD (Action Item/Public Hearing) — The
applicant, Big Pine Community Service District, has applied for a Conditional Use Permit
located on parcel (APN: 018-090-19), in Big Pine, California. This permit would allow
the applicant to construct a new rapid infiltration basin as an expansion to the current
existing wastewater treatment facility. The project encompasses 5-acres of pre-disturbed
land to be an expansion to the existing 10.3-acres wastewater treatment facility. This
project is a Mitigated Negative Declaration pursuant to CEQA.

Danielle Visuano, Associate Planner, presented the staff report as well as presenting a slide
show for this project.

Commissioners discussed the requirement of lessee notifications and construction build
starting dates.

Page 2 Planning Commission Minutes
January 24, 2024



MOTION:

ITEM 8:

MOTION:

ITEM 9:

MOTION:

Tim Rudolph, Civil Engineer, Big Pine Community Service District, stated the lessee was
notified and made aware as required. In response to the construction build date, Mr.
Rudolph stated it would be done by the end of the year per grant requirements.

Chair Vogel opened the Public Comment Period at 10:49 a.m.

With no one wishing to comment Chair Vogel closed the public comment period at 10:49

a.m.

Commissioner Kemp made a motion to approve Item 7 — Conditional Use Permit
2023/BPCSD with the findings 1-7 in conditions of approval 1-6 with the change on number
five.

Commissioner Peek seconded the motion.

The Motion passed unanimously at 10:51 a.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES (Action Item) — Approval of the Minutes from the
October 25, 2023, meeting of the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Morley made the motion to approve the minutes. The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Scott Kemp.

The Motion passed by general consent 5-0 at 10:52 a.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES (Action Item) — Approval of the Minutes from the
November 15, 2023, meeting of the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Kemp made the motion to approve the minutes. The motion was seconded
by Commissioner Peek.

The Motion passed by general consent 5-0 at 10:54 a.m.

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT/COMMENTS

No comments made at this time.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT -

Planning Director, Cathreen Richards, said there will need to be a Planning Commission
meeting on February 28, 2024, and discussed the upcoming items regarding short term
rentals and some other items coming up for March’s agenda. She also advised the
Commissioners of two items that will be going to the Board of Supervisors. One of the items
was for an appeal for the 2023-02/ Barker Solar project which will be going to the board on
February 6™ and the other appeal was for the Short-Term Rental permit 2021-06/Collins for
which the revocation was upheld will be going to the Board of Supervisors on February 20™.

ADJOURNMENT

County of Inyo

Chair Vogel adjourned the meeting at 10:55 a.m.

Page 3 Planning Commission Minutes
January 24, 2024



Prepared by:
Sally Faircloth
Planning Department

County of Inyo Page 4 Planning Commission Minutes
January 24, 2024



Planning Department Phone: (760) 878-0263

168 North Edwards Street E-Mail: inyoplanning@inyocounty.us
Post Office Drawer L

Independence, California 93526

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5 (Public Hearing and Action)

PLANNING COMMISSION

MEETING DATE: February 28, 2024

SUBJECT: Code Amendment No. 2024-01/ Water Efficient

Landscape Ordinance.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Staff has drafted a proposed code amendment to add Chapter 17.04 — Water Efficient Landscape
Ordinance to the Inyo County Code. This proposed code amendment will incorporate the State’s
Model Efficient Water Landscape Ordinance in its entirety by reference for state mandated
implementation, however, it also includes the addition of enforcement and penalty provisions.

PROJECT INFORMATION

Supervisory District: Countywide

Project Applicant: Inyo County
Property Owner: Multiple/Countywide
Site Address/ Multiple/Countywide
Community: Multiple/Countywide
A.P.N. Multiple/Countywide
General Plan: Multiple/Countywide
Zoning: Multiple/Countywide

Recommended Actions:
1. Conduct a public hearing regarding Code Amendment
No. 2024-01/Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.
and,
2. Adopt a Resolution recommending that the Board of
Supervisors approve Code Amendment No. 2024-



01/Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance and certify that
it is Exempt from CEQA.

Project Planner: Danielle Visuafio, Associate Planner.

BACKGROUND
1. State Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELOQO) Purpose

MWELO is a state mandated regulation designed by the State of California to promote water
conservation and efficiency with a focus of preventing water from being wasted on irrigated
landscapes. It provides a structure for planning, designing, installing, maintaining and managing
landscapes for new construction and rehabilitation projects with a goal to preserve adequate
supplies of water for future use. Essentially, MWELO is a water budget tool with lists of required
practices. Since the State’s MWELQ is a mandate, none of its provisions can be ignored or altered
below the minimum or foundational requirements. Local agencies can only add to MWELO to
make it stricter in application with the adoption of a local water efficient landscape ordinance.

2. State MWELO Legislative History

The background of MWELO begins in 1990 with the creation of the Water Conservation in
Landscaping Act (Act) under Assembly Bill (AB) 325. This bill required the Department of Water
Resources (DWR) to develop a MWELO. The MWELO became effective on January 1, 1993
requiring all local agencies to adopt a water efficient landscape ordinance unless the local agency
could provide findings that it was unnecessary. No evidence of any findings making MWELO an
unnecessary application within Inyo County have been identified.

The 1993 enactment was followed by the creation a task force in 2004 to evaluate and recommend
improving the efficiency of water use in irrigated landscapes pursuant to the requirement of AB
2717. In 2006, DWR was required to update the MWELO reflecting the recommendations of the
task force and public comment pursuant to AB 1881. MWELO was then updated and went into
effect January 1, 2010 requiring all local agencies to adopt the State’s MWELO or a locally
modified ordinance at least as effective in conserving water as MWELOQ, or else the State’s
MWELO applied by default. This adoption language is also codified in Government Code section
65595(c)(1). Asof January 1, 2010, no State MWELO or a local modified MWELO was approved
by the Board of Supervisors for Inyo County resulting in the State’s MWELQ applying to Inyo
County by default.

MWELO was again updated on April 1, 2015 consistent with Executive Order No. B-29-15 stating
that after December 1, 2015 the ordinance shall apply to new, rehabilitated and existing
landscaping as detailed in Section 490.1 of Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California Code
of Regulations. As of December 1, 2015 no State MWELO or a local modified MWELO was
approved by the Board of Supervisors for Inyo County. Local jurisdictions were still required to
follow state law in the absence of a local ordinance during this time.



In September 2016, Senate Bill (SB) 1383 was passed to address reducing organic waste and
landfill operations. The California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery
(CalRecycle) adopted regulation 14 CCR section 18989.2 in 2020 to implement the requirements
of SB 1383. This regulation requires the County to adopt an ordinance involving compliance with
MWELQO sections 492.6(2)(3)(B), (C), (D), and (G), as amended on September 15, 2015. This
regulation requires compliance with a portion of the overall MWELO Landscape Desing Plan
requirements with a specific focus on soil preparation and mulch standards.

From the inception of the enactment of the State’s MWELO through the present, Inyo County has
not adopted the State’s MWELO or a local modified MWELQ. As a result, the State’s MWELO
is in effect in Inyo County by default. Although the County is operating under State’s MWELO
by default, pursuant to Government Code Section 65595(c)(1) local agencies are authorized to
create a local water efficient landscape ordinance (WELO) that is at least as effective in conserving
water as the updated State’s MWELO.

3. State MWELO Project Review Process

The State’s MWELO is triggered and applicable to any single-family or multi-family residential,
public, institutional, or commercial project that requires a permit, plan review, or plan check and
meets one of these area thresholds: 1) a new construction project with a total landscape area 500
square feet or greater; or 2) a rehabilitation of existing landscape with a total landscape area
2,500 square feet or greater.

Once MWELO is triggered there is one of two processes a landscape application can be
reviewed: the prescriptive pathway; or the performance pathway.

Prescriptive Pathway

The prescriptive pathway is the least restrictive/streamlined approach and is available as a
compliance option for projects under 2500 square feet. This prescriptive review includes
standards such as incorporating compost, limiting plant water use, adding mulch, limiting turf
area, and irrigation system requirements.

Performance Pathway

Unlike the less restrictive review prescriptive review process for projects under 2500 square feet,
the performance pathway applies to landscape projects 2500 square feet or greater. The
performance pathway is much more complex. It not only includes the requirements found under
the less restrictive prescriptive pathway, it also has additional requirements that include a water
budget/calculator table, a soil management report, an irrigation design plan, a hydrozone plan
and a grading design plan.

4. State MWELO Compliance



The State’s MWELO requires verification of compliance with the use of signatures and a
certificate of completion package.

Applicant Submission Signature Verifications

One required verifying signature of compliance is required to be provided by the applicant as
part of the documentation submission package (the application) which states “I agree to comply
with the requirements of the water efficient landscape ordinance and submit a complete
Landscape Documentation Package.” Another verifying signature of compliance is to be
provided by either the signer of the landscape design plan, the signer of the irrigation design
plan, the licensed landscape contractor, or an unlicensed individual (only for single-family
residential projects) stating: “I have complied with the criteria of the ordinance and applied them
for the efficient use of water in the landscape design plan.” Essentially, at the beginning of the
process with landscape plan review there is certification that MWELQ will be complied with by
signature of the applicant and the landscape plan designer (or other authorized individual). This
certification is reviewed during the plan review process.

Applicant Submission of Certificate of Completion Package

The second type of verification of compliance is based on the certificate of completion package
once the project has been installed, and inspected if inspection is necessary. There must be
certification by either the signer of the landscape design plan, the signer of the irrigation design
plan, or the licensed landscape contractor that the landscape project has been installed per the
approved Landscape Documentation Package. Under the complex performance pathway,
certificate of completion packages are to be provided to the Planning Department at the
completion of the landscaping inspection. Under the less restrictive prescriptive pathway,
certificate of completion packages are to be provided directly to the owner of the project without
any review or approval by the Planning Department, or any other County department.

Inyo County Compliance Requirements

Under the State’s MWELO requirements, Inyo County is required to implement and enforce
MWELQO, and provide annual reporting. Staff has recently been implementing and attempting to
enforce the requirements of MWELO with the delay in implementation being having adequate
staff to address these measures. Although implementation and enforcement has only recently
been pursued, staff has been providing the required annual reporting since 2015.

With the current implementation of MWELO, staff have identified problematic issues in
implementing MWELO that are likely to lead to the County’s noncompliance with MWELO.
These issues are related to the lack of adequate enforcement measures, a matter which is
discussed in the below Analysis section.



ANALYSIS
1. Concerns

Under the current State MWELO process, the Planning Department only reviews and approves
certificate of completion packages for the MWELO performance pathway, the complex
application process, and that is only if the applicant follows the requirements to submit the
certificate of completion package for review and approval. Prior to landscape
installation/construction, once landscape plans are approved there is no guarantee an applicant
will follow the approved plans or even provide a certificate of completion package to the
Planning Department.

There is no Planning Department certificate of completion package review required for the
prescriptive less restrictive pathway. The applicant only needs to provide the owner with the
completion package. Under this process, there is no guarantee an applicant will follow the
approved landscape plans, and there is no guarantee the applicant will provide a certificate of
completion package to an owner as required under the State’s MWELO law.

Basically, the State’s MWELO does not require enough specific action or timing for submission
of certificate of completion packages under either of the landscape review pathways. As a result,
this leaves both the required performance and prescriptive pathways with little to no oversight
and no enforcement of actual compliance as required under MWELOQ. Applicants may submit
certificate of completion packages post construction/installation which could very well end up
being after the certificate of occupancy has been issued. Once a certificate of occupancy is
issued, the Planning Department is left without any ability, influence or power to require
landscape inspection or the correction of landscaping that is not compliant with the State’s
MWELO. The results are in contradiction to the following State’s MWELO requirements:

e The local agency is responsible for the enforcement of MWELQO which is not limited to
approval of a permit as required under Section 491(00), stating that the “local agency ... is
responsible for adopting and implementing the ordinance ... [and] responsible for the
enforcement of this ordinance...”

e “Local agencies shall report on implementation and enforcement ... [and] describe
enforcement measures.” (Section 495(a)(10))

e MWELO shall apply to all of the landscapes listed in Section 490.1(a) discussing new
construction, rehabilitated landscape projects, existing landscapes and cemeteries.

In the research and training conducted by staff, it has been determined that requiring submission
of a landscape certificate of completion package for review and approval prior to the issuance of
certificate of occupancy reinforces that landscape project comply with the requirements of
MWELO. This would be required under both the performance and prescriptive pathways. The
requirement of review and approval of a certificate of completion package, including an inspection
if required, prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy is not included in the State’s



MWELO. To compound the problems with enforcement, there are no specific penalties allowed
under the State's MWELO.

2. Proposed Solution

The State has provided options for local agencies to build in enforcement and penalties. Pursuant
to Government Code Section 65595(c), a local agency shall adopt the State’s MWELO or local
WELO that is at least as effective in conserving water as the State’s MWELO, and a pursuant to
section 492.2 of MWELO a local agency may establish and administer penalties to the project
applicant for non-compliance with the ordinance to the extent permitted by law.

Staff is proposing the adoption of the proposed WELO code amendment for incorporating the
State’s MWELO by reference and adding enforcement measures and penalties. The proposed
enforcement measure would require an applicant to submit a certificate of completion package,
under both the prescriptive and performance pathways, for review and approval prior to the
issuance of a certificate of occupancy from the Building and Safety Department. The proposed
penalties would allow staff to penalize applicants primarily by not granting certificates of
occupancy for non-compliance with the WELO. These proposed new local additions to the State’s
MWELO would make the County’s local WELO more effective than the State’s MWELO in
gaining compliance.

Planning staff recommend the landscape application review processes remain the same as the
State’s MWELO prescriptive and performance pathways and to be incorporated by reference into
the proposed Inyo County WELO.

FINDINGS
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

The proposed code amendment to adopt and incorporate MWELO by reference is exempt from
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because the ordinance adoption is ministerial
in that it is required by State regulation and is therefore not a “project” pursuant to CEQA. The
proposed code amendment is also covered by the “common sense” rule under California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, section 15061(b)(3). Under the common sense rule exemption, projects
which have no potential for causing a significant effect on the environment are exempt. This
proposed amendment has no possibility of having a significant effect on the environment.

General Plan Consistency

The General Plan has a goal and policy that reflect a strong desire to adopt regulations that further
water conservation efforts. The following goal and policy from the General Plan align with the
adoption of the proposed WELO:

A. Goal PSU-3 To ensure that there will be safe and reliable water supply sufficient to meet
the future needs of the County.



B. Policy PSU-3.1 Efficient Water Use. The County shall promote efficient water use and
reduced water demand by:

i.  Requiring water-conserving design and equipment in new construction;
ii.  Encouraging water-conserving landscaping and other conservation measures;
ili. Encouraging the retrofitting of existing development with water-conserving
devices;

iv.  Providing public education programs;

v.  Distributing outdoor lawn watering guidelines;

vi.  Promoting water audit and leak detection programs; and
vii.  Enforcing water conservation programs.

The Inyo County goal and policy are consistent with the requirements under the State MWELO in
that they encourage water conservation and efficient use of water through landscaping. These
County objectives will be supported by the adoption of a WELO code amendment and as a result
will be consistent with the County’s General Plan.

Zoning Ordinance Consistency

None of the proposed changes are in conflict with the County’s zoning code. The code amendment
is being proposed to implement and bring the County code into compliance with the State’s
MWELO mandate. The adoption of a local WELO will not affect the intent of Title 18 to direct
certain types of land uses in specific areas of the County.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission make certain findings and adopt the
Resolution recommending the Board of Supervisors adopt Code Amendment No. 2024-01/Water
Efficient Landscape Ordinance.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Ordinance
2. Resolution

REFERENCE
L. The State of California’s Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance can be found at:

https://www.inyocounty.us/services/planning-department/current-projects under Code
Amendment 2024-01/Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE TO
ADOPT THE CALIFORNIA WATER-EFFICIENT LANDSCAPING ORDINANCE
PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA WATER CONSERVATION
IN LANDSCAPING ACT

WHEREAS, in 1990 the State of California adopted the Water Conservation in
Landscaping Act, codified at sections 65590 et seq. of the Government Code, which required the
State Department of Water Resources (DWR) to adopt a model water efficient landscape
ordinance (MWELO) to improve state water conservation efforts by reducing the waste
associated with outdoor landscaping irrigation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the State’s MWELO adopted by DWR would take
effect and be enforced by any local agency that did not adopt its own model water efficient
landscape ordinance (or findings that such ordinance was unnecessary) by January 1, 1993; and

WHEREAS, in 2006 the State repealed the Water Conservation in Landscaping Act and
adopted a new Water Conservation in Landscaping Act (Act), codified at Government Code
sections 65591 et seq. The new Act required DWR to update the previously adopted MWELO to
include new provisions for more extensive water-efficient landscaping, plant and soil selection,
and irrigation considerations; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 65595, the State’s updated MWELO
would take effect and be enforced by any local jurisdiction that did not adopt its own model
water efficient landscape ordinance by January 1, 2010; and

WHEREAS, in 2015 Executive Order No. B-29-15 directed DWR to again update the
State’s MWELO to extend its application to new, rehabilitated, and existing landscaping as
detailed in Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California Code of Regulations, and pursuant
to Government Code section 65596.5, DWR is required to update its MWELO at least every
three years; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 14 CCR section 18989.2, a “jurisdiction shall adopt an ordinance
or other enforceable requirement that requires compliance with Sections 492.6(a)(3)(B), (C), (D)
and (G) of the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance ... as amended September 15,
2015.”; and

WHEREAS, since 1993, the State’s MWELO has applied to Inyo County by default as
the County has not previously formally adopted the State’s MWELO or a local water efficient
landscape ordinance; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 65595, a local government may
adopt a water efficient landscape ordinance to implement the State MWELO requirements; and



WHEREAS, the purpose of a water efficient landscaping ordinance is to promote the
conservation and efficient use of water, and prevent its waste, while recognizing the values and
benefits of landscapes as essential to the quality of life in California; and

WHEREAS, incorporating the State MWELO by reference into the County’s water
efficient landscape ordinance will ensure the County remains in compliance with state
regulations as they may be amended from time to time, and will improve clarity for County
residents and businesses regarding the applicable water efficient landscaping requirements; and

WHEREAS, staff now recommends Inyo County amend Title 17 of the Inyo County
Code to adopt the State MWELO and additional requirements specific to Inyo County; and

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2024 the Inyo County Planning Commission held a duly
noticed public hearing on the adoption of the proposed ordinance and recommended it for
adoption by the Board via Resolution XXXXX.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo affirms and adopts
the findings of the Inyo County Planning Commission pursuant to Resolution number XXXX
and based on the evidence before it, independently FINDS and DETERMINES, for the reasons
set forth below and elsewhere in the record as follows:

SECTION 1. The recitals above are incorporated herein as findings.

SECTION II. Title 17 of the Inyo County Code is hereby amended to read as follows:
Title 17 - WATER AND LANDSCAPE EFFICIENCY
Chapter 17.04 WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE ORDINANCE

17.04.010 Purpose and Intent.

The purpose of this Chapter is to ensure the design, construction, installation, and maintenance
of landscapes within Inyo County meet the requirements of the California Model Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinance as out lined in Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California Code of
Regulations and Government Code Section 65595.

17.04.020 Adoption of the California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance.

A. The California Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance adopted by the California
Department of Water Resources and as set forth in Chapter 2.7 of Division 2, Title 23, of
the California Code of Regulations, (the “MWELO”), and as may be amended from time
to time, is hereby adopted and incorporated into this Title by reference as though it were
fully set forth herein. In addition to those requirements set forth in the MWELO, an
applicant must meet the requirements of this Chapter.



B. At least one copy of the MWELO is on file with the Inyo County Clerk’s Office.

17.04.030 Enforcement.

A. No building permit shall be issued unless the statement of compliance required by Title
23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California Code of Regulations has been included on
the final landscape design plan submitted for plan check approval.

B. No building permit shall be given a final landscape inspection or issued any certificate of
occupancy until the Planning Director receives and approves the Certificate of
Completion as required by Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California Code of
Regulations.

17.04.40 Violations.

A. It is unlawful for any person to remove or cause removal of water-conserving irrigation
or equipment contrary to the provisions of this Chapter.

B. It is unlawful for any person to violate any provision or to fail to comply with any of the
requirements of this Chapter. Any person violating any provision of this Chapter or
failing to comply with any of its requirements is guilty of a misdemeanor.

C. This Chapter may be enforced by any remedy allowed under this code, including Chapter
22, and by any other remedy allowed by law.

SECTION III. Environmental Determination. The proposed code amendment to adopt
and incorporate MWELO by reference is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) because the ordinance adoption is ministerial in that it is required by State regulation
and is therefore not a “project” pursuant to CEQA. The proposed code amendment is also
covered by the “common sense” rule under California Code of Regulations, Title 14, section
15061(b)(3). Under the common sense rule exemption, projects which have no potential for
causing a significant effect on the environment are exempt. This proposed amendment has no
possibility of having a significant effect on the environment.

SECTION V. Severability. If any provision or clause of this ordinance or the
application thereof to any person or circumstances is held to be unconstitutional or otherwise
invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect other provision or
clauses or application of this ordinance which can be implemented without the invalid provision,
clause or application; and to this end, the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be
severable.



SECTION V. This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from the date of its
adoption and final passage, which appears immediately below. The Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors shall post this ordinance and also publish the ordinance in the manner prescribed by
Government Code Section 25124 no later than fifteen (15) days after the date of its adoption and
final passage. If the Clerk fails to publish this ordinance within said fifteen (15) day-period, then
the ordinance shall not take effect until thirty (30) days after the date of publication.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this day of , 2024, by the following
vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Matt Kingsley, Chair
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Nate Greenberg, Clerk of the Board

Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF INYO,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
FIND THE PROPOSED PROJECT EXEMPT FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS
WITH RESPECT TO AND APPROVE ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE
INYO COUNTY CODE TO ADOPT THE CALIFORNIA WATER-EFFICIENT
LANDSCAPING ORDINANCE PURSUANT TO STATE LAW

WHEREAS, in 1990 the State of California adopted the Water Conservation in
Landscaping Act, codified at sections 65590 et seq. of the Government Code, which required the
State Department of Water Resources (DWR) to adopt a model water efficient landscape ordinance
(MWELO) to improve state water conservation efforts by reducing the waste associated with
outdoor landscaping irrigation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the State’s MWELO adopted by DWR would take effect
and be enforced by any local agency that did not adopt its own model water efficient landscape
ordinance (or findings that such ordinance was unnecessary) by January 1, 1993; and

WHEREAS, in 2006 the State repealed the Water Conservation in Landscaping Act and
adopted a new Water Conservation in Landscaping Act, codified at Government Code sections
65591 et seq. The new Act required DWR to update the previously adopted MWELO to include
new provisions for more extensive water-efficient landscaping, plant and soil selection, and
irrigation considerations; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 65595, the State’s updated MWELO
would take effect and be enforced by any local jurisdiction that did not adopt its own model water
efficient landscape ordinance by January 1, 2010; and

WHEREAS, in 2015 Executive Order No. B-29-15 directed DWR to again update the
State’s MWELO to extend its application to new, rehabilitated, and existing landscaping as detailed
in Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California Code of Regulations, and pursuant to
Government Code section 65596.5, DWR is required to update its MWELO at least every three
years; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 14 CCR section 18989.2 filed November 3, 2020, a “jurisdiction
shall adopt an ordinance or other enforceable requirement that requires compliance with Sections
492.6(a)(3)(B), (C), (D) and (G) of the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance ... as amended
September 15, 2015.”; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 65593, a local government may adopt
a water efficient landscape ordinance to implement the State MWELO requirements; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of a water efficient landscaping ordinance is to promote the
conservation and efficient use of water, and prevent its waste, while recognizing the values and
benefits of landscapes as essential to the quality of life in California; and

WHEREAS, incorporating the State MWELO by reference into the County’s water
efficient landscape ordinance will ensure the County remains in compliance with state regulations



as they may be amended from time to time, and will improve clarity for County residents and
businesses regarding the applicable water efficient landscaping requirements; and

WHEREAS, staff now recommends Inyo County amend Title 17 of the Inyo County Code
to adopt the State MWELO and additional requirements specific to Inyo County; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing on
February 28, 2024, to review and consider amending Title 17 of the Inyo County Code to adopt the
State MWELO along with additional requirements specific to Inyo County, and at which time the
Planning Commission considered all written and oral comments and input from staff and the public;
and

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments to Title 17 of the Inyo County Code are internally
consistent with the goals, objectives, and elements of the County’s General Plan and Zoning Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE INYO COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION HEREBY
FINDS, RESOLVES, AND RECOMMENDS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION ONE: The recitals above are incorporated herein as findings.

SECTION TWO: The Planning Commission finds that the proposed amendments are
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because the activity is covered by
the common-sense rule under California Code of Regulations, Title 14, section 15061(b)(3). Under
the common-sense rule exemption, projects which have no potential for causing a significant effect
on the environment are exempt. This project activity has no possibility of having a significant effect
on the environment, and in fact, could result in improvements to the environment by requiring better
managed water use.

SECTION THREE: The Planning Commission further finds that the proposed
amendments are consistent with the state-mandated program established under MWELO Title 23,
Division 2, Chapter 2.7 of the California Code of Regulations.

SECTION FOUR: The Planning Commission recommends that the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors approve the proposed ordinance amending Title 17 of the Inyo County Code to adopt
the California Water-Efficient Landscaping Ordinance along with additional requirements specific
to Inyo County pursuant to state law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28" day of February 2024, by the following vote of the Inyo
County Planning Commission:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Todd Vogel, Chair
Inyo County Planning Commission



ATTEST:
Cathreen Richards, Planning Director

By

Sally Faircloth, Secretary of the Commission



Planning Department Phone: (760) 8780263

168 North Edwards Street (760) 872-2706
Post Office Drawer L FAX:  (760) 873-2712
Independence, California 93526 E-Mail: inyoplanning@inyocounty.us
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 Zone Text Amendment 2024-01
PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING DATE: February 28, 2024
SUBJECT: Zone Text Amendment (ZTA) 2024-
01/Short-term Rental of Residential
Property
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

At the direction of the Board of Supervisors, staff has prepared updates to the County’s
Short-term Rental of Residential Property Ordinance. These updates include adding short-
term rental areas and caps, time limits, insurance requirements, removing outside fires as
allowed and changes to the enforcement process. A moratorium has been active on short-
term rental applications since October 25, 2022 and has been extended to end November
25, 2024 unless lifted by the Board of Supervisors. This project is Exempt from the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15301 —
Existing Facilities Class 1.

Supervisorial District: County-wide

Applicants: Inyo County

Landowners: Multiple

Address/

Community: County-wide

A.P.N.: County-wide

Existing General Plan: All Residential designations and Open Space
Existing Zoning: Residential Zones including: One Family Residential

(R1), Rural Residential (RR), Starlite Estates (RR-



Starlite), and Multiple Residential 2-Units (R2) and

Open Space (OS).
Surrounding Land Use: Various
Recommended Action: Approve a Resolution Recommending that the

Board of Supervisors:

1.) Find the proposed project exempt from
the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality by 15301 - Existing
Facilities Class 1.

2.) Make certain Findings with respect to, and
approve, Zone Text Amendment ZTA/2024-01

Alternatives: 1.) Recommend modifications to the proposal.
2.) Recommend denial.
3.) Continue the public hearing to a future date,
and provide specific direction to staff regarding
additional information and analysis needed.

BACKGROUND

A short-term rental in the context of the county zoning code means the rental of certain
residentially zoned properties for 30-days or less. It does not include lodging businesses
(motels, hotels, bed and breakfast etc.) or residential rentals located on commercially
zoned properties. The code allows for hosted short-term rentals in the: Open Space (OS),
Rural Residential (RR), Rural Residential Starlite (RR Starlite), One Family Residential
(R1) and Multiple Family 2-Units (R2) zones, with a permit. The only residential zone
they are not allowed in is the Multiple Family 3-Units and above (R3) zone. Not allowing
for short- term rentals in the R3 zone was a purposeful decision made by the Board when
the ordinance was being developed to help protect affordable long-term rental
opportunities, as apartments and mobile home parks allowed in the R3 zone.

The Board of Supervisors adopted the County’s short-term rental ordinance in 2018. It
was then updated in 2020, primarily to eliminate the non-hosted permit type. Currently,
there are 26 non-hosted short-term rental permits (these are no longer allowed, but the 26
are grandfathered) and 64-hosted short-term rental permits (hosted short-term rental
permits require the owner or a manager to be on the property during a short-term rental
stay). There are 4,612-dwelling units available for short-term rental permits (those that
meet the zoning requirements) and 90 total short-term rental permits, representing just
under 2-percent of the available units in the County.



In June, October and November of 2022, and March 2023 staff held a series of short-term
rental workshops to the Board of Supervisors. At the November 29, 2022 meeting, a 45-
day moratorium was placed on short-term rental permits. On January 10th, 2023, an
additional moratorium was placed on short-term rentals for 10-months and 15-days - until
November 25, 2023 and another extension was approved on November 7, 2023 to end on
November 25, 2024. During this time, staff continued to receive inquiries (about one/two
a week) from the public interested in obtaining hosted short-term rental permits.

The Board requested that staff continue to work on updates to the short-term rental
ordinance, specifically on the enforcement section, short-term rental areas, caps, and time
limits. Geographic areas were identified and used to prepare percentages of available
units for short-term rental permit evaluations (maps attached). These include, from
highest to lowest percentage:

Area Available Hosted | Non- Total Pct.
units hosted Permits

Starlite 76 4 I 5 6.6

Lone Pine_Alabama Hills 701 25 10 35 5.0

Pangborn, Granite View

North County 183 4 3 7 3.8

McLaren Milovich Desiderata | 271 6 2 8 2.9

Aspendell Mountain View 155 2 2 4 2.6

Sunrise_Sunset 499 5 2 7 1.4

South_Southeast County 571 5 1 6 1.1

Big Pine/ Glacier/ Birch Creek | 600 4 1 5 0.8

Dixon/Meadow_Brockman 611 5 2 7 1.1
Early Pond

South of Line Street Poleta 375 2 1 3 0.8

Independence/ Oak Creek 291 1 1 2 0.7

Wilkerson 279 1 0 1 0.3

Bishop Creek, Chipmonk, Rossi

Total 4,612 64 26 90 1.9

Starlite and the Lone Pine area appear to be the most favored areas for short-term rentals,
with the North County and McLaren/ Milovich/Desiderata areas next. The area including
Lone Pine and the Alabama Hills has by far the highest number of short-term rental
permits (35). The next highest number of permits is the McLaren, Milovich, Desiderata
area with (8).

On January 9, 2024, the Board provided direction to staff to prepare an ordinance
updating the short-term rental ordinance to address: short-term rental areas, caps, and



time limits, eliminating outdoors fires, adding a proof of insurance requirement and
enhancing the code enforcement section.

STAFF ANALYSIS

Short-term Rental Areas

Short-term rental areas have been developed based on geographic locations to base the
total number of hosted short-term rental permits that will be allowed. These areas are
shown on the attached maps and are used in the previous and following tables.

Caps

A 5-percent cap on short-term rentals was suggested to the Board by staff in case they
wished to impose a cap. A table showing how many short-term rental permits would be
allowed with a 5-percent cap was provided to the Board. Staff also created tables with 3-
percent and 2-percent caps. The Board decided to go with the 3-percent cap on short-term
rental per area as indicated on the following table:

Area Available | 3% of Total Additional

units available Permits allowed @
3%

Starlite 76 2 5 -3

Aspendell/Mountain View 155 5 4 1

Lone Pine 701 21 35 -14

North County 183 5 7 -2

McLaren Milovich Desiderata 271 8 8 0

Sunrise/Sunset 499 15 7 8

South_Southeast County 571 17 6 11

Big Pine 600 18 5 13

Dixon/Meadow_Brockman Early | 611 18 7 11

Pond

South of Line Street Poleta 375 11 3 8

Independence 291 9 2 7

Wilkerson Bishop Creek 279 8 1 7

Chipmonk Rossi

Total 4,612 137 90 47




The negative numbers indicated how many permits over the cap these areas will already
have, if the cap is imposed, or the number that would have to be relinquished or revoked
before new permits could be granted.

Staff also recommended that one cap be used for all areas to:
e Keep the implementation of the short-term rental ordinance less complicated; and,
e Keep the percentages even and fair throughout the County so as not to cause
limitations or benefits for property owners in some areas and not in others.
These changes are included in the proposed code update.

Unused permits

In certain areas these caps will make getting a new hosted short-term rental permit
impossible. This applies to areas that have already met the cap, such as Starlite and the
Lone Pine area, or reach the cap after it is imposed. Because of this, an update addressing
unused permits is also being included in the proposed code update. A proxy to monitor
short-term rental permit use will be a check on Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT)
payments. If a short-term rental permit holder has not paid TOT for a full year without an
apparent hardship, or reason, staff would consider it an unused permit and require that it
be relinquished. This will necessitate an annual review of permit use based on TOT to be
conducted on new short-term rental permits and this is reflected in the proposed code
updates.

Time Limits

Along with the caps, the Board expressed a lot of interest in limiting the time of a hosted
short-term rental permit, so that they do not remain active forever without a renewal
cycle and mechanism. This time limit can only be applied to new permits granted after
the ordinance update and not to permits granted prior. The update proposes that all new
short-term rental permits are three-year permits. A renewal application will be required
for another three-year permit term and at a minimum the application requirements,
include:

e A check to ensure verifiable violation complaints have not been received on the
short-term rental.

e Verification from the Building and Safety Department that no building code
violations have been sited on the property or the building the short-term rental is
permitted for.

e Verification from the Environmental Health Department that no well, septic, or
other health and safety violations have been found on the property or the building
the short-term rental is permitted for.

Additional Changes
The proposed updates also include:
e prohibiting outdoor fires.
e adding a requirement to show proof of insurance.
e changing the enforcement process to assigning the Planning Commission as the
revocation hearings board from the Planning Director having the authority to
revoke, and changing the requirement from the permit holder to address nuisance



complaints within 45-90 minutes and contact the Planning Department within
twenty-four hours of the compliant: to the permit holder being responsible for
contacting the tenant to correct the problem and provide a written report to the
Planning Department within three-days. This change is proposed because most
short-term rental nuisance violations happen on the weekends when county staff
is not available to verify complaints.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Staff recommends the Planning Commission make certain findings and approve a resolution
(attached) recommending the Board of Supervisors consider ZTA 2024-01, make certain
findings, and adopt the proposed ordinance (attached), amending the ICC to include Chapter
18.73 Short-term Rental of Residential Property.

Recommended Findings

. This proposed ordinance is covered by CEQA Exemption Class 1 Existing Facilities
(15301).

[Evidence: projects subsequent to this ordinance will be pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Section 15301 Existing Facilities Class 1, as Short-term Rentals are defined as a means to
provide transient lodging in an existing residential dwelling unit in the One Family
Residential, Rural Residential, Rural Residential-Starlite, Multiple Family 2-Units, and Open
Space Zones, and will involve negligible or no expansion of an existing use. Proposals such as
these fall into the Categorical Exemption Class 1 Existing Facilities (15301).]

2. Based on substantial evidence in the record, the proposed Zoning text Amendment is
consistent with the Goals and Policies of the Inyo County General Plan.

[Evidence: The County’s General Plan states, in Policy No. LU-2.17, that the County shall
encourage home occupations (small scale commercial activities and uses). Such commercial
activities and uses located in residential areas shall be permitted only when they do not
negatively impact the residential character of the neighborhood in which the activity takes
place. The proposed new language directly addresses potential negative impacts to the
residential character of the neighborhood in which the activity takes place, by restricting the
number of allowed short-term rental in an area and restricting outdoor fires. The changes also
enhance enforcement capabilities, which mitigates nuisances that, in turn, helps to protect
residential characteristics.]

3. Based on substantial evidence in the record, the proposed Zone Text Amendment is
consistent with Title 18 (Zoning Ordinance of Inyo County Code).

[Evidence: The updates to Chapter 18.73 Short Term Rental of Residential Property maintain
the consistency with the descriptions of 18.12 Open Space, 18.21 Rural Residential, 18.22
Rural Residential Starlite, 18.30 One family residential 18.33 and, Multiple Residential 2-
units as it does not change the intent or purpose of the use descriptions as described within
Title 18. Chapter 18.73 provides for the conditions in which Short-term Rentals may operate,
and the restrictions of the use. The character of residential neighborhoods will not be directly
affected by these amendments and therefore the amendments will not affect the intent of Title
18 to direct certain types of land uses to specific areas within the County.]



ATTACHMENTS

Maps — current permits by area, caps by area
Resolution

Draft Ordinance



Maps - Areas and Permits



pajunod spun yim siposed [l
uONE20T JWIad |EJuSy WI3] JOUS @

>
a
(2]
-
(=
&
w

JLIAVLS

9%,9°9 - ebejusdiod
G - sjwlised
9/ - syun

aypels




pajunog syun yim sisoied [l

UOI}e00T U3 [ejusy Wid] Hoys @

NOANVD Na)ani

9€} AMH

3 leve YiN

VAIL
N

S LauvHONg

(2]
z
i d

NOILVYLS gNnS =
LN

i+
sulg o1V

-t

VHS-3

===
d IANOT
IONVYD MOUWAVN NI Gmlmz

SMoavaw JOHSISYOH

0
&
va..o
L
= |
. | __ TVLHOd AaNLiHm
,M\

% %,0°G - obejuaniad
G¢ - sjiwlad
L0/ - sSjun

MBI/ 3)luels) ‘uloqbued ‘sj|IH ewege|y ‘auld auo]

zmomuz vé




Yie

Aunog ypoN

AMH
> i 8ol
: g ® pajunoD syun yum sisoled [l |
o > =
& . Z 5 . OO0 WIS [BJUSY WUSL HOYS @ |
> bl n =
222 = 53 vmo%v
vig10d ] ann ™ THO m 64’»
doysig wia @ - NV 3 L g
<zZvia 2 S
m > o m
M > g Ly
5 ln._ m by ng‘” x
H 2 z s £
3 g
£ Noxia 2 5
m
: Py, 2 : §
NNATH o 3CISYIAN 5
.. <
smeT i
[ m f—u -
(<] o a W
s 8 44y é gHONVY NNIGVNVA
2 @ BUBAOY S
z ONv1E Nvar . ¥33D ANId
% i
3
% oz X &@ rﬁ:
2 3 3 o D WIHD
o I D %
2 % %
) ° Y
13 %, Y
(2] .u.b. 1] 2
I v} o, o
w () m
e 2 o
o = <
Hdloany ] g z
% m

%8°¢ - Jusdiad
/ - snwiad

€8l - siun




13SNNS NOSYILIVM
psjuno) syun yum speoied [l |

uolneoso _
ANVTHOIH NSRRI JE00T Jlwiad |ejuey wis) Joys @ |
334D NVIANI
2
ILNDS3N s
] |
- m =
m W_ c
£ w: > g
v L o
> > 9 maunvi o °
X = 0 04
> m e X\
SWYITIIM ATT19 m Jva3d

[}
2
z
[
s

Uy}
Qv NS
TIH a3y

NoLdvg

J3dilL

MOTVvE
VENNIM

Zvid

%6°¢ - 9beuaoied
8 - sjiwled
L/¢ - siun

NYWXO0ug

JAVMIS

ejelapisaq ‘YoIAO|IN ‘UsJeTon




pajuno? spun yum sieoied [l

UOI}eD0 JWLIad |ejuay wis] Hoys @

%92 - obejuaolad
¥ - sjiuisd

GGl - sjun

V1Hinos

AUIOAYASTIY

M3I/\ UlBlUNO ‘||lopuadsy




YIEOHIS

%" | - obejuadiad
L - sjiwlad
66¥ - sHun

pajunod syun yim siposed [l
UOI}ED0T WIS [EJUSY WIS] HOUS @

moTve

VH vd

SWVITIIM ATTI8

Josung ‘asuung

NN

M3IAD NVIANI

3LINDSIN

JAISONINYON

EL AL
ASOUATM

HOYIg

MIINONVED

¥yva3d

I

£ aunosaw

a3am3anginnt

MOAVvIN




»
?
3
%
%

OOQC\Q

w
. —— )
A 2 _W % a|jinuosiead”
o) 2 9 _
Z - w
2 9 o pajunog spun yim sisosed [l i
UOKEOOT JULSd [BJUSY ULBL MOUS @ |
dm - .'J
-m. |
3
oyeT 8
-]
©
O
,%v% .mw..
(1)
ViV TIve i
" uoiounr 0s0) .
T .
)
R -
2 £
ES 3
w ,a
v % 2
9 2
U "
-W = -ﬂﬁ
v 2° Ul =
2 W
% e "
Z . J Ty &
3 HEq BYoue|Q "
¥ il ..‘
obenen
sBundg Juiweueq”
S
&
%
%
IEIEE)
| AJuno) jseayinog ‘yinosg : r(r




MBI/ UC)S3jiey

NOYV3d

....

. B HLIVE

J 3anv
53V

O
7
[~
»
1YY
5
T
g
3

UILSY

psjunod syun yim siposed [l
UONEDOT JIWISd [EJUSY WIS JOUS @

%L1 - abeluaalad
9 - sjlwliad
LLG - sjiun

Z fauno) 1seayinog

yinos

-
auoysoys’

gLl AMH

L2} AMH




5 e
2.
%, pajunod spun upm sisored Il |
v UO[}EDOT JIULISd [EJUSY WIS HOUS @
N3 ERRNE
% h
3
z
n
w
==
(72}
o
2
4
(7]
(7
X
']
b i
'SQNIH
.uwvs
2
o) o
b WO
QuVMaLs m i w %8°0 - 8bejuasiad
o ~N
£ -
w L & G - sjiiad
TEwve £ o m;.v 009 - sjiun
: &
auld m_mﬁ..e
*
891 AMH
4374 - L7
7 IATWQ Z ﬁ.om.. \WVO
% K
© )
2
¥9810 yoag Is10el9 ‘suld big




3 HouIE
“ LMOHS uln. LMOHS =
= 3 g 2 3 >
o I
H 3 uounHd B z e pajunod spun yim sisored [
m
3 MOTTIM u. £z, S g o
TN doysig’ ZEE awa A 35008VL - uofjeso Jwliad [ejusy wia] Hoys @
aNd :
o m mm>omc = LEL I
-~
Wi Z W13 wo < °
HONOaN o s @ =
" @ 3 2 ONINNT .
awou m 5 g
3onud < zZvia
AGNVA 9 o load m
ATNVA S S
= m 3 c >
2 m &0 = c “ w
F4 m = T m
¥3AI OVIN o c g g .
o
m = m m
39
5 %
m
A 5 vH3IS
@
a
[«]
(2]
X
Z
>
W =z
o
Noxid

%1 - Jusdlad
aaiIsuann /, - SHwliad
L19 - slun

$390a1y4 3AE

ueunjoolg ‘puod Aje3 ‘swie{ mopesyy ‘uoxiqg




N3O

| "
[-;]
| [
| 1) M 1550 pajunod spun yim sjeoied [l
_ 2, UOI}e00T] JWIRd [BJUSy Wis] Hoys @ |

SONRIAS WAVM

[72)
S 22 .
o
> e
° )
\v.v
s
HONVEHSYD SND ¥IFAOHOS m JOOMMIANN %«r
>
asiNns £ AT¥ANY o
S13SNNS =
3 _ -5
\/y
g PN X E E 3
= 3 nmzx s m m
283 = N &
M
vigiod m.nm:a a ST S s
doysig 3N 3sooavl > o3
. N3 2> Z m
N3 % iy W m 102 “ M
= m_c =z 3
AINVA > AINVA <Zw 2Zvia m 2
o Z mec¢c S m
. 2 g
& o1y 2
m
A > = S TINMYS
2 3 =
5 ct 1
(2]
r =N z by,
m > tW\.W
%80 - abejuaosiad 2
€ - slwliad o
B Noxia
GLE - spun

9 AMH AqISHAAR B}9|0d ‘193J)S auI Jo Yynosg




psjunog spun yum sieoled [l
UOI}eO0T JWIad [BJuay WI3] Hoys @

o
S
" ?
NOANVD V¥NOZV " s
Ay £
A % w&?& 7
v
4*5 S .';5'4
wm-mu:mnmwmc_ ¢%
1INV o % A

X
ﬁ.Q.m..
%, %/°0 - obejuasiad
% ¢ - sjiuled
L6¢ - siun
3
3
z
2
M .wzmwv AYTIHOLVH HSHH
z %
m %Y -
a (e}
v_m*ovzo @
I w
%o310 yeQ ‘souspuadspu] - .— ﬁ 2 m
=




%¢€°0 - obejusdiad
| - Spuad

6/.¢ - siun pejunod spun yum sieosed [

W uoieooT JuLed [eluay Wil Houys @
ol
i

COUNTY

SNIS102

Y]
%
L
° 3 s =
=
- B
7 . 2 o&o,o _
, 2T 20M° ab%v §
'~y
o
SONINAS WHVM
wn
c E4
o
F4 <
o m
NS
e .

wo
II'H 1ssoy ‘uoAue) yuowdiy) o1 doysig ‘uosio|ip 8oL AMH




Maps - Areas with Caps



J9A0 ¢ ‘sjwiad Jeuonippe ou SMoJ|yY
sjiwiad jejo) z :juadisad-g

J9A0 ¢ ‘sjiwiad jeuoljippe ou SMO||yY
sjiwsad |ejoy z :juadiad-¢

JOAO | ‘sjiwiad Jeuoi}ippe ou SMoj|yY
juasind g ‘sjwiad |ejo} § :juadiad-g
sden

>
A
(2]
p]
=
A
wn

ENERD-) AR

sjjiels




JoA0 LZ ‘spwaad Jeuoijippe ou SMo||Y

sjwad jejo} | :jusalad-g

19A0 | ‘spwiad Jeuonippe ou SMo|ly
sywJad [ejo) Lz :Jusdisad-¢

sjiwlad [euollippe ou SMO||Y

jualing g¢ ‘sjiuiad jejo} g¢ :juadad-g
sdeo

. .
b 2
NOANVO zuxm:._w_. &
ry NOANVO NIY¥an1 £
) o
m
< ¥
: i
7]
9€L AMH
=
>
= s WVNLNd
m =2 [ ]
| |
m VA3L m s i __._Exon_ AINLIHM
wsot

% 1auvH»@ung
>

NOILVLS an | 4

LSA967

e
39NVYO MOYIVN 3NId ANOT ’

NYOEONYd

M3IA 3)uels) - ulogbued - S|j|H eweqe]y - auld auoT




v13170d SMV1

Lioduivy

vi370d

dNVINNS

NIVIN

W13

0 QuHL

MoTHVE Y ‘

w
z
3

33A 338

ALY E
a

NOXIa

YH vd

NYWXO0ud

891 AMH

N vd
vivay
ANNKN

T1IH a3y W
\D
yioNv® g

S¥3IMOd a3

Ty,
Myg
gy

emz%

Sep

pajunod spun yim sipoled [l
UOI}ed0T N [ejuay Wwig] Loys @

o No'luOH

3IMO
3y,

I
!

NATS
sme’”

HLIWS 301

WO
o
wo®

9 AMH

m HdT0any

$390148 AL

ONVTE NV3r

3AISH3INY

HBI‘[Q]S NS, 14

o
4218 W

Auno9d ypoN

r& EHONVY WNIGYNVA
BUBAOYE

334D 3N

31IVA ONNOY

A

19A0 ¢ ‘sjiwuad jeuonippe ou SMo||yY
sjiwliad |ejo} ¢ :Jusalad-g

JaAno g ‘sjiwuad |euonjippe ou Smo||y
sjiwuad |ejo) G :Juadlad-¢

sjwJad [euolippe Z SMO|jY
Juaung 7 ‘sywiad |ejo} g :jusolad-g
sde)




M33™D NVIANI

JaA0 ¢ ‘sjwliad |euoiippe ou SMO||Y
J1INOSIN m .
N sjiwlad |ejo) G :Juaaled-g
2
3QISONINYON i sjwJad jeuonippe ou SMO||Y
., £ © 2 sywlad |ejo) g ;juassad-¢
> 9 LECUL AN >
ROQ Sl >
movass > sjwiad [euolippe g sMojly
| ¢ .
B ] uaung g ‘sywiad [ejol | usdled-g
2 5 B sdeg
HOMIE o m m
4
Z HoXIg W
2 o
ﬁ T1IH a3d
oW
>
2
(=]
4
4
| s
s S
H 2
o [+
b
Zvia

BjeIapisa ‘YoINo|IN ‘UaleTon




V1 Hlnos

EYAR

HIOAYISTY
19A0 | ‘sjiuiad jeuonippe ou Smoj|y

sjiuiad Jejo) ¢ :jJusdiad-g

s)wiad jeuonippe | smojjy
sjwad |ejo} G :jusosad-¢

M3IA UIBJUNOJ - [[9puadsy

spwiad [euonippe ¥ SMoj|yY

jJualind ¢ ‘sjjwiad |ejo} g :Juadiad-g
sden




spwJad [euonippe ¢ sMmojly
sjiwiad |ejo} Q) :jusdsad-g

MmoTive

sjwJad jeuolyippe 8 SMoj|y
sjwiad |ejo) 6| :juadiad-¢

NOILVAY3STIY NVIANI NVINNS

sjw.Jad jeuonippe g| smoj|y
¥3EOHOS juading / ‘spuiad |ejo) 6z :jusasad-g

sden

N
&
£

M3I3HD NVIANI

VHVd
JN vd

jasung - asllung 3LNosaw




W
. S —— iy
e - i} % 3J|IAnuoSsIead
% g ¢
% e %
Z w
2 g ©
k ’ =
(44 .iu
E
o
oeT 8
(-]
@
o)
S .w“
h 9
1
h<~_<.__.__h<m uonoune 0s0D
.m =
R -
2 5
3 3
]
W m
= % 2
ket = =
2
2 b
N\“ cV//rVO Ul
N ') .:H«w.
4
3 uimieq eyOUEIR) -+
V l ”
ofeuen
sBundg juiweueq
% Q)
? W
<
o, &'
A Q
4
)
OOQC\M. n@.&
\“
10[00)°

L Ajuno) jseayjnog ‘yjnosg




v
..__<mm
_3HL
MBI UCISS|IBUD 3 3py B

sjwiad jeuoljippe
G SMO||y sjwiad [ejo} || :Juaolad-g

Sywiad [eUOIIPPE || SMO|IY
sywiad [ejo} /| :jusosad-¢

spw.ad [euonippe £Z SMO|lY

Juaung g ‘spwiad |ejo) gz Juaolad-g
sden

Z Aiuno) 1seayinog

yinos

-
suoysoys’
gL AMH

8LL AMH

uonounr Asjiea yieeq

\WV
o>

061 AMH

L2} AMH




3
%
WN13 ¥3TINg r
2 .|
3
2z
o
[7]
X
w
]
)
r4
[7]
w
2. .I_mnz__._
wa._.
>
o) )
ayvmals z 2 2W°
: 3 @
z &
t: i
T13LAVE T ¢ ~
S
.“u aﬂ-nm $
5 | g
891 AMH x
=<
5
LW.JT ) ‘.
w
@ z )
k2 %
,-m,

sjwJad jeuonippe /L SMoj|y
sjiwiad jejoy z| :jJusdiad-g

sjiuuad |euonippe Z| smojy
sjiwiad ejoy gi :juadiad-¢

sjwad Jeuonippe Gg smojly

juaiing g ‘sjuad |ejoy o¢ :jusadsad-g
sden

¥oa1D yong - 1919e|9 - auld Big




n
“ LHOHS mn. 1MOHS
= ] s
[~} I
5
- P
> moTum
m AVIN Q 2
< oysi
3NId £ m
W13
a
AINVA s
>mz<W>
2
z
Y3AL OV
»
v
x
c
o
m
JAM
2
(-]
]
<
m
]
X
o
(2]
m
7]

HO¥NHD

NIYHVYM
ANOWWVYH

A€SOUD

¥3ITMO4

an
S1v0D

3Nid

Siul
Y3AIANOId

3IWOH

JA0UD

[ RE
HONOIN

JNOY
1OAId

novd

3s008vl

MOTHvE

ns niL

Zvia

33A 338

HONIg

psjunod spun yum siedied [l
uol}eooT Julad |ejusy wig] Woys @

o3giL

VH vd

wor

§

Y1SIA

ONRIM

VENNIM

[e R ED ]

nwnny
NdNNHVAVe
JAVM3S

WQ\Q

4
¥
¥

NOXIa

Vi3S

NVMOOuE

sjiwJiad jeuonippe G Smo||y
sjwliad |ejo} z| :Jusdlaed-g

3qISUIAI

[euonippe || Smojly
sjwJad |ejo) g :Jusolad-¢

sjiwiad [euonippe g SMo||y
Juauno ; ‘sywiad [e)o) L Juaalad-g
sde)

uewoolg ‘puod Ale3 ‘sulieqd mopeapy ‘uoxiq




s)wuad Jeuonippe g sMoj|y

5 9
* 3 sjwiad jejo) g :juaaiad-g
.Wu.‘: = uH 1SS0¥
> sjiuiad Jeuonippe g SMo||y
sywiad jeyo} LI :judaitad-¢
SONINAS WHVM
sywiad jeuonippe 9| SMojjy
jualing ¢ ‘sjuuad [Bjol gl :Judditad-g
(7]
g * sden
> S
o o)
5
&
HONVAHSVD SNO ¥IFOHDS © CJOOMNIANN Juv&
>
ISRUNNS m A3yanv w L
2 13sNNS w Nm
W b E i _.m‘ S
2 Avr T p Z o
o m e > [ |
b = e mm_ﬂ = m smnn=
S = z $ :E E ] AE a
Vi310d o5 ANT =2 T e
ZAN G  and asoogvL 2 53
o >
% m >z ALID N3LSONNL
w13 0 2 P o 3 3
9 m-2 zvia 2 S
AINVA  janva m < % z
w mc > m
h] = &
g € Jory
(2] m
am M 3 vaNaIs
o] #Sess
13 2 bs
wuold =] N W
g >
MVYLO0OH)
[
>
=
[}
a NOXIa

©}9]0d - }924}S auI JO Ynog

9 AMH FAISUIAN




NOANVYD V)i :_uNg

SNYLID

¥
L1}

2, 480

FONIANId3ANI L8004

sywied [euoRIPPE 9 SMO|IY
syiuwiad jejo} g :juediad-z

sjuuad [euonippe £ smojjy
syuuad [ejo} ¢ :jJuedsad-¢

sjwJiad [euonIppe ¢ SMO||Y

kH
D A¥IHOLVH HsI4
%

[

Alsna

MOJITIM

JualIng Z ‘sywiad |ejo} G| :jusdiad-g

sden

}9319 yeQ - asuspuadapuy




o™ o s)iwiad jeuoljippe g SMo||VY
s sjiwiad [ejo3 9 :jJuadsad-g
spwad jeuonippe L SMO||Y
sjiwiad |ejo) g -juadsad-¢
spwJad [euonippe ¢} SMmo||Y
juading | ‘spuiad [ejol g :judditad-g
des
SNITJ02 =
%
%
2 R
R et =
-4 s x>
o savA 310802 @..W
SONINAS NHVM
&
> m 3 S &
3 c g ® o o
o z = o
2 ° 2

IIH 1SS0y - uoAued yuowdiys - 9319 doysig - UOSIBNY|IM BAbE




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, RECOMMENDING
THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FIND THE PROPOSED
PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, MAKE CERTAIN
FINDINGS WITH RESPECT TO AND APPROVE ZONE TEXT
AMENDMENT NO. 2024-01 INYO COUNTY

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, through Inyo County Code (ICC)
Section 15.12.040, has designated the Planning Commission to serve as the
Environmental Review Board pursuant to Section 15022 of the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, which is responsible for the environmental review of all
County projects; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to the Califonia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the
proposed ordinance is covered by the 15301 Class 1, Existing Facilities as Short-term
Rentals are defined as a means to provide transient lodging in an existing residential
dwelling unit in the One Family Residential, Rural Residential, Rural Residential-Starlite,
Multiple Family 2-Units, and Open Space Zones, and will involve negligible or no
expansion of an existing use; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Planning Commission held a public hearing February 28,
2024, to review and consider a request for approval of Zone Text Amendment No. 2024-
01, and considered the staff report for the project and all oral and written comments
regarding the proposal; and

WHEREAS, ICC Section 18.03.020 states in part that it is necessary for the Zoning
ordinance and General Plan to be consistent with each other; and

WHEREAS, ZTA 2024-01 is consistent with the Inyo County General Plan as it will not
result in higher densities than what is already established in the Inyo County General
Plan; and

WHEREAS, ZTA 2024-01 is consistent with the Inyo County Zoning Code as it will not
allow for new uses beyond what is already established in the Inyo County Zoning Code
under the current Short-term Rental Ordinance, or residential zones.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, that based on all of the written and
oral comment and input received at the February 28, 2024, hearing, including the
Planning Department Staff Report, the Planning Commission makes the following
findings regarding the proposal and hereby recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt the following findings for the proposed project:



RECOMMENDED FINDINGS

1.

BE IT

The This proposed ordinance is covered by CEQA Exemption Class 1 Existing
Facilities (15301). Projects subsequent to this ordinance will be subject to CEQA
Guidelines Section 15301 Existing Facilities Class 1, as Short-term Rentals are
defined as a means to provide transient lodging in an existing residential dwelling
unit in the One Family Residential, Rural Residential, Rural Residential-Starlite,
Multiple Family 2-Units, and Open Space Zones, and will involve negligible or
no expansion of an existing use. Proposals such as these fall into the Categorical
Exemption Class 1 Existing Facilities (15301).

Based on substantial evidence in the record, the proposed Zoning Ordinance
Amendment is consistent with the Goals and Policies of the Inyo County General
Plan as it is consistent with all associated land use designations and policies set
forth in the Land Use Element of the General Plan as the use will not increase the
set densities on any land use designation or otherwise allow uses contrary to the
Land Use Element. It also is consistent with Economic Development Goal ED-1
that states: Promote increased capacity to serve tourists within the County’s
established urbanized areas, and in those areas with tourist attractions.

Based on substantial evidence in the record, the proposed Zoning Ordinance
Amendment is consistent with Title 18 (Zoning Ordinance) of the Inyo County
Code as short-term rental activities are allowed pursuant to Chapter 18.73 of the
Inyo County and the proposed changes will not expand or increase these already
allowed uses.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission recommends that the

Board of Supervisors take the following actions:

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

1.

Approve ZTA 2024-01 based on all of the information in the public record and on
the recommendation of the Planning Commission.

Certify that ZTA 2024-01 is Exempt from CEQA pursuant to 15061(b)(3) of the
CEQA Guidelines.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this February 28, 2024, by the following vote of the Inyo
County Planning Commission:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Todd Vogel, Chair
Inyo County Planning Commission



ATTEST:
Cathreen Richards, Planning Director

By

Sally Faircloth, Secretary of the Commission



ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF INYO,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING INYO COUNTY CODE CHAPTER 18.73,
SECTIONS 18.73.030, 18.73.040A, 18.73.070, 18.73.080 OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE.

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2018, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance
1224 allowing for the short-term rental (30-days or less) of residentially zoned property; and

WHEREAS, after two years of implementing the short-term rental of residential property
ordinance, planning department staff reviewed short-term rental activities and presented them to
the Inyo County Board of Supervisors; and

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2020, the Board requested that staff amend the ordinance to
remove the non-hosted short-term rental permit and allow for non-hosted short-term rentals to
be allowed in the multiple family two-units zone; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance 1251 amending the
short-term rental of residential property ordinance; and

WHEREAS, after another two years of implementing the short-term rental of residential
property ordinance, planning department staff reviewed short-term rental activities and presented
them to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors; and

WHEREAS, in the years between 2020-2022, Inyo County found that it has shortage of long-
term rental opportunities; and

WHEREAS, on October 25, 2022, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, as a policy decision,
requested that planning department create short-term rental areas, and caps for those areas, to
better manage the number of short-term rentals in the County to help remedy the long-term rental
shortage; and

WHEREAS, on November 29, 2022, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors placed a 45-day
moratorium on short-term rental permits; and

WHEREAS, on January 10, 2023 and again on November 7, 2023 the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors extended the moratorium, which will expire on November 25, 2024, to give staff
time to update the short-term rental ordinance pertaining to areas, caps, time limits, insurance,
outside fires and enforcement; and

WHEREAS, staff prepared a draft ordinance reflecting the Board of Supervisors’ request; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Planning Commission met to discuss the proposed changes to the
ordinance with regard to consistency with Inyo County zoning code, General Plan and the
California Environmental Quality Act; concurred with county staff recommendations; and
approved a resolution recommending the Board adopt the updates.



NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, ordains as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 18.73.030 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to read as
follows:
“18.73.030 General Requirements.

Short-term rentals may be permitted on properties zoned open space (OS); rural residential (RR);
rural residential Starlite; one-family residential (R-1); and multiple residential two-units (R-2)
subject to the following requirements and limitations.

A. Limitation on the number of short-term rental permits issued. The number of annual
short-term rental permits issued by the county under this Chapter shall be limited by a
number derived of 3-percent of available dwelling units per Area as follows:

1. Area 1 - North County shall be comprised of: All of T6S., R31E., T6S.,
R32E., & T6S., R33E., M.D.B.M. Except Sections 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36 in T6S.,
R31E., T6S., R32E., & T6S., R33E., M.D.B.M. Also except Sections 1, 12, 13, 24
& 25 in T6S., R33E., M.D.B.M.

5 permits.

2. Area 2 - Dixon, Meadow Creck, Early Pond, Brockman shall be comprised of:
Sections 35 & 36 in T.6S., R32E., M.D.B.M. The northwest quarter of Section 2,
and Lot 2 of the northwest quarter of the northeast quarter of Section 2, T.7S.
R32E., M.D.B.M. Including the north half of the northeast quarter of the northwest
quarter of Section 1, T7S., R32E., M.D.B.M.

18 permits.

3. Area 3 - McLaren Milovich Desiderata shall be comprised of: The southeast
quarter of Section 3, T7S., R32E., M.D.B.M. including the east half of the
southwest quarter of Section 3, T7S., R32E., M.D.B.M. The south half of Section
2 excluding the area east of Brockman Lane and south of West Line Street, T7S.,
R32E., M.D.B.M.

8 permits.

4. Area 4 - South of Line Street Poleta shall be comprised of: The north half including
the north half of the south half of Sections 7, 8 & 9, T7S., R33E., M.D.B.M. The north
half including the north half of the south half of Sections 8, 9, 10, 11 & 12, T7S., R32E.,
M.D.B.M. Except for the southeast quarter of Section 11, and the southwest quarter of
Section 12, T7S., R32E., M.D.B.M.

11 permits.

5. Area 5 — Sunrise_Sunset shall be comprised of: The southeast quarter of Section 11,
and the southwest quarter of Section 12, T7S., R32E., M.D.B.M.
15 permits.



6. Area 6 — Starlite shall be comprised of: The south half of Section 23, including the
south half of the north half of Section 23, T7S., R31E., M.D.B.M.
2 permits.

7. Area 7 - Wilkerson Bisop Creek Chipmonk Rossi Hill shall be comprised of: The
south half of the south half, Sections 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 & 24, T7S., R32E., M.D.B.M.
The south half of the south half, Sections 19 & 20, T7S., R33E., M.D.B.M. The north
half of Sections 25, 26, 27, 28, 29 & 30, T7S., R32E., M.D.B.M. Sections 29 & 32, the
east half of Section 31, and Section 30 excluding the southwest quarter, T7S., R33E.,
M.D.B.M. Section 5, the east half of Section 6, the northeast quarter of Section 7 & the
north half of Section 8, T8S., R33E., M.D.B.M.

8 permits.

8. Area 8 — Aspendell Mountain View shall be comprised of: Sections 20, 21, 22, 27, 28
& 29 of T8S., R31E., M.D.B.M.
5 permits.

9. Area 9 — Big Pine_Glacier Birch Creek shall be comprised of: Sections 8 through 17,
20 through 29, 32 through 36 in T9S., R33E., M.D.B.M. Sections 7 through 10, 15
through 22, 27 through 34 in T9S., R34E., M.D.B.M. Sections 1, 2 & 3, 10 through 15,
22 through 27 in T10S., R33E., M.D.B.M. Sections 3 through 10, 15 through 22, 27
through 30, T10S., R34E., M.D.B.M.

18 permits.

10. Area 10 — Independence Oak Creek shall be comprised of: Sections 7 & 18, T13S.,
R35E., M.D.B.M. West half of Sections 8 & 17, T13S., R35E., M.D.B.M. The south half
of Section 6, and the south half of the west half of Section 5, T13S., R35E., M.D.B.M.
The south half of Section 1, and the east half of the east half of the south half of Section
2, T13S., R34E., M.D.B.M.

9 permits.

11. Area 11 — Lone Pine_Alabama Hills_Pangborn_Granite View shall be comprised of:
Sections 21 through 28, 33 through 36 of T15S., R35E., M.D.B.M. excluding the north
half of the north half of Sections 21 through 24, T15S., R35E., M.D.B.M. Sections 19
through 22, 27 through 34 of T15S., R36E, M.D.B.M. excluding the north half of the
north half of Sections 19 through 22, T15S., R36E., M.D.B.M. Sections 1 through 4 and
Sections 9 through 16 of T16S., R35E., M.D.B.M. Sections 3 through 10 and Sections
15 through 18 of T16S., R36E., M.D.B.M.

21 permits.

12. Area 12 — South South East County shall be comprised of: All of the area within the
County of Inyo south of the described line: Beginning at a point on the County boundary
along the north line of Section 26, T16S., R34E., M.D.B.M. Thence east to the northeast
corner of Section 27, T16S., R36E., M.D.B.M. Thence north to the northwest corner of
Section 14, T16S., R36E., M.D.B.M. Thence east to the northeast corner of Section 13,
T16S., R36E., M.D.B.M. Thence north to the northwest corner of Section 6, T16S.,



R37E., M.D.B.M. Thence east to the northeast corner of T16S., R37E., M.D.B.M.
Thence north to the northwest corner of T16S.,R38E., M.D.B.M. Thence east to the
northeast corner of T16S., R41E., M.D.B.M. Thence south to the northwest corner of
T16S., R42E., M.D.B.M. Thence east to the northeast corner of R16S., R43E., M.D.B.M.
Thence north to the northwest corner of T16S., R44E., M.D.B.M. Thence east to the
northeast corner of Section 1, T16S., R46E., M.D.B.M. Thence south to the northwest
corner of Section 6, T28N., R1E., S.B.B.M. Thence east to the County boundary in the
northeast corner of T28N., R3E., S.B.B.M.

17 permits.

2. The Inyo County Board of Supervisors, in its discretion, may at any time, determine by
resolution, that the number of short-term permits allowed within each regional zone should stay
the same, be reduced, or be expanded in order to protect neighborhood character and reduce
adverse impacts or to provide economic benefit. Short term rental permits shall be issued on a
first-come, first-served basis within the established caps limits outlined in subsection a above.

3. This section is only intended to create a maximum number of short-term rental permits
that may be issued within the county. Nothing in this chapter creates a mandate that the county
must issue any or all of the permits allowed under this chapter if it is determined that it is in the
best interest of the county to issue less than the maximum number, or if the owners or the
property do not meet the standards which are established in the application requirements.

4, An annual review of permits obtained after DATE will be conducted by the Planning
Department to determine if the permits are being used. This will be a review of Transient
Occupancy Tax (TOT) payments. If a short-term rental permit holder has not paid TOT for a full
year without an apparent hardship, or verifiable reason, planning staff will consider it an unused
permit and the permit will automatically be revoked upon mailed notice from the Planning
Department.

B. No person shall undertake, maintain, authorize, aide, facilitate, or advertise any short-
term rental activity that does not comply with the provisions of this code.

C. All short-term rentals shall be hosted rentals.

D. Each short-term rental shall have an owner or designated representative readily available
to handle any questions or complaints during all short-term rental activities. Any change to the
contact information for the owner or owner’s designated representative shall immediately be
provided in writing to the Inyo County planning department, to neighboring properties within
three hundred feet of the short-term vacation rental, and on any postings required by this chapter.

E. Only two hosted rentals per parcel may be permitted, except in the R2 zone, where only
one hosted rental per parcel may be permitted, and any such short-term rental in an R2 zone shall
only be permitted in a dwelling unit that is concurrently occupied by a primary resident(s).

F. An owner shall only be eligible to maintain a permit(s) for short-term rentals on a
maximum of one parcel of land.



G. No more than five guestrooms per dwelling unit may be permitted for short-term rental
activity.

H. Issuance of a hosted short-term rental permit, pursuant to this chapter, is separately
required for each dwelling unit in which a short-term rental will occur. Failure to obtain a hosted
short-term rental permit prior to renting a residentially zoned property for thirty days or less shall
be considered a violation of this chapter and subject to legal action and/or enforcement
proceedings, including, but not limited to, an administrative penalty of no less than the dollar
amount of the nightly rental rate of the property for each day the short-term rental is advertised
and/or operated in violation of this chapter, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this code,
whichever is more, to the maximum extent allowed by the law.

L Short-term rentals shall not be permitted in dwelling units that are not compliant with
applicable building and safety and/or environmental health requirements, or in non-habitable
structures, tents, travel trailers, RVs, treehouses, yurts, or other provisions or structures not
intended for primary occupancy.

J. Only two renters are allowed per guestroom. This number does not include children three
years and under.

K. A maximum of one vehicle per guestroom shall be allowed, and the owner shall provide
off-street parking for all such allowed vehicles, that the renter(s) shall utilize. The owner shall
ensure that the parking limitations are included in short-term rental agreements and in all related
advertisements.

L. Outdoor amplified sound is prohibited.

M. Quiet hours shall be from nine p.m. to seven a.m. The host shall ensure that the quiet
hours are included in rental agreements and in all advertisements.

N. Pets, if allowed by owner, shall be secured on the property at all times. Continual barking
or other nuisances created by unattended pets are prohibited.

0. Trash bins and recycling storage containers shall be required for all permitted short-term
rentals and such bins and containers shall not be stored within public view.

P. Outdoor fires are prohibited anywhere on the property during short-term rental stays. .

Q. Short-term rental activity is subject to, and the owner shall comply with, Inyo County
Code Chapter 3.20, Transient Occupancy Tax. The owner shall include the transient occupancy
tax registration certificate number on all short-term rental agreements, and in any related
advertisements.



R. An address sign compliant with Chapter 18.75, the county’s sign ordinance, with a clearly
legible, from the street, address number shall be included on each short-term rental. (Ord. 1290
§ 20, 2022; Ord. 1251 § 3, 2020; Ord. 1224 § 1, 2018.)

S. Any short-term rental permit issued pursuant to this chapter (DATE) is a three-year
permit based on a review pursuant to 18.73.060. .

SECTION II. Section 18.73.040 of the Inyo County Code is amended to add Subsection
18.78.040 A.11 as follows:

“18.73.040 A.11 Proof of insurance applicable to short term rental activities on the dwelling in
which short-term rentals are permitted.

SECTION III Chapter 18.73 of the Inyo County Code is amended to add Section
18.73.060 as follows:
“18.73.060 Renewal Process.

A. Any short-term rental permit is a three-year permit, subject to, but not guaranteed, a
renewal(s). Except for those permits revoked in accordance with other provisions of this chapter,
short-term rental permits shall automatically expire three-years after their issuance, plus the time
to conduct a renewal review, unless the Planning Director issues a notice of permit renewal. The
renewal review period shall begin [insert month] during the third year of the permit. A short-
term rental permit may be renewed in accordance with this section.

B. An application for renewal of a short-term rental permit shall be filed with the planning
director in the manner prescribed by the director, at least 45 calendar days before expiration of
the permit, along with any applicable renewal fee. If any of the documentation and information
supplied by the property owner pursuant to chapter 18.73.040 has changed since the issuance of
the first permit, the owner shall submit updated information and documentation with the
application for renewal and shall provide any other information the planning director may
require. If the owner fails to timely submit the renewal application, any additional information
and all associated fees, the short-term rental permit may not be timely renewed, and operations
shall be suspended unless/until the renewal is approved.

C. If the renewal application is incomplete, or if the planning director determines that
additional information is required, the director will send notice to the owner in accordance with
section 18.73.040(B) listing the items or information to be provided. The owner shall have 15
business days from the postmark or, if the applicant consents to email notice, email date of the
notice to submit the listed items. If the owner fails to timely provide the items or information
listed in a notice, then the renewal application will be denied as incomplete.

D. Upon the time filing of a renewal application and of any missing or supplemental
information under section C above, the short-term rentals under the existing permit may continue
operating until the director has made a final determination on the application, unless the permit
is otherwise revoked or suspended pursuant to this chapter.



E. A permit shall be renewed by the director upon determination that the short-term rental
meets the standards for grant of the application under chapters 18.73.030 and 18.73.040 and none
of the conditions for denial set forth below are present:

Grounds for Denial:

1. The maximum number of short-term rental permits allowed pursuant to section
18.73.030(A) has been reached at the time the application has been deemed complete by the
planning director. This includes a maximum number that has been adjusted by the Board during
the term of the short-term rental permit.

2. Any of the circumstances outlined in section 18.73.070(A)(3).

3. The short-term rental has had more than three verifiable violation complaints.

4. The building or property where the short-term rental is located has active violations to
any State or County code.

5.

F. The planning director shall specify in writing the reason(s) for any denial of the renewal

and shall send the written decision to the permittee in accordance with section 18.73.040(B) with
an explanation that the decision shall become final in ten calendar days of the postmark or, if the
applicant consents to email notice, email date of the decision. unless the owner submits a
completed appeal form to the department requesting a hearing, within ten calendar days of the
postmarked or emailed decision.

SECTION 1V. Section 18.73.070 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to
read as follows:

“18.73.070 Permit Modification and Revocation.

A. The planning director may initiate proceedings to revoke or modify a short-term rental
permit as follows:
1. Basis for Initiation. The planning director shall have the sole authority to determine if the

violation(s) or complaint(s) stemming from a short-term rental are severe enough to merit the
initiation of modification or revocation proceedings. There is no minimum number of complaints
or violations that must occur before the Planning Director may begin modification or revocation
proceedings. A single violation or complaint, if deemed to be serious enough, may be the basis
for modification or revocation proceedings.

2. Notice and Hearing. Upon determination by the Planning Director to begin proceedings
under this section, the Planning Director shall schedule a hearing before the Planning
Commission. A notice of the hearing shall be mailed via first class US mail to the owner at the
address provided in the short-term rental application. The notice shall specify the reason(s) for
the modification or revocation and the term(s) of the short-term rental permit that the operator
has violated. The notice shall also designate a time and place for the hearing before the Planning
Commission. The hearing shall occur no sooner than fifteen and no later than forty-five calendar
days following the mailing date of the notice.

1. Parties may, at their election, consent in writing to receipt of documents via email.

3. Conduct of Hearing



i. Both parties shall be provided the opportunity to present oral evidence at the hearing via
direct and cross examination.

il. Parties are encouraged to submit to the Planning Commission written briefing
summarizing their arguments and evidence prior to the hearing. Any party who provides briefing
or evidence to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing must also simultaneously serve
such documents on the other party to the hearing. Written briefing or evidence must be submitted
48 hours prior to the hearing.

1ii. Failure to appear at the hearing shall constitute a waiver of any objections or claims
advanced by either party.

iv. The Planning Director shall bear the burden of proving by a preponderance of the
evidence that the short-term rental has been operated in violation of the permit.

v. The rules of evidence shall not apply to the hearing; provided, however, that the Chair of
the Planning Commission may refuse to receive any evidence if its probative value is
substantially outweighed by a danger of unfair prejudice, confusing the issues, undue delay,
wasting time, or needlessly presenting cumulative evidence.

vi. All parties to the hearing may be represented by an attorney.

vii. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall vote on the issue of
revocation. The decision shall be based on a majority of the Commissioners who are present.
Should the Planning Commission vote to revoke the short-term rental permit, the Planning
Commission shall make one or more of the following findings:

1. The approval of the short-term rental permit was obtained by fraud or through the
provision of false information;

2. The short-term rental activity has been or is being conducted in violation of this chapter
or other applicable law;

3. The conditions of approval have been or are being violated,;

4, The short-term rental activity is occurring in a manner that constitutes a public nuisance
as defined in Section 22.08.010 of this Code;

5. Ownership of more than one parcel on which short-term rentals are permitted, non-

payment of property taxes for the parcel on which the short-term rental is located, or non-
payment of Transient Occupancy Tax shall in itself be an automatic revocation of all of the
owner’s short-term rental permit(s).

4. Notice of Decision. A written notice of the Planning Commission’s decision shall be
prepared and mailed to the owner at the address specified in the application for approval within
30 business days of the close of the hearing. The notice shall contain a statement of the basis for
the decision and the facts upon which the decision was made as well as a statement directing the
owner to immediately cease using the property for short-term rentals, and that failure to cease
such use may be subject to further legal action and/or enforcement proceedings, including, but
not limited to, an administrative penalty of no less than the dollar amount of the nightly rental
rate of the property for each day the short-term rental is advertised and/or operated in violation
of this chapter, or as permitted by Section 1.20.010 of this code, whichever is more, to the
maximum extent allowed by law.

5. Award of monetary penalties. The Planning Director may request that the Planning
Commission impose financial penalties on the operator of the short-term rental. If the Planning
Director requests financial penalties, the Notice of Hearing shall include a statement to that effect
and the Planning Director shall provide to the operator all evidence on which he or she will base
the request and the precise amount sought at least 5 business days prior to the hearing. Any



penalties awarded by the Planning Commission shall not exceed $5,000. For each subsequent
permit revocation for the same operator, the maximum possible penalty shall increase by $5,000.

B. Warning Letters. The planning director or his or her designee may, in lieu of commencing
formal revocation proceedings, send the operator of the short-term rental a warning letter
informing the operator of any complaints or violations pertaining to the short-term rental and
demanding immediate correction. The planning director is not obligated to send any warning
letters prior to commencing revocation proceedings. The planning director shall have sole
discretion to determine whether a complaint or violation merits a warning letter or the initiation
of formal modification / revocation proceedings.

SECTION V. Section 18.73.080 of the Inyo County Code is amended in its entirety to read as
follows:

“18.73.080  Violation and Complaint.

Nuisance complaints regarding short-term rental activity on a parcel permitted pursuant to this
chapter will generally be directed to the owner or owner’s designated representative identified
in the short-term rental permit and the house rules posted on site and sent to property owners
within 300-feet of the short-term rental. The owner, or designated representative of short-term
rentals shall be responsible for contacting the tenant to correct the problem, including visiting
the site if necessary, to ensure that the issue is been corrected. The owner or owner’s designated
representative must provide a written report to the Inyo County Planning Department within
three-days of being informed of the complaint. This report must detail the actions that the
operator took to respond to the complaint and the changes, procedures, or rules that the operator
has implemented to ensure that complaints of a similar nature do not arise again. Failure to
respond to complaints or provide the required written report to the Planning Department shall be
considered a violation of this section, and shall be subject to the provisions of 18.73.070.

SECTION VL Severability

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to
be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such a
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The Board of
Supervisors hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each and every section,
subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to
whether any portion of this ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or
unconstitutional.

SECTION VIIL Effective date.

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its adoption.
Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption thereof, a summary of this Ordinance
shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed and published in the County
of Inyo, State of California in accordance with Government Code Section 25124(b). The Clerk



of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish a summary of this Ordinance together
with the names of the Board voting for and against same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this XXXX by the following vote of the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Chairperson

ATTEST: Nate Greenberg
Clerk to the Board

By:

Darcy Ellis, Assistant

10



Planning Department Phone: (760) 878-0263

168 North Edwards Street FAX: (760) 872-2712

POSt Offl ce Drawer L E-Mail: inyoplanning@inyocounty.us
Independence, California 93526

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7 (Informational)

PLANNING COMMISSION

MEETING DATE: February 28, 2024

SUBJECT: Inyo County 2023 General Plan Annual

Progress Report and General Plan and
Housing Element overviews

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Staff has prepared the County’s 2023 General Plan Annual Progress Report (Attached)
which includes the Housing Element Implementation Report (Attached). This report is
required to be presented to local legislative bodies prior to being submitted to the State.
Along with this, staff will provide a review of what a General Plan is and how it is used by
local governments (Attached).

PROJECT INFORMATION
Supervisorial District: County-wide
Recommended Action: Receive a presentation from staff regarding the
Inyo County General Plan, Housing Element and
the 2023 Annual Progress Report
Alternatives: 1.) Do not receive a presentation from staff
regarding the Inyo County 2023 General Plan or
Annual Progress Report
Project Planner: Cathreen Richards, Planning director
BACKGROUND

Government Code Section 65400 requires that local agencies prepare a General Plan
Annual Progress Report (APR). The purpose of the document is to report on the County’s
progress in implementing its General Plan. The document is being provided to the Planning



Commission and Board of Supervisors for their review. Subsequently, it will be submitted
to the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and the Department of Housing
and Community Development (HCD).

STAFF ANALYSIS

The General Plan is the County’s constitution and guiding vision. Upkeep and maintenance
of the General Plan is a continuous process. The County implements the General Plan’s
vision on a day-to-day basis in its many projects and strives to include the public in the
decision-making process. The County’s General Plan and Amendments can be found at:
https://www.inyocounty.us/services/planning-department/inyo-county-general-plan

The County provided leadership and participated in many planning activities in 2023 as
identified in the attached report. It continued its building permit and project review
responsibilities to further the General Plan’s goals, policies, programs, and implementation
measures. During 2023, the County reviewed more building permits for housing units (27)
than it had in the past 10-years. It also granted 10 Certificates of Occupancy for housing
units in 2023. The County also revised its adopted 6™ and Cycle Housing Element Update,
and it was certified by the State Department of Housing and Community Development in
October 2023. The 2021 Revised Housing Element can be found at the above link under
2021 Housing Element Update.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The APR is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) per Guidelines Section 15306.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Provide comments on the draft APR.
ATTACHMENTS

e Draft Inyo County 2022 Draft General Plan Annual Progress Report
e 2021 Revised Housing Element, Implementation Report
e What is a General Plan?



Attachment — 2023 General Plan Progress Report



General Plan Annual Progress Report
2023

County of Inyo

Prepared by the Inyo County Planning Department



Table of Contents

Page
L INEFOAUCHION......ccmiiiitcnctnt ettt s s s s s s s s s n s sesasn s e saresnsasas 1
IL. Plans, Projects, and AcCOMPlISHMENLS ..........coevevreruerereeseireennieresserinessnersssseraessesennes 2
III.  General Plan Elements..........cisnsmmminmisnmmsmmmisanaamaneasismemsgs 22

Government EIEMENt ......c..ccciiiiiiriinneierinsiesssssassneesssessssssisssssssnssssssssnansessss 23

Land Use Elementuismsssisimssnsssaiivissssissisaviiosiinsiissisassisassisiss 23
Economic Development Element ...........c.coveeeririerireirereisreeneressisseseraesesnens 23
HousSing EIEMENt. ........cccovererrieeiirtenreieriesse s ssesssesasse s s sassssnssesnans 24
Circulation EIement ...........ccovirveiminniiiniinisninisissssssssssssssssssssssansssnsns 24
Conservation/Open Space Element...........cccccvveerceeenenresennecrnsnesseesseesnanens 25
Public Safety Element..........cccccevervieieiverienierecrerreseeeseeassneseesessnesessessessenes 25
IV.  General Plan and Zoning Code Update .........ccccovuerueiernrerrerreniiuminsussesnereissssassaesanes 25
V. L0V T4 LT3 T | s e Y e e O SU 26

Appendix A Government Code Section 65400
Appendix B Housing and Community Development Department Annual Element Progress
Report Forms



Introduction

This report has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of Government Code Section 65400.
Guidance for preparation of the report is provided by the Governor’s Office of Planning and
Research (OPR).

The purpose of the document is to report on Inyo County’s progress in implementing its General
Plan. The document will be provided to the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors for
their review and submitted to the Office of Planning and Research (OPR) and the Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD).

Background

The County adopted a comprehensive update to the General Plan on December 11, 2001, and has
amended the Plan on several occasions since. The planning process for the update took over four
years, many public hearings and meetings, and substantial effort on the part of staff, the Board of
Supervisors, the Planning Commission, local organizations and interest groups, and the general
public.

The Plan replaced, reformatted, and/or updated a number of older General Plan Elements and other
planning documents that had been adopted over the years. In addition to the many working
documents, staff reports, and outreach materials, the Plan resulted in the following major
documents that are utilized on a day-to-basis in the County’s planning processes:

° General Plan Summary

o Background Report

) Goals and Policies Report

° Land Use and Circulation Diagrams
o Environmental Impact Report (EIR)

The Inyo County General Plan received awards of excellence from local chapters of the American
Planning Association in 2001. The policy document and diagrams are available on

the Planning Department’s website at the following link:
https://www.inyocounty.us/sites/default/files/202002/GP%20Goals%20and%20Policy%20Repor
t%2012.2001.pdf

Informational Document

This document is a reporting document, and does not create or alter policy. The content is provided
for informational purposes only, and is exempt from the requirements of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Guidelines Section 15306.

Organization

After this introduction, a summary of projects and issues addressed over the last year is provided,
and then each General Plan element is addressed. Following these topics, the County’s planned
General Plan and Zoning Ordinance update are addressed. Appendix A includes Government
Code Section 65400. Appendix B includes the HCD reporting forms.

Page| 1



IL. Plans, Projects, and Accomplishments

During 2023 the County processed numerous projects and participated in a variety of planning
programs. The following summaries provide a brief overview of these projects and programs and
are not intended to be exhaustive.

Building Permits

Four-Hundred and Ninety-Four total building permits were received by the Building and
Safety Department in 2023. Sixty-five of these were reviewed by the Planning Department
for zoning consistency issues. This is twelve less than were reviewed in 2022. Twenty-
seven of these permits were for new housing units, 11 more than in 2022. This is the most
permits the County has had for housing units in many years. Building permits were applied
for 9 new single-family homes (5 more than in 2022), and 8 new manufactured homes (5
more than 2022) and 10 accessory dwelling units (ADU) (1 more than 2022). Eight of the
ADU applications were for conversions or additions to garages for ADUs. There were also
twenty-seven employee housing units, applied for under three of the manufactured home
permits, 23 were for units at Furnace Creek and 4 were for units on DWP land located
along Gorge Road. Nine Certificates of Occupancy (completed projects) were reported to
have been granted by the Building and Safety Department in 2023 for residential projects.
Six were for single family homes and 3 were for manufactured homes.

Building Permits Reviewed by Planning Department
2013-2023

120 -

97 101

100 -
80

60 1

40 - —
20 -+ -

o : : : R S . e : :
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Page |2



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Building Permits for Housing Units
2013-2023

Planning Permits

The Planning Department also processed a variety of landuse permits during 2023, including
conditional use permits (CUP), variances, subdivisions, and associated environmental reviews.
The breakdown in applications received is as follows:

7 Conditional Use Permits

3 General Plan Amendment

1 Zoning Reclassification

1 Zone Text Amendments

3 Renewable Energy Permits (solar)
2 Reclamation Plan updates

1 Appeal

During the past year, the Planning Commission agendas included the following application types:

1 Zone Reclassification

2 General Plan Amendments

1 Conditional Use Permit Amendment

2 Mining Reclamation Plan Amendments

2 Renewable Energy Permits

1 Appeal of Revocation — Hosted Short-term Rental Permit

Page | 3



Planning Permits Received 2013-2023

90 — =
80 -
70 +
60 -
50 -
40 -+
30
20 +—4=2T—
10 -

48

-30

18
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Of the projects reviewed by the Planning Commission, 3 projects were also presented to the Board
of Supervisors. Thirty less applications were received by the Planning Department in 2023 than
were in 2022 (48 in 2022 and 18 in 2023). This is quite a decline in the short term, however, there
have been years with similarly low numbers in the past. Staff expects that this decline is temporary
(some of it relates to the moratorium on short-term rentals) and the numbers will go back up.
Several larger projects, with longer time commitments, have also been underway including several
that are required by the newly updated Housing Element, including but not limited to code changes
related to SB-9 subdivision and multiple units, updates to the Density Bonus ordinance, and the
addition of an Environmental Justice Element to the General Plan.

Projects Reviewed by the Planning Commission During 2023
The following applications were reviewed by the Planning Commission and/or Board of
Supervisors during the past year:

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT (GPA) -2023-01/INYO COUNTY - VACANT LANDS
AND HOUSING OPPORTUNITY AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION (ZR)- 2023-
01/INYO COUNTY - VACANT LANDS AND HOUSING OPPORTUNITY -

With the help of a consultant, HELIX Environmental Planning Inc., a vacant lands inventory and
a zoning and General Plan review of properties located in the County was conducted. This
information was used to identify parcels land that are appropriate for zone and General Plan
designation changes to promote affordable housing opportunities primarily by increasing
allowable residential density. Eight total parcels were selected: three in the Bishop area, one in
Independence and four in Lone Pine. They were then evaluated under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and were recommended for General Plan and zoning
designation changes. This project was not reccommended by the Planning Commission and was not
approved as presented to the Board of Supervisors.

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 2023-02/HOUSING ELEMENT REVISED - Staff
prepared a revision to the 2021 adopted Housing Element, which removed and replaced two of the
Regional Housing Allocation Number (RHNA) site parcels. This revision was required for the

Page | 4



County to maintain compliance with State Housing Law as the two replaced parcels required zone
changes that were not approved. The revised Housing Element was adopted by the Board of
Supervisors and subsequently certified by the Department of Housing and Community
Development.

AMENDMENT TO CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 1994-2 BROWN’S SUPPLY;
RECLAMATION PLAN 1994-2 BROWN’S SUPPLY- The applicant applied to amend
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 1994-2 and Reclamation Plan (REC) 1994-2, proposing to remove
the east pit of 4.97 acres within the existing mining boundary and update both the CUP and REC
to restrict future mining operation to the west pit and add storage of foreign materials not generated
on site. The reduction in mining boundary and the additional storage made this update necessary
per Surface Mining and Reclamation Act (SMARA) and the County code.

AMENDMENT TO RECLAMATION PLAN 1997-6 INDEPENDENCE MS#118
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION- The applicant applied for an
amendment to Reclamation Plan 97-6 with permission from the Bureau of Land Management
(BLM). The California Department of Transportation proposed a minor revision of the condition
of approval #20, abandoning the well, in the approved plan at the Independence Pit MS #118.

RENEWABLE ENERGY PERMIT-2022-01/BARKER - The applicant applied for a
Renewable Energy Permit located on one parcel (APN: 038-330-46), in Trona, California. This
permit would allow the applicant to construct a proposed 1.2 megawatt (MW) photovoltaic solar
facility that uses approximately 2,300 single axis tracker solar panels. The project encompasses 5-
acres of pre-disturbed land.

RENEWABLE ENERGY PERMIT 2022-02/BARKER- The applicant, applied for a
Renewable Energy Permit located on three parcels (038-330-32, 33, 34), in Trona California. This
permit would allow the applicant to construct a proposed 3 megawatt (MW) photovoltaic solar
facility that uses approximately 6,000 single axis tracker solar panels. The project encompasses
15-acres of pre-disturbed land.

APPEAL 2023-01 REVOCATION OF HOSTED SHORT-TERM RENTAL PERMIT 2021-
06/COLLINS. The appellant submitted an appeal of the Planning Director decision to revoke
Short-term Rental Permit #2021-06/Collins. This decision was appealed to the Planning
Commission, per ICC Section 18.73.070. Staff recommended denial of the appeal.

Other Plans and Projects
The following discussion summarizes other projects which the County expended substantial efforts
in 2023.

State Model Water Efficiency Land Scape Ordinance

The State’s Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELQ) become effective to Inyo
County in 1993 and currently applies to the County by default since the County has not adopted
the State’s MWELO or a local ordinance. MWELO applies to new, rehabilitated, and existing
landscaping with the purpose of conserving water through approved landscape design and
landscape construction/installation approval. The creation and effectiveness of MWELO to the

Page | 5



County is derived from various statutes and legislative actions to include: Assembly Bill (AB) 325
(Clute, 1990); California Code of Regulations Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7; AB 2717 (Laird,
2004); AB 1881 (Laird, 2006); Government Code 65595(c)(1) (2007); Executive Order NO. B-
29-15 (2015); Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016); and 14 CCR section 18989.2 (2020). Although the
State’s MWELO applies the County by default, pursuant to 14 CCR section 18989.2 the County
is required to adopt an ordinance involving compliance with MWELO California Code of
Regulations Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 2.7sections 492.6(a)(3)(B), (C), (D), and (G) as amended
on September 2015. The County began annual reporting in 2015. In 2022 the County began
researching the requirements of MWELO and in 2023 began reviewing landscape applications
under the State’s MWELO requirements. Also, in 2023 the County began drafting a local Water
Landscape Efficient Ordinance (WELO) that incorporates the State’s MWELQ but provides
additional provisions for enforcement and penalties making the County’s WELO more restrictive
than the State’s MWELO. The draft ordinance is scheduled for a Planning Commission hearing
in February 2024 and if recommendation for approval is received the ordinance will then be
scheduled for Board of Supervisor approval in April 2024,

Senate Bill 9

Senate Bill 9 (SB9) Two-Unit Development and/or Urban Lot Split

SB9 was signed by Governor Newsom on September 16, 2021 and became effective January 1,
2022 requiring ministerial approval of two-unit developments and urban lot splits within specific
single-family residential zones if certain requirements are met. In 2022 the County began
reviewing the requirements of SB9 and identifying the single-family residential zoned areas in
which SB9 can apply pursuant to the 2020 U.S. Census determined urbanized area within Inyo
County. The County then began drafting two separate ordinances to meet the requirements of
SB9. One draft ordinance is for applications associated with two-unit developments meeting the
SB9 requirements and will be incorporated into the County’s zoning ordinance under Title 18.
The second draft ordinance is for applications associated with urban lot splits meeting the SB9
requirements and will be incorporated into Title 17 — Subdivisions of the County Code. Both draft
ordinances are scheduled for Planning Commission hearing in March 2024, and if a
recommendation for approval is received the ordinance will then be scheduled for request of
approval by the Board of Supervisors in May 2024.

Environmental Justice Element

The County began preliminary work on the proposed Environment Justice Element of the General
Plan in 2022 to meet the requirements set out by the Department of Housing and Community
Development when certifying the County’s sixth cycle of the Housing Element Update. The
creation of the Environment Justice Element required a considerable amount of time and effort as
it involved incorporating goals, policies and implementations found in other areas of the General
Plan, and creating goals, policies and implementations relevant to the objectives and goals
mandated for the Environmental Justice Element. A draft was finalized in the Fall of 2023 and
notice to the tribes about the proposed Environmental Justice Element adoption into the General
Plan and the opportunity to request consultation were sent via certified mail on November 15, 2023
as required pursuant to Senate Bill 18. The deadline for tribal requests for consultation is February
13, 2024. Following any requests for consultation received by a tribe the County plans to take the
Environmental Justice Element to Planning Commission in the summer of 2024 and if
recommended for approval by the Planning Commission, the Environmental Justice Element will

Page | 6



be presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval in the Fall of 2024.

2021 Housing Element Update

The County’s General Plan Housing Element was due for an update in 2021. The County began
preliminary work on the update during the fall of 2020. This included securing a Local Early
Action Planning (LEAP) grant from the State. The County expended a tremendous amount of time
and effort in updating its Housing Element to meet all of the new requirements. With virtually no
help, or guidance from HCD (besides references to statutes), the County addressed the new
legislation and struggled through the required new Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH)
section. Once substantive comments and edits were received from HCD the Update was completed
and approved in August 2022. When two RHNA sites that were identified in the Housing Element
were not approved for zone changes, planning staff had to find new parcels and revise the adopted
Housing Element. This was completed, re-adopted and finally recertified by the state in October
2023

Zoning Code/General Plan Update Housing Element

Once the Housing Element Update was completed, updates to County’s Zoning Code were made
to begin implementing the changes set forth in the General Plan Update. This included adding
multi-family housing as a by right use in the County’s Central Business Zone and eliminating the
requirement for a Conditional Use Permit for multi-family housing with over 15-units. Staff
continues to work on zoning code updates related to the Housing Element Update including SB2
and Density Bonus ordinances.

Senate Bill 2 (SB-2) Planning Grant for Affordable Housing

SB2 was adopted by the State Legislature in 2017 to provide a permanent source of funding to help
local jurisdictions provide affordable housing. In 2019, funding was directed at planning assistance
that helps to achieve affordable housing goals. The grant funding was allocated by an “over the
counter”” non-competitive means to all eligible jurisdictions in the State. The county submitted an
application for this funding. Since Inyo County is considered a ‘small county’ with regard to the SB2
funding allocations, the award was $160,000. The County secured the SB2 grant and a contractor
and began working on the project in fall 2020. The contractor and County identified parcels in the
County that may be appropriate for re-designating for higher density residential use and the Draft
Ad Min EIR was prepared and went through a 45-day review and comment period. This project went
to the Planning Commission for a hearing in March 2023. The Planning Commission did not provide
a recommendation to the Board. The item went to Board of Supervisor’s for a hearing in May 2023
and was not adopted as presented by staff.

Short-term Rentals

In 2006 the County determined that short-term vacation rentals are not permitted within the
Residential Zoning Districts. The County began to investigate if this decision should be revisited,
and if so, how it might proceed. During 2016, the Board conducted several workshops, and directed
staff to begin public outreach. Public workshops were conducted in 2017 and Draft regulations
were prepared. In February 2018 an ordinance was approved by the Board of Supervisors allowing
for the short term rental of residential properties with proper permitting. The County began
approving permits for short term rentals in April 2018. During 2019 staff reviewed the successes
and issues related to short-term rental permitting. The results of this review were presented to the

Page | 7



Board of Supervisors, along with suggestions to update the short-term rental ordinance at 3
workshops. Based on public input and recommendations from the Board, updates to the short-term
rental ordinance were prepared by staff and subsequently adopted by the Board. These changes
included removing the availability of non-hosted short-term rental permits. Currently the short-
term rental ordinance is being reviewed again for possible changes. In late 2022, the Board of
Supervisors put a moratorium on short-term rentals in the County. This was extended twice to end
in November 2024. Currently, staff is preparing a new ordinance for the Boards approval in Spring
2024.

Cannabis

In 2016, California voters enacted Proposition 64, which permits and regulates recreational use of
marijuana in California. Several statutes to regulate medical marijuana were passed in the 2015
legislative session — Assembly Bill (AB) 266 (Bonta, 2015), AB 243 (Wood, 2015), and Senate
Bill (SB) 643 (McGuire, 2015) — becoming effective January 1, 2016. The County also included
Advisory Ballot Measures G, H, and I in the 2016 election: Measure G inquired whether the voters
support medical commercial cannabis businesses, H inquired whether the voters support
recreational cannabis businesses, and I was for a tax on cannabis businesses. All three measures
were decided in favor cannabis businesses and taxation. The County continues to monitor
implementation of the legislation. The County worked throughout 2017 on cannabis regulations
and adopted them in January 2018. In December 2018 the first Cannabis Business Licenses were
awarded in Inyo County and subsequent CUPs began being processed in 2019 and have continued
through 2023.

Dark Skies — Lighting

In the 2002 update of the County’s General Plan a policy relating to lighting was include, under
the Conservation and Open Space Element - Visual Resources 1.6 Control of Light and Glare. It
states: The County shall require that all outdoor light fixtures including street lighting, externally
illuminated signs, advertising displays, and billboards use low-energy, shielded light fixtures
which direct light downward (i.e., lighting shall not emit higher than a horizontal level) and which
are fully shielded. Where public safety would not be compromised, the County shall encourage
the use of low-pressure sodium lighting for all outdoor light fixtures. This policy was never
implemented through the zoning code as language was never included in the County’s zoning code
for it. Due to interest from the community and members of the Board of Supervisors, County staff
began a process to evaluate a possible lighting ordinance for the County. Three public outreach
meetings and two Board workshops were held on the subject in 2018. The project continued into
2020, but with minimal attention due to Covid and lack of staff. This project was picked back up
in 2021 and a Draft Ordinance has been completed. A recommendation from the Planning
Commission was obtained and the Board approved it in April 2022, This program was
implemented and monitored during 2023.

Community Plans for Charleston View/Tecopa

Based on interest from local residents, the County embarked on preparation of Community Plans
for Tecopa and Charleston View in Southeast Inyo County in 2015. Public meetings were
conducted in both Charleston View and Tecopa in 2016 to kick-off the project and vision the Plan.
In addition, background reports were developed for each planning area. Work continued on the
plans in 2017 with visioning work. In December 2018 Draft Community Plans were presented to

Page | 8



the communities of Charleston View and Tecopa. The Plans were well received with a few
suggestions for minor changes. The County continued to try to identify and pursue grants for
environmental analysis and implementation of the Plans during 2023.

Olancha Cartago Corridor Study — The County was awarded a Caltrans Sustainable Communities
Grant to study a section of U.S. 395 that is currently planned to be bypassed as part of the Caltrans
US 395 Olancha-Cartago four lane project. The Olancha Bypass Corridor Study (OBCS) will
include both 1) a portion of US 395 from the current intersection of SR 190 northward to just past
Cartago that is proposed to be relinquished to the County and 2) the portion of US 395 from the
current intersection with SR 190 south to the southern end of the bypass that will become part of
SR 190. Work began on the study in 2018 that included the first public outreach meeting. This
project continued through and was completed in 2019. The county has continued to research grants
and various programs to implement the opportunities identified in the Study.

West-wide Energy Corridors

This project, approved in 2009, involves numerous federal agencies led by the BLM. Pursuant to
a settlement agreement, the federal agencies are conducting reviews of the approved corridors. In
2016, a Corridor Study and regional reviews were released. The County provided input regarding
the Region 1 Review and continues to monitor the program. In 2019, the Region 5 Review took
place. The county provided numerous comments on Region 5 as it spans the length of Inyo County
along the I-395 corridor. The Region 5 review continued into 2020 and the County participated in
stakeholder meetings and providing comments. At the end of 2020 the Draft Report was released.
The County has prepared draft comments and sent them to the Agencies in early 2021. The County
will continue to monitor and comment on the Regional Reports as they go through the process to
adoption.

Haiwee Geothermal Leasing Area (HGLA)

A DEIS for the HGLA was submitted by the BLM for comments beginning in 2009 (Notice of
Intent) through 2012 (DEIS). It evaluated five alternatives to address the potential environmental
impacts of opening approximately 22,805-acres of BLM managed federal mineral estate for
geothermal energy exploration and development and leasing and for three individual leasing
proposals covering approximately 4,460-acres of federal mineral estate for geothermal energy
testing and development. A supplement to the DEIS and proposed amendment to the CDCA Plan,
was released in 2019. It was been prepared primarily to update both documents to be consistent
with changes to landuse designations and resource management strategies based on the Desert
Renewable Energy Conservation Plan (DRECP). The total area under review (22,805-acres) and
proposed leases (4,460-acres) are exactly the same as what was previously evaluated. The County
reviewed the supplemental document with regard to comments it sent in 2009 and 2012 and sent
additional comments in 2019. The County continued to monitor possible implementation of the
DEIS in 2023.

Owens Valley and Haiwee Pump-back Storage Projects

During 2019, Premium Energy Holding LLC applied to the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) for preliminary permits to study hydro-electric pump back storage projects
for the North Owens Valley, and Haiwee dam areas. A preliminary permit is issued for up to four
years. It does not authorize construction, but it maintains priority of an application for license while

Page | 9



the applicant studies the site and prepares to apply for a license. The applicant is required to submit
periodic reports on the status of its studies. The preliminary permit it is not necessary to apply for
or receive a license. Many comments have been submitted regarding these applications. The
Owens Valley proposal does not appear to be moving forward and Haiwee is. The County
continued to monitor this proposal in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and will continue to do so in 2024
and provide comments at each opportunity.

Mining

Pursuant to the Surface Mining and Land Reclamation Act (SMARA), the County continued its
oversight activities to encourage production and conservation of mineral resources while
minimizing associated environmental impacts. Staff has continued to amend County policy as the
impacts of changes to SMARA that were approved by the California Legislature and Governor in
2016 are continuing to be implemented. Staff is responsible for the inspection and administration
of reclamation policy for approximately 79 SMARA mines. Staff has noted a continuation from
last year of a general increase in activity at many of the County’s local surface mines during 2019.
The increase in mining activities in 2019 and 2020 continued into 2021 through 2023. Also during
2023, many of the mines that were behind in fee payments were brought into compliance.

Brownfields Grant

In 2011 Inyo County entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Nye, Esmeralda,
Lincoln, and White Pine counties of Nevada for the Environmental Protection Agency Brownfields
Coalition Assessment Grant to conduct environmental site assessments and area-wide planning in
support of renewable energy, transmission, and economic development in the vicinity of identified
Brownfields sites. A subsequent grant was obtained, and the Coalition was expanded to include
Esmeralda County. In 2018 the Duckwater Shoshone Tribe joined the Coalition. The County
continued to participate in the Coalition during 2018. A site that was reviewed under a Brownfield
grant funded Phase I environmental assessment in 2016 and a Phase II environmental assessment
in 2017 was able to be successfully developed into a Grocery Outlet store with plans for the
remainder of the property to be developed into the Inyo County consolidated office building. Also
in 2018, a revolving loan and fund grant, applied for in 2017, was awarded to the coalition. The
coalition completed updates to its website and to the Area Wide Plan. The county continued to
participate in the Brownfields program during 2023.

Yucca Mountain Repository Assessment Office

Funding for development of the Yucca Mountain Repository was terminated by the Obama
Administration, consequently eliminating the funding to all Affected Units of Local Government.
Staff continues to monitor litigation and other activities. In 2016, the County reviewed and
provided input regarding the Final Supplemental EIS for groundwater, which largely responded to
the County’s previous input. The County has continued through 2023 to support groundwater
monitoring in its southeast area to provide data for the project and monitor the Yucca Mountain
program.

Desert Renewable Energy Conservation Plan (DRECP)

The DRECP covers the Mojave and Colorado deserts to provide binding, long-term endangered
species permit assurances and facilitate renewable energy project review and approvals. The
DRECP planning area includes portions of Inyo County: roughly in the Owens Valley to just north
of Independence, the Panamint Valley, Death Valley, and other southeast portions of the County.

Page | 10



The County has been participating in the project since the late 2000s, which was to have been a
General Conservation Plan/Natural Communities Conservation Plan, In 2014, a phased approach
was taken to the DRECP whereby the Bureau of Land Management’s (BLM) Proposed Land Use
Plan Amendment was separated out from the NCCP component. The Final EIS and Proposed
Decision were released in late 2015, which the County protested. The County approved a
Programmatic Agreement regarding cultural resources related to the Plan in early 2016, and
reviewed BLM’s recirculation of the Areas of Environmental Concern from the draft DRECP. The
Record of Decision was issued later in 2016, which dismissed the County’s protest and
implemented the BLM’s DRECP components. In early 2017 the BLM published a Segregation
Notice for mineral entry on California Desert National Conservation Land. The County provided
comments on this action and continues to monitor DRECPactivities. In February 2018 a Presidential
Executive Order was noticed in the Federal Register instructing the BLM to begin a scoping
process for possible amendments to the DRECP. The notice specifically requested comments on
how land designations identified in the DRECP might affect the ability to develop solar, wind or
other renewable energy resources. The County evaluated and provided comments to the BLM
regarding this request. The county continued to monitor DRECP activities through 2023 and the
BLM is now looking at updating its renewable energy plans possibly including the DRECP.

Tribal Consultation Policy

In response to input from the Big Pine Tribe, the County developed a draft Tribal Consultation
Policy to guide its consultation efforts under Senate Bill 18 (Burton, 2004) and Assembly Bill 52
(Gatto, 2014). The County shared the draft Policy with local Tribes and conducted multiple
workshops in 2015 and 2016. The County approved the Policy in late 2016, and invited the Tribes
to consult regarding development of Tribe-specific agreements. The County continues to work
with the Tribes on establishing good communications and possible Tribal-specific agreements.

Coso Hay Ranch Water Export Project

The County approved a project in 2009 that pumps water from the Hay Ranch in the Rose Valley
to the Coso Geothermal plants at China Lake Air Weapons Naval Station. The County continued
to monitor pumping activities in 2023.

North Sierra Highway Corridor/Specific Plan

In 2015, Caltrans selected the County and the City of Bishop for a grant to prepare a Corridor Plan
for North Sierra Highway (generally between the Tri-County Fairgrounds and the Bishop Paiute
Palace on the north side of Bishop) in 2015. The County, City of Bishop, and the Bishop Paiute
Tribe worked with other interested parties in the Corridor to expand the scope of work to a Specific
Plan, and the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority pledged to provide financial support to assist doing
s0. In 2016, the County and its partners selected a consultant to assist in the planning process and
convened an Advisory Committee to assist with coordination between the many participating
agencies. Preliminary outreach commenced, existing conditions were assessed, and a visioning
was initiated. A Charrette was conducted to brainstorm ideas for the Plan, and a draft Plan is
anticipated in 2017. The Corridor Plan was completed in 2017. The specific plan has not been
completed and staff will continue to look for grants to fund its completion. During 2022 the plan
was consulted with to help Cal Trans with the Meadow Farms ADA project as the project area is
within the North Sierra Highway Plan area. The county continues to monitor and help Cal Trans
implement the ADA project.

Page | 11



DWP Solar Ranch

The County is monitoring DWP’s Solar Ranch proposal in the Southern Owens Valley, which
intends to develop approximately 200 megawatts of photovoltaic. DWP issued a Notice of
Preparation for the project in 2010, and the two locations and in 2013, DWP decided to develop a
third site, located south of Independence. The County provided input regarding the Draft EIR for
the project in 2013, and continues to monitor for any progress.

Zoning Code/General Plan Update

The County adopted a comprehensive General Plan update in 2001. One of the follow-up actions
directed in the 2001 General Plan was to update the Zoning Code, which is a component of the
Inyo County Code. Staff worked with Wildan in 2011 to prepare updated Zoning Code sections
and incorporated the Planning Commission’s and Board of Supervisors’ input into a
comprehensive Zoning Code update and prepared a related General Plan update, Staff received
direction from the Board regarding several issues related to the update in 2014, including code
enforcement, Digital 395, and special event permits. Environmental review is still waiting for a
funding source.

Endangered Species Coordination

The County has been monitoring the US Fish and Wildlife Service’s and the California Fish and
Wildlife’s endangered species listing work program. Most recently this included proposals for
listing of the Western Joshua Tree, which also received special protections from state legislation.

Eastern Sierra Small Business Resource Center (SBRC)

While the buildout of the Eastern Sierra Small Business Resource Center has gone more slowly
than expected, construction is currently underway and all plans are still in place for the future of
the SBRC. The Sierra Business Council is currently recruiting for a Director of the Eastern Sierra
Small Business Resource Center, whose role will be to arrange for training, technical assistance,
mentorship programs, access to capital, and other supports and services for small businesses and
entrepreneurs in the Eastern Sierra. In 2023, the SBRC held one event, which was a workshop for
employers and a job fair, attended by about 40 people. We expect buildout to be complete and the
Sierra Business Council to take possession of the building and begin staffing in Spring or Summer
2024.

Lone Pine Housing Efforts

The County of Inyo successfully purchased .5 acres of land in Lone Pine, California, for the
purpose of incentivizing the development of housing. The land was declared surplus by the Inyo
County Board of Supervisors in early 2023 and was listed as a surplus property as required by the
state Surplus Lands Act. No affordable housing developer took possession of the property, so the
County is currently in the process of seeking a broker with experience recruiting multi-family
housing developers to help market the property. Up to 8 units may be possible on the parcel. The
County continues to seek opportunities to leverage private land for the creation of new housing,
while working with LADWP to identify opportunities for future land divestment.

Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)

Inyo County received an award of $490,685 through the Permanent Local Housing Allocation.
Beginning in early 2024, Inyo County in partnership with Mammoth Lakes Housing will offer a

Page | 12



low-interest loan program for low-to-moderate income homeowners in need of repairs on their
single family homes, or mobile homes set on a permanent foundation, and owners of multi-family
rental properties where at least half of tenants are low income households under 60% AMI; and
low interest loans for the development of ADUs and JADUs for long-term rental, with up to 20%
of the loan forgivable if the homeowner can show that the ADU has been rented for at least 5 years
to a tenant with income under 60% AMI and 30% of the loan forgivable if the ADU was rented
for at least 5 years to a tenant with income under 30% AML.

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Prototypes Program

Inyo County hired Design Path Studios, an architectural firm from Encinitas, CA to develop 12
ADU and single-family home full design sets ranging in size from 306 square feet to 1500 square
feet. These pre-approved architectural designs will reduce the cost of housing and ADU
development and streamline the permitting process for homeowners that choose to use them.
Initial design sets were presented and approved by the Board of Supervisors, final designs should
be in place by March 2024 at the latest.

Silver Peaks

In Partnership with Visionary Home Builders and Mammoth Lakes Housing, Inyo County helped
to develop and submit an application for HCD’s MHP Super NOFA for approximately $19 million
to build a 72 unit affordable housing apartment complex in Bishop. The MHP application for our
region was not funded for the third time. Visionary Home Builders is now looking at alternative
financing options.

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy CEDS

Inyo County, Mono County and Alpine County successfully completed the Eastern Sierra region’s
first ever Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) in October, 2023. The region’s
CEDS was submitted to and accepted by the Economic Development Administration (EDA) and
will allow the region to become eligible for federal funding for economic development projects.

Inyo County Visitor Website Updates

In 2023, Inyo County continued to build on the much-lauded and highly visited tourism-aimed
website: www.inyocountyvisitor.com. This website provides information for visitors on the many
quaint small towns throughout the County and generally showcases many of the County’s
superlatives and scenic wonders, including: Mt. Whitney, the highest peak in the contiguous
United States; Badwater Basin in Death Valley National Park, the lowest point in the Western
Hemisphere; the oldest living thing in the Ancient Bristlecone Pine Forest; and the unique
geological formations of the Alabama Hills, which has been designated as a National Scenic Area.
The site includes information on Leave No Trace principles, stunning video and photography from
our snow-capped mountains to rippling sand dunes, and also serves double duty as the County’s
Film Commission online resource, providing information on permitting, popular filming locations,
local rules and regulations, and contact information for local businesses and experts who can
provide services to film crews.

Building a Strong Film Commission

In 2023, Inyo County renewed its contract with a new Film Commissioner, who has made great
strides in making critical film industry contacts and working with local agencies, as well as the

Page | 13



USFS, BLM, and Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, on a streamlined permitting
process. The Film Commissioner is also busy building up the aforementioned Film Commission
section of www.inyocountyvisitor.com, with the plan to move the content — which now includes
photo libraries, a list of local businesses and professionals, permitting information, and even a
feature to add yourself'to a list of available “extras” in Inyo County — to its own domain. In addition
to promoting and advertising Inyo County as a premier film destination, the Film Commissioner
also represents Inyo County on the Film Liaisons in California Statewide (FLICS) board of
directors. Inquiries from film, TV, and photography productions are growing in frequency as a
result of these various efforts.

2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP)

This project involves the development and selection of transportation projects that are then
programmed in specific amounts and program years for the next five-year funding cycle. The
development of this program requires local and regional coordination and is based on State
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funding. STIP funding has been on the decline
statewide. The Inyo County STIP shares are modestly out of the negative this 2024 cycle ($2.742
million) after many years due to Inyo County’s long-term commitment to improve the safety along
the Eastern Sierra corridor, along with its MOU partners, Kern COG, and Mono County. This
2024 cycle, Inyo County is requesting Kern COG to repay a large portion of its RTIP funds to Inyo
County, which were fronted by Inyo during the 2016 STIP cycle for Freeman Gulch Phase 1. The
repayment would pay for the Lone Pine Town Streets Rehabilitation Project. Inyo’s 2024 RTIP
was approved by the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission (ICLTC) in November 2023
and was submitted for inclusion in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).
The 2024 RTIP advances towards construction the East Line St. Bridge Project using 2022 COVID
Relief STIP funds. The 2024 RTIP provides a partial match to the Federal Lands Access Program
grant to reconstruct State Line Road near Death Valley Junction.  The statewide STIP
(incorporating regions’ RTIP’s) will be considered for final approval by the California
Transportation Commission in March 2024,

State Line Road Rehabilitation Federal Lands Access Program (FLAP) Grant

This $22 million dollar project was approved by the Federal Highway Administration on
December 14, 2022. The project will rehabilitate and widen State Line Road from Death Valley
Junction to the State Line. State Line Road will be widened to 28 feet with 12-foot-wide travel
lanes and two 2-foot-wide paved shoulders. Signage, striping and safety-related features will be
included. The County, in partnership with the Federal Highway Administration, will complete a
review of this project under the California Environmental Quality Act and the National
Environmental Policy Act. This roadway experiences heavy traffic volumes and is a popular route
to Death Valley. The project will improve access to Death Valley National Park, Ash Meadows
National Wildlife Refuge, and Bureau of Land Management Lands. The project adjoins another
FLAP project on Bell Vista Road in Nevada, which is slated for construction in 2025. State Line
Road construction funding is preliminarily programmed for fiscal year 2028.

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)

This planning document involves the development and selection of transportation projects that are
then eligible to be programmed in specific amounts and program years in the Regional
Transportation Improvement Program. The ICLTC recently updated its RTP in November 2023.

Page | 14



The RTP is intended to be a fiscally constrained planning document for a twenty-year period. The
Inyo RTP is updated every four years. The development of this plan requires local and regional
coordination. Any road construction and transportation infrastructure beyond basic repair and
maintenance within the next four years should be included in this document.

Inyo County Active Transportation Plan

Inyo County, with a consultant, drafted an Active Transportation Program (ATP) Plan and held
public outreach meetings. The 2015 ATP was released for public review and comment and then
approved by the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission in April 2016. The 2015 ATP
Plan includes:

1. Bicycle Element — an update of the 2009 Inyo County Collaborative Bikeways Plan;

2. Pedestrian Element — this describes existing facilities, examines past accident records,
estimates the current number of pedestrians, lists and prioritizes potential projects, and identify
funding sources;

3. Recreation Trails Element — this identifies areas where there are deficiencies in motorized and
non-motorized recreational trails, lists and prioritizes potential projects, estimates the number of
users for a given trail segment, and describes how the projects provide for the viewing of points
of interest; and

4. Safe Routes to School Element — this section creates Safe Routes to Schools maps for all areas
in Inyo County and updates the Safe Routes to School maps for schools inside the City of Bishop.

The Inyo County LTC is in the process of updating its Active Transportation Plan and anticipates
completion in February 2024. An Active Transportation Plan or its equivalent is a requirement to
submit application for ATP grant funds. In 2018 Inyo County submitted applications for several
competitive ATP Cycle 4, 2019 Grants. One of the three submissions was successful. The
California Transportation Commission awarded funding for the “Lone Pine Sidewalk Construction
and ADA Improvement Project.” During the 2022 ATP grant cycle, the City of Bishop applied,
but was not successful. The 2022 ATP grant program was ten times over-subscribed and highly
competitive. Inyo County LTC staff are focusing on the Tecopa area for Cycle 7 project in 2024.

Eastern Sierra ATV Adventure Trails System Project

The County certified an EIR for this project in early 2015, which included potentially up to 38
combined-use routes on County roads for Off-highway vehicles. The Board approved seven of the
routes for a pilot program, three of which opened in the summer of 2015. The County reached an
agreement with the City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (DWP) to open the
remaining four routes in December 2016. The pilot program is designed to test the extension of
combined use routes from the existing law’s three-mile limit to a longer ten-mile limit. An update
hearing before the Board of Supervisors was held in December 2023 and a final report was sent to
the California Legislature as required by the law. The pilot program will expire on January 1, 2025.

Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP)

An LRSP provides a framework for organizing stakeholders to identify, analyze, and prioritize
roadway safety improvements on local and rural roads. The process of developing an LRSP can
be tailored to local protocols, needs, and issues. The Local Transportation Commission (LTC)
prepared a LRSP in 2022 with the assistance of LSC Transportation Consultants, Inc. The

Page| 15



Highway Safety Improvement Plan (HSIP) grants require a LRSP as a pre-condition. The 2022
LRSP identified several areas with higher-than-average crash rates in Inyo County, including
Trona Wildrose in the Slate Range, Old Spanish Trail over Emigrant Pass, and East Line Street.

Highway Safety Improvement Plan (HSIP)

Highway Safety Improvement funds are awarded based on crash experience, crash potential, crash
rate, or other data-supported means. In 2020, Inyo County Public Works received an HSIP grant
to add fog-line and centerline striping at various locations throughout southern Inyo County. This
striping work is complete. Public Works won another HSIP grant in 2021 to replace the Onion
Valley Road guardrail. This work is nearly complete. In 2023, the ICLTC won an HSIP grant to
add flashing beacons, curve warnings, and a high surface friction treatment to Old Spanish Trail
Highway, over Emigrant Pass. This area has a higher than usual crash rate.

Water Meter Replacement Grant

Inyo County Public Works Water Systems accepted a grant from the Eastern California Water
Association. The project will replace existing meters with automatic electronic read meters and
allow County staff to ensure that all service connections are metered. This effort will provide for
the accurate measurement of individual water usage and ultimately a better understanding of the
communities’ gross water demands which will assist with water conservation strategies and
mitigating overage charges from LADWP.

Storm Damage & Run-off Repairs / Whitney Portal Road Repair & Replacement

Hurricane Hilary and historic high snow pack levels in the Sierra led to excessive run-off events
and resulted in significant road damage in 2023. Twenty-four roads were closed while others with
significant damage remained open and passable. The most major damage was to approximately
one mile of lower Whitney Portal Road. The damage was so extensive that the Federal Highways
Central Lands Division has agreed to take over the re-design and re-construction project. The goal
is to re-build and re-open the road by July 2024. The other roads have all been re-opened and are
pending FEMA and CalOES re-imbursement.

Lone Pine ADA Sidewalk Project

This ADA retrofit project, funded by a Caltrans Active Transportation Program grant, will build,
repair or replace sidewalks connecting the downtown Lone Pine business district, Post Office and
Senior Center to the elementary school, churches, low income housing complex and the hospital.
The contract has been awarded and construction should occur in 2024.

Courthouse HVAC

This project is currently out to bid and is proposed to be completed in 2024. The goal is to add
energy efficient heating and cooling to the historic Inyo County Courthouse and remove the
window unit air conditioners.

New Animal Shelter Building

This project is under contract to provide a new 1,600 sq. ft. animal shelter building as an addition
to the existing complex.

Page | 16



Jail Administration Remodel
This project is almost 100% complete. The project’s principle goal was to repair and replace
portions of the jail facility that had been severely damaged by water intrusion.

Inyo-Mono Integrated Regional Water Management Program (IRWMP)

The ICWD participates in this collaborative body made up of public, private, and not-for-profit
entities. MOU signatories include Inyo and Mono counties, the Town of Mammoth Lakes, the City
of Bishop, tribes, water districts, wastewater providers, and community-based non-profits. The
group consists of about 34 voting members. The mission of the Inyo Mono Regional Water
Management Group (RWMGQG) is to “To research, identify, prioritize, and act on regional water
issues, and related social and economic issues, so as to protect and enhance our environment and
economy.” A Phase II Inyo Mono IRWM Plan was completed in 2012, which was revised in 2014
and again in 2019.

To date, the Inyo-Mono IRWM Program has raised more than $7.75 million to support water
infrastructure and ecosystem stewardship projects, provide technical assistance and project
development services to small water systems, and engage disadvantaged communities throughout
the region. Most recently, the Inyo-Mono IRWM Program was awarded $2.762 million through
Proposition 1 for nine projects, five of which are in Inyo County. Public Works will receive
$558,000 to replace water meters in Laws, Independence, and Lone Pine. In addition, Mono
County will receive funding to build a groundwater model for the Tri-Valley, which is a project
delineated in the Owens Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan. The Inyo County Water
Department will act in a project management capacity on this project.

The long-term outlook for the IRWM Program is uncertain at this time. Once the Prop 1 funding
is exhausted, there will be no more IRWM-specific funding available from the State. The RWMG
is investigating other possible funding mechanisms to continue the Program.

Inyo/Los Angeles Long Term Water Agreement

The Inyo/Los Angeles Long Term Water Agreement (Agreement) is settlement to CEQA litigation
between the County and Los Angeles concerning the operation of Los Angeles’s second aqueduct.
The Agreement requires Los Angeles to manage surface water and groundwater so as to avoid any
significant adverse impacts that cannot be acceptably mitigated and to provide a reliable supply of
water for Inyo and Los Angeles. Activities conducted by the County and Los Angeles include
annual planning of water management activities, implementation and monitoring of mitigation
projects, monitoring of habitat and hydrologic conditions, and evaluation of current conditions
relative to the Agreement’s goals.

Specific activities undertaken in 2024 included continued monitoring of vegetation and hydrologic
conditions, monitoring of mitigation projects, and a continuation of the implementation of an
interim plan for management of Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area. Given the very wet
conditions in 2023, staff was challenged in completing the annual monitoring requirements but
also had the opportunity to observe some unprecedented changes to the landscape. A new program
for monitoring springs was undertaken, wherein springs mitigation projects are compared to
“reference” springs unaffected by groundwater pumping. Lastly, the Type-D study of willow and
cottonwood recruitment and establishment in riparian areas of the Owens Valley continued.

Page | 17



Mitigation Projects

The Water Department plays a crucial role in overseeing the progress of LADWP's environmental
and mitigation projects in the Owens Valley. These projects are described in the 1991 EIR
regarding LADWP’s groundwater pumping in the Owens Valley, the 1996 MOU, and subsequent
documents prepared and approved by the Inyo/LADWP Technical Group. If mitigation goals are
not being met, or projects are not being managed as stipulated, or simply not being implemented,
the ICWD works with the LADWP and MOU parties to either help implement or modify the
project. The full list of these projects and their current status, as well as other useful information,
can be found on ICWD’s mitigation webpage. Access the ICWD mitigation webpage here:
www.inyowater.org/mitigation.

In 2022, an interactive online map of all mitigation projects was developed by the ICWD. This
map offers a comprehensive overview of all Owens Valley mitigation projects tied to the Long-
Term Water Agreement, Stipulations and Orders, and subsequent initiatives.

Serving as a complement to the Mitigation Status Table, the map is a valuable resource for both
newcomers and those familiar with the projects. Users can explore the geographic distribution,
view project site photos, and easily find specific projects through filters. Clicking on a project's
centroid point provides detailed information, including origin, impact, status, and available water
delivery details. An Additional Information library offers downloadable files related to the project.
Access to the mitigation maps can be found here:
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/44b652a16c4b443b9b4a2e7dc3 fcbb9 1/

In 2023, LADWP notified the County that several revegetation projects identified in the 1991 EIR
had achieved project goals, and they considered the projects complete. However, the County
disagreed. We pointed out that while plant cover, and species composition goals might have been
met, LADWP had not evaluated plant sustainability, a requirement under the 1999 Revegetation
Plan (available on the ICWD Mitigation webpage).

Additionally, LADWP asserted they had achieved a milestone at their irrigated Type-E Transfer
Revegetation sites, stating that the parcels had attained plant cover and species composition goals,
and that they had ceased irrigation. However, ICWD has expressed concerns about the long-term
sustainability of plants at these sites. We have recommended additional monitoring beyond what
is specified in the original site mitigation plan. Ongoing conversations between ICWD and
LADWP regarding revegetation are in progress.

Other mitigation work includes investigating the feasibility of moving the ponds portion of the
McNally Ponds and Native Pasture Project from the McNally Canal, where the water supply is
both unreliable and/or prone to creating drawdown impacts, to an area just below Farmers Pond,
where a more reliable source of water might be available, and the pond environment more
favorable to waterfowl.

Also, new studies, conducted by ICWD, are underway to investigate the condition of mitigation

projects that have as their goal, providing spring, seep, and riparian habitats. These studies will
allow comparisons between natural spring and riparian ecosystems to those created at the

Page | 18



mitigation sites. This is an on-going research effort that will be reported as data is analyzed, and
reports developed.

Lower Owens River Project (LORP)

The LORP is a compensatory mitigation project under the Long-Term Water Agreement with the
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP). The project was established to offset
impacts that are difficult to quantify or mitigate directly. After 15 years, the LORP is partially
meeting its goals which are, the establishment of a healthy, functioning Lower Owens River
riverine-riparian ecosystem, and the establishment of healthy functioning ecosystems in the other
elements of the LORP, for the benefit of biodiversity and threatened and endangered species, while
providing for the continuation of sustainable uses including recreation, livestock grazing,
agriculture, and other activities. To assess its progress, refer to the 2022 LORP Annual Report.

Access the LORP annual report here:
https://www.inyowater.org/wpcontent/uploads/2023/09/2022-FINAL-LORP-ANNUAL-
REPORT.pdf

The LORP has resulted in the significant greening of river-riparian areas since 2006, but the
prediction that riparian woodland would increase, given the prescribed flow regime, turned out to
be incorrect. The absence of certain bird species, which use riparian trees for habitat and serve as
indicators of project success has been noted.

To address this issue, the Water Department has started a tree recruitment study, now in its fourth
year. The study aims to document past recruitment patterns and inform future adaptive
management actions that might encourage natural recruitment.

In the LORP, bulrush and cattails have filled in wetlands, ponds, and the river, and have greatly
diminished the amount of open water in the project area. This has had the effect of limiting
recreational access, causing encroaching upon ranch pasture, filling in waterfowl ponds, and
occupying land where tree willow might otherwise establish. Conversations between the County,
LADWP, MOU parties, and outside parties, about how to consider and treat water emergent
vegetation are on-going.

In the river, the combination of warm water and high flows, which stir up accumulated organic
material, can cause a decrease in dissolved oxygen. On numerous occasions this situation has led
to fish kills.

The very high flows and flooding in 2023 degraded water quality. As a result, a large die-off of
the warmwater fishery was expected but this was not the case. Although very low dissolved
oxygen levels were recorded, dead fish were only observed in the off-river lakes and ponds. To
mitigate a potential fish die-off, ICWD, in collaboration with CDFW and LADWP, installed
aerators in several locations within the LORP, in an effort to provide refugia for fish.

With the extreme flow and flood events in 2023, there is concern that noxious and invasive weeds

will proliferate in the LORP and become a more significant management issue. Surveys for
noxious weeds conducted in August 2018 after the last extreme runoff event, revealed a significant

Page | 19



increase in populations and geographic spread of the noxious and invasive weed Lepidium
latifolium (perennial pepperweed). It is likely that pepperweed populations will once again expand
in 2024, following a similar to the pattern observed in 2018.

Relatedly, it is likely that Tamarix ramosissima (saltcedar) will rebound in water spreading basins,
in the Blackrock Waterfowl Area, along the river, and in adjacent Off-river Lakes and Ponds. With
years of significant effort, these areas had been practically cleared of saltcedar.

ICWD will continue monitoring for invasive plant species and work in collaboration with the
Inyo/Mono Agricultural Department to control the spread of weeds in the LORP.

ICWD continues to take part in the management of the Delta Habitat Interim Plan, which was a
management response informed by the 2019 LORP evaluation. Under the plan, flows into the Delta
Habitat Area are reduced during the growing season—this to limit the growth of emergent
vegetation and improve habitat for waterfowl. Additional adaptive management in the Delta is
being considered, including employing a controlled burn to reduce cover of dead emergent
vegetation to allow meadow vegetation to take hold.

In another adaptive management action, Inyo and LADWP, with the support of the MOU parties
and approval of the Standing Committee, began an Interim 5-year Blackrock Waterfowl Area
(BWMA) Plan. New water management was implemented in the fall 2021. Under the plan, water
is provided to three of the four basins. Instead of the year-round flooding called for in the original
management plan, the area will receive water adequate to provide 500 acres of flooding from
October to March. The flooded basins will be dried in the growing season to discourage the spread
of cattail and Bulrush, which had diminished open water habitat under former management. The
runoff conditions in 2023 made it impossible to dry down the basins in the summer as planned.
However, avian monitoring continued, and the project will move forward in 2024. Progress on this
plan is reported in the LORP Annual Report and at a public meeting every May.

Owens River Water Trail (ORWT)

Owens River Water Trail would open up about 6 miles of river channel east of Lone Pine for
recreational canoeing, kayaking, and paddle boarding. The County has been awarded two grants
to construct the ORWT: $500,000 from the California Natural Resources Agency in 2016, and
$110,000 from California Division of Boating and Waterways in 2017. These funds will pay for
design, engineering, and permitting for improvements at the launch and take-out facilities.
LADWP funded the development and production of the draft EIR, which was completed in May
2019. The CEQA document will be certified as soon as the terms for a long-term lease with
LADWP are known. The lease will allow the development of water entry and exit points that are
located on LADWP owned lands.

Sustainable Groundwater Management for the Owens Valley (SGMA)

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (SGMA) requires that local Groundwater
Sustainability Agencies (GSA) manage groundwater basins in California. The Owens Valley
Groundwater Basin (Basin) includes Owens, Chalfant, Hammil, and Benton valleys, and
originally, Inyo County, Mono County, City of Bishop, and the Tri Valley Groundwater
Management District were designated as individual GSA’s. In 2018, the four agencies withdrew

Page | 20



as GSA’s to allow the Owens Valley Groundwater Authority (OVGA) to become the exclusive
GSA for the Basin. Seven additional community service districts also elected to become members
of the OVGA. A grant was acquired, and consultant selected to develop the Groundwater
Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the Basin in late 2019. The Basin initially was designated as medium
priority which requires that groundwater must be managed by a local GSA in accordance with an
approved GSP. Work to prepare the GSP by staff and the consultant, Daniel B. Stephens and
Associates, began in earnest in early 2019. The Basin boundary adjustment to remove the Starlite
area (Starlite wells tap a different aquifer than the rest of the Basin) triggered a re-evaluation of
the Basin priority by the Department of Water Resources which released a draft report in April
2019 designating the Basin as low priority. Under SGMA, low priority basins are not required to
be managed by a GSA. Following several months of uncertainty, the OVGA decided that
regardless of the basin status, the agency should proceed with development of the GSP. The
designation of the basin as low priority was finalized in December 2019. Four agencies
subsequently decided in 2020 to withdraw from the OVGA. Additional changes to the OVGA
composition occurred in 2020 when the Owens Valley Committee (a local environmental group)
and the Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe were added as Interested Parties.

Work on the GSP accelerated in 2020, specifically the components to acquire existing hydrologic
data; describe the basin hydrology, water balance, groundwater dependent ecosystems, and
hydrologic conceptual model; prepare draft sustainable management criteria; develop an online
hydrologic database management system and website; and adopt a mission statement and public
engagement plan. Consultant work products for the GSP were presented at regular OVGA
meetings and discussed at several evening workshops in 2020 and 2021. Unfortunately, due to
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic restrictions, the OVGA was prevented from conducting the
public process to engage stakeholders in-person as intended. The OVGA Board meetings and
stakeholder meetings are public and were migrated to a virtual format successfully. In Benton,
Hammil and Chalfant valley, internet access is relatively poor, and the OVGA resorted to a slower
and higher cost direct mailer to reach residents in those communities.

The final GSP, including responses to public comment, was adopted by the OVGA on December
9, 2021. The Basin was divided into three management areas, Tri-Valley/Fish Slough, Owens
Valley, and Owens Lake, based on the differing hydrologic characteristics of each area. Tri-Valley
exhibits chronically declining water levels. Water levels in the Owens Valley and Owens Lake
fluctuate but do not exhibit declining trends. Sustainable management criteria and management
actions in the GSP reflect the desire to avoid negative results in the Owens Lake and Owens Valley
areas. In Tri-Valley, the management actions prescribe a path to address identified data gaps and
to seek funds to develop numerical groundwater models necessary to make informed decisions to
address the declining water levels. Given the low priority status, implementation of all or parts of
the GSP is at the discretion of the OVGA.

In early 2022, Mono County elected to withdraw from the OVGA. Subsequently, The Tri Valley
Groundwater Management District was granted exclusive GSA status for the portion of the basin
within its jurisdiction, and Mono County was granted GSA status for the remainder of the Basin
in Mono County. The OVGA no longer has a member with land or water management
responsibility in Mono County, and the agency is responsible for sustainable groundwater
management only within the Inyo County portion of the Basin excluding lands owned by Los

Page | 21



Angeles Department of Water and Power. The Owens Lake is owned by California and managed
by the State Lands Commission. The Commission has discretion to determine if measures in the
GSP would be applied to operations on the lakebed.

Given the low priority status and relatively stable (fluctuating but not consistently declining) water
levels in the Basin in Inyo County, the OVGA elected to implement two management measures to
maintain and publish a complete database of pumping and water levels in the Basin. First, Inyo
County will share applications for new well drilling permits with the OVGA hydrologic staff for
review and inclusion in the database. Second, The GSP identified a data gap for the amount of
pumping by private pumpers and Community Service Districts. In response to this data gap, the
OVGA adopted a well registration ordinance in 2022 that requires non-de minimis well owners
(meaning those who pump 2 acre-feet or less per year) to register their wells with the OVGA. This
effort was launched in the summer of 2023, and pumpers are required to register their wells by
April 2024. Data collected through this process will be added to the OVGA database.

Two management actions in the GSP that are no longer OVGA projects are being pursued by other
agencies. Mono County has been awarded a grant through the Integrated Regional Water
Management Group to develop a groundwater model for the Tri-Valley/Fish Slough portion of the
Basin. Mono County has asked Inyo County Water Department to manage the project and oversee
the work of the modeling consultant. This project will begin in 2024 and last approximately 12-
18 months. Lastly, the Tri-Valley District is implementing steps to increase groundwater
monitoring to address that data gap.

III.  General Plan Elements

The General Plan details the County’s guiding principles for a variety of planning topics and is the
roadmap for future development. California Government Code Section 65300 et seq. provides
direction and specifications for the content of the General Plan. The following seven elements are
required:

Land Use

Circulation

Conservation

Open Space

Noise

Safety

Housing

The elements may be combined or renamed, but basic requirements must be included. An agency
may adopt any type of optional element, such as an Economic Element, at its discretion. Only the
Housing Element must be certified by another agency (i.e., HCD), although the State Geologist
and CalFire provide some oversight of other aspects.

The Inyo County General Plan consists of the following Elements:

° Government

) Land Use

o Economic Development
o Housing

Page | 22



° Circulation

° Conservation/Open Space

° Public Safety

Subtopics are included in the elements to meet California’s requirements. The following sections
address implementation for each of the County’s General Plan Elements.

Government Element

The Government Element includes the following goals (i) promoting consistency of other
agencies’ actions with General Plan (Goal Gov-1), (ii) encouraging collaborative planning and
public participation (Goal Gov-2), (iii) increasing private land ownership (Goal Gov-3), (iv)
guiding federal land actions and encouraging economic development (Goal Gov-4), (v) protecting
and developing water resources (Goal Gov-5), (vi) preserving and expanding agriculture (Goal
Gov-6), (vii) enhancing opportunities for recreation, including for off-road vehicles, hiking, and
biking (Goal Gov-7), (viii) encouraging improved management of wildlife and fisheries (Goal
Gov-8), (ix) promoting exploration, development, and reclamation of mineral resources (Goal
Gov-9), (x) balancing energy development (Goal Gov-10), and (xi) enhancing transportation and
preserving access (Goal Gov-11).

To achieve these goals, the County has continued dialogue with local, regional, State, and federal
agencies on a variety of projects, as discussed elsewhere in this report, thereby continuing the
previous coordination efforts with other agencies. The County constantly strives to ensure
collaboration between national, California, and regional agencies as required by federal, State, and
local regulations. The County works to make such agencies aware of County programs and policies
and bring their actions into conformance with the General Plan. During 2023, the County worked
state and federal land management agencies on regional planning efforts affecting Inyo County
resources.

The County also involves citizens, Native American tribes, and public interest groups in the
planning process whenever feasible. Staff works to ensure that the public is made aware of all
planning projects through mailings and notices in the newspaper to allow for their participation.
Routine feedback and public input is requested, and the County’s website is maintained to provide
for current up-to-date information regarding planning issues.

Land Use Element

The Land Use Element guides County land use policy and insures that appropriate development
takes place, with adequate provision of public services and utilities. Land use designations are
specified, defined, and mapped in the Land Use Diagrams. The land use designations roughly
correspond to the County’s zoning districts. Public services and utilities are also addressed in the
Land Use Element. Development in and around existing towns is encouraged, which is where most
building permits are issued. Potential impacts from new development are assessed under CEQA.
Additional conditions of approval and mitigation may be required if deemed necessary to provide
for issues such as screening, habitat conservation, parking, and noise-reduction, or otherwise
address issues per the General Plan’s direction.

Economic Development Element
The Economic Development Element works to support long-term efforts to improve economic

Page | 23



conditions for all County residents, and addresses tourism, natural resources, and retail sales.
Towards these ends, the County has continued to promote access to public lands and limit any new
restrictions being planned. Promotions regarding Inyo County in major population centers
elsewhere in the State (including at the State fair) are carried out. Filming opportunities are
exploited, and several dramatic locations were featured in film, television, and other venues in
2023. There are also several new economic development programs. These are outlined in the Other
Plans and Projects section.

Housing Element

The Housing Element works to provide housing for all of the community, and addresses the needs
of specified populations. In 2022, the County completed its 6™ Cycle Updated of the Housing
Element, which was certified by HCD in August 2022. This had to be revised as 2 RHNA sites
identified in the certified Element required zone changes that were not approved. Staff found
replacement parcels and revised the Housing Element, which was then re-approved and re-
certified. Preliminary data indicate that in 2023 twenty-seven new units were applied for, and that
construction began on a significant number of new units. Nine units also obtained certificates of
occupancy. Housing starts were up in 2023 compared to previous years.

The County continues to work with service providers to provide for the needs of lower- income
households, the disabled, and other special needs populations, per the direction provided by the
Housing Element. The County updated several sections of its zoning code based on the Housing
Element update, which incorporates new State zoning requirements regarding housing.

Circulation Element

The Circulation Element addresses a wide variety of topics, including roads, scenic highways,
public transportation, bicycles and trails, railroads, aviation, canals, pipelines, and transmission
cables. These planning programs prioritize improvement to achieve implementation measures for
roadway repaving and reconstruction projects.

As discussed previously, projects are reviewed to minimize impacts, provide for parking, reduce
vehicle trips, and optimize transportation access. Continuing improvement in telecommunications
infrastructure provides opportunities for telecommuting and economic development, and Digital
395 provides an excellent opportunity for telecommunications enhancements locally. The County
continues to work with Caltrans regarding the Olancha-Cartago Four-Lane project and is seeking
ways to implement the strategies identified in the corridor study prepared for the area proposed to
be abandoned.

Viewshed issues along scenic highways are also addressed, as they may apply. The County
continues to encourage the Forest Service and other federal agencies to address local concerns
regarding appropriate motorized transport on federal lands and to otherwise maintain and improve
access to help promote the County’s tourist-based economy.

The County worked with the City of Bishop, Caltrans, and other local stakeholders to implement
the Collaborative Bikeways Plan, which was adopted in 2008. This project implements the
Circulation Element’s bicycle goals, policies, and implementation measures. As discussed above,
the Inyo 2016 ATP built upon and incorporated the policies and goals set forth in the 2008

Page | 24



bikeways plan. Continued coordination with LADWP, the Forest Service, and the BLM ensures
appropriate trail maintenance and access to public lands.

Conservation/Open Space Element

The Conservation and Open Space Element works to provide for resource management, open
space for recreation, and park development. Inyo County’s Open Space Element includes sections
on soils, agriculture, minerals and energy, water, biology, cultural (i.e., archaeology), visual, and
recreation.

The County continues its programs to support agriculture and ranching. Mineral resource
development is encouraged, and the County reviews projects to ensure compliance with SMARA
and other regulations. As discussed above, the Planning Commission continues its work providing
oversight for reclamation plans, and staff inspected about 80 mines in 2023. The County is working
with State and federal agencies to encourage appropriate mineral production.

The Environmental Health Department provides oversight and permitting for potable water and
wastewater treatment systems in order to manage and improve water quality. Individual projects
are reviewed to ensure that they do not adversely impact groundwater quality or quantity. Work
on the LORP and other enhancement projects improve surface water quality through biological
filtering. Water transfers are reviewed to minimize environmental and economic effects. Potential
impacts on biological, cultural, and visual resources are analyzed for projects and programs
through environmental review processes. Architectural Design review in Lone Pine is carried out
to ensure compatibility. The County continues to work to improve its parks and provide access to
federal lands.

Public Safety Element

The Public Safety Element works to reduce hazards regarding air quality, floods, avalanches,
wildfires, geology and seismicity, and noise. The County continues to cooperate with DWP to
reduce dust from Owens Lake, and evaluates air quality issues for major discretionary projects.
Building permits and other development proposals are reviewed for flooding, fire, avalanche, and
faulting hazards. The County adopted a Hazard Mitigation Plan in 2017 and it was approved by
FEMA. In September 2018 the County’s General Plan Public Safety Element was amended to add
by reference the Hazard Mitigation Plan. Incorporating the MHMP into the General Plan is
beneficial to the County as it adds identification of potential hazards, analysis, and mitigation
language to the General Plan; and, it opens up more potential funding opportunities to the County
in the event of a disaster. The Hazard Mitigation Plan and Safety Element are currently in the
process of being updated and staff from several county departments are working on it. Once it is
complete it will be incorporated into the General Plan.

IV.  General Plan and Zoning Code Updates

The County comprehensively updated its General Plan on December 11, 2001. One of the follow-
up actions was to update the County’s Zoning Code per the direction provided in the General Plan.
During the past several years staff has been working to update the Zoning Code based primarily
on state changes to housing law.

Page | 25



V. Conclusion

The General Plan is the County’s constitution and guiding vision. Due to the world’s ever-
changing nature, upkeep and maintenance of the General Plan is a continuous process. The County
implements the General Plan’s vision on a day-to-day basis in its many planning projects, and
strives to include the public in the decision-making process.

The County provided leadership and participated in many planning activities in 2023, as identified

in this report. It continued its project review responsibilities to further the General Plan’s goals,
policies, programs, and implementation measures.

Page | 26



Appendix A
Government Code Section 65400

(@ After the legislative body has adopted all or part of a general plan, the planning agency shall
do both of the following:

(1) Investigate and make recommendations to the legislative body regarding reasonable and
practical means for implementing the general plan or element of the general plan, so that it
will serve as an effective guide for orderly growth and development, preservation and
conservation of open-space land and natural resources, and the efficient expenditure of
public funds relating to the subjects addressed in the general plan.

(@ Provide by April 1 of each year an annual report to the legislative body, the Office of
Planning and Research, and the Department of Housing and Community Development that
includes all of the following:

(A) The status of the plan and progress in its implementation.

(B) The progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs determined pursuant to
Section 65584 and local efforts to remove governmental constraints to the
maintenance, improvement, and development of housing pursuant to paragraph (3)
of subdivision (c¢) of Section 65583.

The housing element portion of the annual report, as required by this paragraph, shall
be prepared through the use of forms and definitions adopted by the Department of
Housing and Community Development pursuant to the rulemaking provisions of the
Administrative Procedure Act (Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 11340) of Part
1 of Division 3 of Title 2). Prior to and after adoption of the forms, the housing
element portion of the annual report shall include a section that describes the actions
taken by the local government towards completion of the programs and status of the
local government’s compliance with the deadlines in its housing element. That report
shall be considered at an annual public meeting before the legislative body where
members of the public shall be allowed to provide oral testimony and written
comments. The report may include the number of units that have been substantially
rehabilitated, converted from non-affordable to affordable by acquisition, and
preserved consistent with the standards set forth in paragraph (2) of subdivision (c)
of Section 65583.1. The report shall document how the units meet the standards set
forth in that subdivision.

(C) The degree to which its approved general plan complies with the guidelines
developed and adopted pursuant to Section 65040.2 and the date of the last revision
to the general plan.

(b) If a court finds, upon a motion to that effect, that a city, county, or city and county failed to

submit, within 60 days of the deadline established in this section, the housing element portion of
the report required pursuant to subparagraph (B) of paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) that

Page | 27



substantially complies with the requirements of this section, the court shall issue an order or
judgment compelling compliance with this section within 60 days. If the city, county, or city and
county fails to comply with the court’s order within 60 days, the plaintiff or petitioner may move
for sanctions, and the court may, upon that motion, grant appropriate sanctions. The court shall
retain jurisdiction to ensure that its order or judgment is carried out. If the court determines that
its order or judgment is not carried out within 60 days, the court may issue further orders as
provided by law to ensure that the purposes and policies of this section are fulfilled. This
subdivision applies to proceedings initiated on or after the first day of October following the
adoption of forms and definitions by the Department of Housing and Community Development
pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (a), but no sooner than six months following that
adoption.

Page | 28



Attachment — Housing Element Implementation Report



-8uiuozaa 1S Aq 01 1lwuad asn |euollipuod

e a1inbau 03 sjun T 49n0 Suisnoy Ajjwej-13nw 104 Juawalinbas sjun
220t/21 pa1sjdwo) cz-1dy 3yl 2A0wWal 01 3po) ay1 03 ajepdn ue 93|dwod |jeys Ayuno) ayl| alepdn apod v'T'T
Vv/N V/IN UOISIARY £20¢ paAowSy €Te
'S9)S 95B3|2J puB| dMJ 2pNjaUl
Hlim AJoluaAui 1yl “AJlunwiwod 21e31sa |Bal 3y} 0) pue s1adojanap
[e1lUSPISal 0} UoIIBWIOUI SIY) Spinoid pue Juswdo|aAap |elluapIsal AJojuanu|
a|qejieae Apuaaand si1si| SIYyl| ezoz-1zoz|404 219euns saus Jo Alojuaaul a1ep-01-dn ue ulejuiew jjeys Aluno) ayL S3US 'T'T
‘SSO| 3y} 40} 1esuadwod
0} S91s |euolppe Ajiauapl 1o Ajideded 2i1enbape 3ullsixa si
943y} aJnsua ||eys Aluno) syl ‘AJoluaAul XIS dYI Ul payiluapi sjadJed $31S
6202 Aq Jn220 |Im BULIOCHUOIN| 6Z0Z-1202]| 241 40 Aue uo pasindd0 sey Juawdo|aAaap 1eyl saledlpul Suliojuow §| a1enbapy 1'T°¢
‘ugisap a8edqam
mau s,Aluno?) ayl ui JJom siyi ‘'swesdoud ueo| pue Aduaiys AB1aus Joj Buipnjoul| a8edgapn Aduaiiyl
3 ew 0} Moy uo 3upjiom S| Jels gz-bny| sa24nosau Buisnoy o) aSedqam pajedipap su plingad ||eys Ajuno) syl ABiduz z'eT
‘swesSoud
pue uonzeanps Aduaidiya AS1aud 03 pajedipap aSedgam s} uiejuiew
lieys Aluno) ay| ‘spjoyasnoy 10} s1s03 AS1aua aieiaa|je 1eyl swesSoid
9ouejsisse A)jIIn pue uoneziayleam se yons swelSoisd Suisoddns Aduspiy]
Suipuny ajeqieae Sulydieasay| 6zoz-1zZ0Z Aq Aduaidiye A81aua a1owoud 03 SO SNJOJ ||Im Aluno) ay) Aduasiauz Tt
usWadlou]
dn sawo0d sanss| se siIsaumoawoy "SpPJO|puUE| pue siaumoawoy Aq sai34adoud |elpuapisal| apo) uoiielljigeyay
Yum xJom ‘ased Aq ased| szoz-1202 pJepuelsqns JoO uollelljiqeyal ayl Jo} 31eI0APE [|eYys Aluno) ayl SuisnoH z'1
‘pazijeuy Suiaq os|e *(ssedA-g 10}
si s1o9foid N@V pue uonelijigeyal 1edA 19d suun-¢ sjienba) 6z0z-TZ07 U23M13GSHUN-GT JO UOIBY|IqeYa. Suipun4
Joj Suipuny Ajuno) weuSoud ay3 Jo [eos e 19s sey Auno) ay| ‘pasea|as si (V4ON) Aujiqejieny uolielljigeyay
v - 8ujpuny ajeq|ieae Suiydieasay| ezoz-1zoz| Bulpun4 Jo 32110\ Se SISeq |ENUUB UB UO SpUNy 3}e3S 3|qe|IBAR |DIeasay SuisnoH T'T'T
uonejuswa|dwy jo snieis| swesswi] 2M12[qo| weuBoud jo awep

uonejusws|dw| Juawsa}3 BuiSnoH
£8559 UOI123S DO 0} Juensind sniels uonejusawajdw] weidold




202 40 pua Ag saus uo Sujsnoy 31el|1oe} 03 3|qeun Jo Suljjimun

saladoud

JO JUDWISAAIP
3y sia8ueuew
pue| Ayd

dMmavi S| dMAY1 J! € SOUS PUB T SIS JOJ SIS 9)1RUIS}|e JOJ UOIIRUILIDIS(| PpUB d)e1S |BJIpa4
yum 3uranddo Ajjuaaund ase syjel pz-ooq| Seloualde ajels / [esapaj J3Y10 pue N8 ‘dMA Yiim sSullssw jenuuy UM BN T'T'E
'sa1junlioddo 8uisnoy
0] UOI1B|3J Ul SBIIAISS pue sqof 03 ssa3de Jiej 01 SulinqlIuod 3q WYSiw
1ey} uonjenodsue.y uj sde8 ssasppe 01 sweaSoud pue saidjjod ‘sanssi SpaaN
1B /00| OS|e ||IM |3A3] |euoi8aJ 3y 18 Spaau BuIsnoy JO Uol1en|eAd uonjenodsuel]
‘padojansp Buiaq si weisdoud sIyl| gzoz-120Z pue mainal su yum Suoje dnoud Supjsom Suisnoy [euoiSal ayl |euoi8ay £°T°¢

‘uoi8a1 ay3 Inoysnouays

8uisnoy arenbape ainsus 031 pue spaau 3soy} ssaippe o} swesdoid pue
sapljod aiedasd pue |and] [euoiSal e je spaau Suisnoy alen|eAa pue
Mm3jAal 01 Aluno) oAu| pue ‘saqua) |eao7 ‘doysig Jo A1) 3yl 01 pajiwi|
10U 1nq Buipnjoul dnoud Bupjom Suisnoy jeuoi8al e a3eald puoAaq pue

dnouo SuisnoH

‘padojanap Suiaq st wesdodd siyl| ezoz-1zoz| Swesgswil Juawall SuISNoH 6Z0Z-TZOTZ Y1 UIylM [jeys Aluno) ayl jeuoi8ay 9'1'¢
'Suo1e|nN8aJ 91els 1us44nd yum Jueidwod 3 Surjew pue

‘UoIIUY3P 3Y3 Ul UOIIDIIIISAL paseq Jaquinu Y3 Suneujwld ,Saijiwe} 21epdn

J0 suosJad palejaiun 310w 10 3AY,, JO UOdLIISIP Sy} dA0WAI| uoIUHAQ SuisnoH

220¢/71 pa1ejdwo) yz-bny 01 3uisnoy asAo|dwa Jo uoniulap apo) si aiepdn [jeys Ajunod ayL aahojldw3igTE

uonejuawsajdwi Jo snieis| swesdwil aAdRlqo| wesSoid jo swepn




7202/t pais|dwo)

£€¢-39d

*d03S }ISueJ] B JO 3|IWw-§|BY-3U0 UlylM paledo] ji paiinbau

3q jouued pue saaAo|dwa 104 papasu sadeds puoAaq siuswalinbal
Suppied aaey jouued siayays Aduadiaw] pue s191u3) uoilesiAeN
Jalueg Mo ‘auoz awes ay3 ul 9dA} sawes ay3 Jo sSuijjomp |eluapisal
J9Y30 Se JouuewW swes ay} uj pajyiwuad aue sswoy dnous pue
Buisnoy aanuoddns ‘Buisnoy jeuoiisuel] Sapnjaul Siy] “mej 91e1s Aq
40} papiaoad sjuawalinbal yslew Aj@1esnade 01 palepdn 1o/pue pappe
98enSue| aAeY |Im (SOYS) Seduapisay Aduednaog a|Suls pue s1333ys
AduaBisw3 yum Suoje asay] ‘suoinulapapod Ajuno) ayj ol pappe
3q ||!m BuisnoH aAnJoddng pue |eUOIISURL| pue ‘S191Ud) uolleSIAeN
J31iieg MOT ‘Me| 21e3S SulISIXd JURAI|RI [[13S PUB MU UO paseq

suoniuysqg v'r'e

720t/ZT pare|dwo)

yz-bny

*'S9WOH Aui] JO UoI}ULSP B 3pNnjdul 01 3pod Buluoz

syl a1epdn |jeys Aluno) ay3 3|qIssadde asow Juawdo|anap awoy

Aun =xew o] ‘sNAVI/NAY Se pamoje os|e aie A3y] "SHUN |e1luapIsal
40 3zIS wnwiuiw 3yl 3e|ndal Jou saop Auno) ayy se S Aq pamojje
ale Aay] apod Aluno) ay} ul pauyap 10u Aj1ua.ind ale sswoH Aull

SOWOH Auj £°T°¢

‘M3IA3
Suipuny Joj @JH Yum Ajpuaiand

s1 )| "Juswdo|aAap Ny pue
s1oaloid uoneyjigeyal 10} pajesasd
8u1aq os|e si weiSoud ueo)
Aluno) y ‘aiepdn jeuly e J0j WAYL
paJedaid oym jueynsuod ayy
yum Ajuauuna aue sueid Suip|ing
ayJ s4saumo Auadoud o1 ani8

01 AJuno) 3y} Joj pasedasd uaaq
aney snQy 38e.es ayl Jano pue
SIZIS |e43A3s Joj sue|d Suipjing

yg-bny

"Juswdo|andp NAVI/NAy 38esnodua 0} anuiuod |jeys Auno?y ayl

snav ete

uonejuawajdwyi 4o snyeis

aweljawl |

ana3lqo

wes301d Jo dweN




ssaJSo.d uj

¥coc/cL
aJnyooug

620¢2-120¢

's1oumo Apadoud o3 Juas pue palajdwod aq |jIm 31nyr0.q

V ‘9|ge|ieAe awo033q spunj se Suisnoy 31eludoidde uo} suondo

Suipuny aJo|dxa ||1m Aluno) 2y} ‘uoilippe U] ‘luawdo|anap [enuapisal
Ausuap Jay8iy a8einodus 0} sisumo Auadoud pue siadojanap

01 yoeau1no 3uidnpuod Aq uonesjuaduod uoilejndod jo seale

ul Juswdo|aA3p |elUSPISAL Adsuap JaySiy aSeunodua |jeys Aluno) ayl

ainydo.g/3uisnoH
Ausuag yYsIH 1°7°€

"I1o4 8y3 S|ji} SuiSnoH saye
yrowwen Ajpuasind ‘padojanap
aq Suiaq s wesSoud syl

6¢0¢-120¢C

‘d|ay Joj AouaBe/uoneziuedio

91eudosdde ay) o1 ajdoad 133 djay pue sjuiejdwod

Buisnoy Jie} 3y el 01 3|ge|ieAe 3q ‘S|9A3| awodu] Jo} saiunuoddo
Buisnoy Ajnuapt djay |jim uosiad siy| Ayuno) ayy 4oy uoiisod
1sije12ads Buisnoy e Buiysijqeisa uo SupJom anuiuod [|Im AJuno) ayL

Isljedads
8uisnoH £°T°€

padojanap
2q 8u19q s1 weiSoud syl

620C"120¢C

*Auno) oAuj uj Suisnoy pajisisse

-19Ao|dwa Jo JuswdojaAap 3y} Ul 1sISSe ued AJuno) ayj moy ssnasip
0} eaJe 9y} ui s19Aojdwa Jofew yum dnois Supyiom e Sujwioy Ag
sweldoud SuisnoH paisissy JaAojdw3 aiojdxa 03 anujluod [jIm AJuno)

8i1SnoH paisissy
JoAojldwi g re

‘padojanap 8ulaq si wessoud siyp

620C-120¢C

'suadojanap 8uisnoy
3|gep.ioye yum saouaadxa pue ‘spiepuels JuawdojaAap 3[gelns uo
suolissnasip ‘s3o9foud |nyssaaans 1sed uo suoissnasIp ‘salllua payienb

40 1sI| B @pn|aul |{Im SIYL "T'T'€ weidoid u) pauljino se ‘siseq |enuue
ue uo uonpIpsiunl Aqieau wouy 98pajmou pue ejep [eJ0O| UleIqO

llim Aluno) ay) ‘sdiyssaunied asayy jo Hed sy "spjoyasnoy awooul
-MOJ 10 ‘MO| AJaA ‘mo| Ajawaulxa 01 9jqepJoye syun Jo Juswdo|anap
ay3 Joj a1erdoidde se spunj ySnoayiy-ssed Jo/pue 3ouejsisse
[ea1uyaa) Suipinoad pue suoneziuesio |edo] yum Suiiauned Ag
sa;unyoddo Suisnoy ajgepioye papuedxa apiao.d |leys Ajuno) ayj

saiunuoddo
8uisnoH
9|qepJoyy S'T°¢

7202Z/TT parsjdwo)

£¢-93d

‘Uun OYS Jad sadeds Supjied g-g ueyl asow ou asodoud |m Aluno)
9yl "€20T 40 pua ayl Aq syusawauinbai Supjied paonpas yum spiepuels
juawdolanap uBisap pue 3uoz (gY) |elIUSPISa] BAOGE pue sjun

-€ Ajlwey-niny sy ul asn pajwiad e se SQYS ppe osje [[im Aluno) ayl

sadA1 Buisnoy sp
Jepueis/suoniuiyaq
v'TE

uonejuawa|dw| jo snieis

weldjawl |

annslqo

welsdoid Jo sawep




ceoe/aa
palajdwod auoz g) 03 saduey)

Gz-bny

*|043u03 s,AJUn0) Y3 JO IPISINO SUOseal

10} 9|ge|leAe 10U dJe (€ pue T S1IS) $3US paumo-dMdaAv 2yl 1eyl
1USA3 2y} Ul [nyasn Alaenainied si yoaiym ‘Suisnoy 1o} salls s1epipued
J0 Jaquinu ay} puedxa 0} AJuUN0) 3yl Mojje ||Im SIY] "duoz gD 3yl

ul 9sn paywiad e se Suisnoy asn paxiw pue Ajiwielllnw mojje osje
[lIm Aluno) ay3 ‘9zis |93J1ed winwiuiw Se YdNns spiepuels Jusawdojanap
Sunepdn T°T'/ wei3oid ul pauljino saiepdn ay3 03 uollppe uj

SuisnoH
Ausuaq 13y8iH
o8einoduz g€

o/l
paisjdwod auoz g 03 saduey)

gz-bny

‘spJepuels Juswdo|aaap ujeuad

193w 0] SaluaWe pue sadeds JOopul dJeys ABW PUe SUOJIBAOUDI

1502 moj auinbau jeyy suejd panosddeasd s|ppiw Suissiw Jo
1u3wWdOojdASpP 9y} JOJ S3IINOSDI INO YIS OS|e ||IMm AJuno) 3y "Suisnoy
Aususp Y31y asow 38einodua 0] panosdwl aq pjnod eyl SPIRPUR]S
Y319y pue 3z|s 30| wnwiuiw ‘s)deqlas ‘Sunyed se yons sjuawalinbal
u8ISap JO MIIAII B SpN|DUl OS|e |[IM Y40M SiY] 'sjeos Suisnoy

umo s11 19aw Aluno) 3y} djay 03 10| e op Ajjelnualod pjnod 212 pue
sxa9|d-p ‘syuswiiede a8e1100 se yons ‘sappiuniioddo Suisnoy ,3|ppiw
8uissiw, 1oy} sjadued asayl 8unnen|eaaay 's8uipjing Aldwsa pue sjadled
[eloJawwiod Jueden aney (G6€ Aemysiy) $19241S UlBW UMO] ||BWS

s, Aluno) ay) 8uoje sealy ‘S3UOZ [BI2I3WWOI 13410 U] Suisnoy Alisuap
Y31y pue asn paxiw 1y3u Aq pariiwaad Joj saiiuniioddo a10|dxa ‘se
[|I9M SB ‘au0z sSauisng |BJIUd) ay3 ul SHuUn Ajlwes-1ynw Jo Suiyiwiad
1y313no 10} Suimolje u] }40M Jueis spueT Juedep ggs st Suunp yuoy
1Yy3nouq seap| 340|dxa 01 INUIUOD ||IM AJUNOD BYL "SBUOZ [BIDIBWIWOD)
24123ds u] Juswdo|aaap [eiluapisal Ausuap ysiy aSesnoduz

SuisnoH
Aysuaq Jay8iH
o8esnoduz gz'¢

¥zoz Suuds a1e| Aq
pais|dwod aq pjnoys ‘ssasoud uj

yz-bny

'S9seaJou] AJjsuap Joj saiuniioddo

Mau Jo sjuedijdde waojul pue 21e1s ayy Aq palinbau se apod Ayjuno)
3yl Jo (59°8T) Ja1deyd snuoq Alsusp ay3 o1 salepdn asedaud |jeys
Aluno) ay] ‘saAiuadul snuoq Alsuap jo uoisinoid Yysnoaysl spjoyssnoy
9wWodul-moj 4o} Buisnoy Jo Juswdojanap a8eunodua |eys Auno) ayl

snuog Alisuag z'z'€

uonejusawsa|duw Jo sniels

awedyawi|

and3lqo

weus3o4d Jo sweN




‘s1apiaoud ad1A1as Buisnoy |e20] Yum
suun |ejuad jo unsi) 98einodua |jeys Ayuno) ayy ‘suosiad Ajap|a pue

guisnoH

weJ3oud 8ul08UQ| 6zZ0Z-LZ0Z| S!IWE) BWOIUI-1I9MO| 10} S3IPISQNS |BIUJ 98eJN0JUD ||eys Ajuno) ayL g U0I1I3S Z'G'§
‘(weidoid soueisissy AS1aug swodul-mol) dvIHIT
941 y3nouy3 Ajjlenuue spjoyasnoy-0§T JO WNWiUIW e 0} dIUBISISSE
Suipinoud Aq s)j1g ANjIan YUMm Spjoyasnoy swodui-mo| 1SISSe 0} 3JUB}SISSY
weJs3oud Bul08uQ| gzoz-Lzoz| S49pinoad ad1Aues Buisnoy |ed0| Jo sSHOYD 3yl Hoddns jim Aluno) syl |edueulq 1°g°¢
"9u0z awes 3y} ul Hun Suljjamp 3|8uls |eUOIIUSAUOD e 0} 3|qedljdde
ssa20.d 5Y) se awes 3y} passal0.d aq 01 3Je UOIIBPUNO) B UO SAWOoY
patnloejnuew /ajiqow eyl SuiAjied a8en8ue ‘uejdwod-uou S| Aeliano
7202/21 pasjdwo) yz-Bny| pue pasn 10u si 11 Se ABJISAO SWOH 3[IGOIAl SU dAOWI [jIm AJUNO) 3y | awoH SIqOIN Z'¥'€
‘paisanbai
se sjueual yum ssunasw Sundnpuod Suipnjdaul ‘syuapisal yJed awoy
9|1qow o3 weidoud ayl asiu3ApE |[IMm AlUno) 3yl ‘siyl ysijdwodoe
0] "Hjaed swoy ajiqow J413y3 aseydind 01 Juem Oym Sluapisal Syled
pawueis 18A 10N| 6z0z-1202 yied swoy ajiqow 01 ddue)sisse |eauyIal apirod [jeys Ajuno) ayl | sawoH sjlqoN T'v'E
'sou0z Ajlwej-ijnw s,Aluno) sy}
ul spaepuess Bupjied Ajjeidadsa pue jySiay ‘azis 10| wWNwWiUIW H2eqlas SE2Je |eluapisal
apnpul |im siy] ‘Buisnoy Ajiwej-f3nw 38eInodua 131129 01 YJom paysi|ge1sa
“uels 0} Suipuny Jue.s 1y31w jeys spaepuels udisap J0) S9PO3 |e1IUAPISAL JUSLIND Sunnenjeas|  ul Aysuaq JaySiy
T dv3Y uo Buiyiem ‘ssauSoud uj gz-Bny| AQ spooyioqySiau |elquapisal paysijqeisa ul Ajisuap Jaysiy aSeinoouy 98eJnodul 7€
uonejuawsajdw) jo snieys| swesawi] anpalqo| weiSoud Jo swepn




welSoud Suio8uQ

620¢-120¢

‘Buissacoud Ajawin ainsua

0} SMaiA3J Juawdojaaap 1onpuod Ajsnoauelnwis Jo 3ypadxa 01

sAem 10} 00| pue saujjawil 8ujssasoud uejd Juswdojansp pue Jwaad
S} M3IA3J Ajjenuue os|e |[Im AJuno) 3yl "Sawoy umo Jiayl Suidojanap
SJ3UMO 10} SjuswWalinbal [eniwgns ul ANjIqIxal4 apiaold pue sywaad
419y} 9}ipadxa 03 sJIaumoawoy Yyum syJom Ajauirnou Aluno) ayj|

sHwJad
aUpdx3 T°Z'S

Tz0e/TtT paieidwo)

gg-bny

"Z9TZ gV 031 uensund

‘BuisnoH anjoddns pue jeuojysues] pue s13}ays Aduadiaw]
‘5191ud) uoilediney Jalueg moT ‘snuog Ausuaq Suipie8al sme)

9)e1S Mmau ssalppe Aadouad o1 apod Bujuoz syl arepdn jjeys Aluno) ayl

suoile|ngay
91B1S MdU YUMm
ouendwo)d 1°1°s

3uipuny ajeqjieae Sujydieasay

109foud

BUOo Jsea)| e
Bureyoidwod
J0 [e06 yum
6¢0¢-120cC

‘'swesdoud

|eJapay pue a3els y3nouyl Supueuly puoq anuanal asesuuow

pue ‘9auejsisse JuawAed UMOp ‘SUMOP-a1IMm d1eJ 1$3J91ul pNn|dul Aew
1ey) sainunuoddo diysisumoawoy apiaoud 03 spunj juels |e1apay

pue 31e1s o) SuiAldde ‘s1eludosdde se “aopisuod ||Im AJuno) syl

sjuein
jesspai T°C'Y

wes3oud Suio8up

620¢-120¢

"Sp|oyasnoy awodu|-1amoj 104 diysiaumoawoy

J0 wuoy e se 3uisnoy djay-}1as a1ejoes 01 AJunod ayj ui sydafoad
Suidojaaap ui 3sa13ui Jd1j0s 01 sdnola8 uisnoy djay-4s paysiqeisa
YUM 31BUIpIO0I 01 S1I0Y3 3}ew 0} dnu1uod |jim Auno) ayl

didH S T'T'V

wes8oud Sui08up

6c0¢-120¢

‘spjoyasnoy
SWOoJUI-19MO| 0] s|qepJoyje 138uo| ou aJe A3y) 3dUO0 S}UN ISOYL
9oe|daa 01 10 109(0.d Ysu-1e Y3 Jo AlljIgEPIOR BY] SNUIIUOD JaYHR

01 spuny |euonippe Ajuapl 03 3q ||Im [e03 3y| "ysM 1e 103foid ay3 jo
Jojesado Jo/pue Jaumo ayl yum wesoud uopeasasald e a1e|oey [|IM
Auno) sy ‘saies 19)Jew 03 8uilIaAU0D JO YSU 1B 3Je sJuapIsal AJuno)
8uiaias Ajjuauund saiun d|qepJoye paldllsal-paap Aue Ji ‘paleddiue
10U y3noyy|y "4201s SuISnOY SWOdUI-3)BISpOW pue Mo| S,AlUN0)

3y Jo AljiqepJoye panunuod ay} Joj apiaoad [jeys Ajuno) ayL

Aupgepioyy
panuiuo) £°6'¢

uonejusws|dwi o snieig

sweJyawi]

an3lqo

weJ3o0.d Jo sweN




pauels 19A 10N

6¢0¢-120¢

"J9MIS pue J91em 0] piedal yum Ajjenadss ‘aunidnaiseljul

01 pJe8aJ y}m 3|qiseay si } aJaym SpIepuels Juswdojaaap

9pN|dul OS|e {|IM SUOI1BIO0] 9SBY] Ul SBISUIP dSBAIDU] 01 S2I8RIRIIS
‘Juswdo|aASp [ei1USPISSI 10) SUOIIEIO] 910WAJ U] BINIINJISELU
Asessadzau ay Buipinoid Joj seniunuoddo Suiydieasas Aq Juswdojanap
[eljUBPISa. 91EPOWWOIIE 0] AINIINJISBIHU] JO UoIsiaold BY) S1el |1y
01 djay o1 sAem 3a10jdxa ||eys Aluno) sy3 ‘seae 330Wal Ul S31IS 404

seaJe 210Wal Ul
24Nn1onJiselju| T'€'S

§20Z-¥20T 104 paweuso.d

Gz-bny

‘spJepueis jysiay pue Supjued

‘sazIS 10| ‘$)2eq1as Sulpiesal spod Suluoz 3y} uj spJepuels udisap ays
01 suoljedyipow pue syoafoud sywaad asn Jo sjeaosdde aAizenISIUIWIPE
se yons ‘s1oafoad Buisnoy 9|gepJoye aSeinodua pue aupadxa

djay 01 s3s5920.d 3AI1RUIIY|E JBPISUOI PUE 1BN|BAD ||BYS AJUND) By

s1o3loud 3|qepioyy
aupidx3 7'2'S

uonejuawa|dwi Jo snieis

awelyawi]

EYGREY e}

wesSoud Jo sweN




Uuollepowoldy
3|qeuoseay - Zz0z/ZT pais|dwo)

yz-bny

"suoile|nSaJ 91e1S Mau moj|o} Ajajeindoe
01 9p0od s11 3jepdn |jIm pue s31M|Iqesip YyUm suostad Joj Suisnoy
UO SJUIRJISUOD SAOWAI IO 31eSiIW 03 SLOY3 aNUIUO0D [|IM AJuno) 3yl

uoljepowoddy
9|qeuoseay 1°¢'9

wetdoad Suio8up

620¢-120e

‘yseailno
wesJoud uj 1s1sse pue sa21A3s uisnoy Jie) apiaoad o1 siapinosd
221A43s duisnoy |ea0| Juoddns 03 anuiuod [Im Aluno) ayy “Suisnoy
0} $S222B Pa321IISAIUN AINSSE 0} uoIlde dAINSOd el [jeys Aluno) ayl

$S3JIAJ3S BuIsnoH
voddns T°1°9

‘v720¢
uj uteSe J1 Joj pamalaal aq [|Im Ing

‘pauozal 10U Aja1eWIIN SEM Z 3US

Ggg-bny

"98ueyd auoz 3|qissod e Joj pamalaal Suiaq ||13s SI Z WS “uld U0 Ul
pa1e20| aJe sjaased 3say] "€z ul Juawdojaaap Suisnoy Ansuap ysiy
28e1n0dud 0] |B1IUSPISAJ Ajlwel-13|NW 01 SUOIIBIIISSE|I) UB|d |RJ2UD)
pue sa8ueyd suoz pey s|92.ed pieA peod 3y} Jo om] "A3||eA SUBMQ
33 ul sa1yuadoud s31 Jo dwos uo Jodiie UB pue SpJeA PRO. |RIIASS

sey os|e Ajuno) ay] ‘Aujiqein Juawdo|aaap Suisnoy 1o} palen|ea’
J3YLIny 9q ‘19A3MOY ‘||im |92.1ed JaYlo Sy} "puejiam e pue sa1dads
sniejs [e1dads yum paujelisuod Aj|RJUSWIUOIIAUD Si duld Sig ul sja2Jed
Alunod om1 sy Jo auQ "jeaosdde 10} QOH 01 1USS pUE Pa1I3|as dJam
SalIs YNHY mau pue pajdope aiam sadueyd suoz pasodoud asayy jo
JoyuaN °|92ied paumo dMq e € 1S Yyum Suoje z 91s- AlojuaAul 3ls
VYNHY Y2 Ul papn[du; sem pue sdueyd suoz e 1o} paminal Suiaq sem
[92.4ed doysig ay] ‘auld 819 pue doysig ui paiedo| aJe s|a2J4ed juedea
€ 9yL '213- syJed ‘sauieiql| ‘spaeA speou ‘sad1jo AJuno) snoLieA 1oy

uo 3jinq Appuauind aJe s|aoJed A3j|eA SUBMQ 3Y3 JO € INq ||V "SIIIAIDS
J0 ainjoniisesjul ou 01 payiwi] yum Aluno) ayj Jo seale 10wl

9JOW 3Y) Ul 3Je 1534 3Y] “As||eA SUSMQ DY) Ul paledo| aJe ZE ‘s|9sed
-99 3y1 JO "Aluno) ay1 ul puej jo sjgaued-9g9 sumo Ajpualand Ajuno) ayl

Auadougd
AMuno) '€’

uollejuswsjdwyi Jo snieis

awesyawi]

EYVIREISTo)

weidoud 0 saweN




pauels 12A 10N

£¢-3°d

"€20T J0 pud ay3 Aq

spjoyasnoy jo A}aiieA e 1o} sjuawaduedle Sulieys-}sod ajey|de) djay
ued jeys sjuswoaaide ajejdwal 1dope / udisop 01 }00| pue sa1831e41s
Suisnoy paJeys alenjeaa |1m dnoi8 ay] ‘spjoyasnoy Jojuas 1o}
s1oafoud uonelljiqeyal pue sadedpow Suipnjoul ‘s3s02 8uisnoy punj 01
Aem juepoduwi ue ag ued ‘sNAVYT ‘SNAV YUMm sawoy yun 3j3uls uilsixa
8uiAjisuaiu| ‘aoe|d ug Suie Juoddns ey} spiepuels Juswdo|aAsp
8ujuBisap pue spjoyasnoy |euoriesauasiyinw poddns o1 sai8a1eJls
ssnasip ||1m dnou8 ay] ‘syluow x|is AJ9A3 139W pue S}oei| SnsUa)
9S9Y) WOJ} SIdqUIdW Mau 1981e3 [jIm dnoa Japjoyayels Suisnoy ay
*Jap|0 pue sieaA-gg Jap|oyashoy e yiim spjoyasnoy jo sadejuadiad
1s9y81y ay1 yum Auno) ay} ui seale 3yl apnjoul asay} Se g pue g
s1oel] snsua) uo pade|d aq ||Im SNJ0} Y "SIDIAISS Jeau pa3edo| Suisnoy
o|qepJoye apiroad 03 syueud so) SuiAjdde pue SuiAjiauapl spnppul |Im
3iom sty Suisnoy Joluas Ajjeaidads pue AJunod ay} ug sanssi Suisnoy
auljep Jayuny o1 djepdn juaw|a duisnoy ay3 Sulnp paysi|qeisa
dnoud Japjoyayels uisnoy ay3 yiim Suijaom anuiauod |[im Ajunod ayj

8uisnoH
Joluss 1°¢°L

20T 40 pua ay3 Aq pajdwod
2q p|nhoys ¢ gs ‘ssaJ8oad u|

£¢-39d

‘€202 40 pud 3y} Aq asued1dwod g9S J0) dueuUIpIO

dojanap se ||am se Juawdo|anap Aysuap Jaysiy a1eyl|ioe) 01 s)oeqias
pJeA JeaJ / pieA Ju0uj 3SIAS] pue ‘SUJadU0D 3INIINJISRIU| 0} aNp
[e1luapISay |edny 1dadXa ‘SaU0Z |BIIUIPISAI ||@ JO) SBIUSUBP WNWIXew
pue 3zis |9dJed WNWiUIW ‘9IS 10| WNWIUIW ‘YIPIM 10| Winwiuiw
3AOW3Y "UOIIEI1HI1II JO JBIA BUO UIYIIM 3iNYd0.g [_UOIIOWOId NAY

HA44VT'TL

uoiejuswejdwi jo snieis

aweiawr|

ana3lqo

weidoid Jo aweN




ssal8oud uj

gz-bny

"JUSWdO|IASP [BIIUSPISII PAMO]|E ||e 0}

uonippe ul pajuwaad aq |Im SNV 259y} ‘pansund §| "3|qe|ieAe Ajipeal
9J0W SjUBINEISAI puk $31132048 Bupjew Ag Ssa32e poO} Ylim Sanssi
Sunesiniw pue sassauisng |jews 10} saiunuoddo Suiseasdul ‘sasn pue)
4O SWJd) ul ANjIqix3)} 30w 0 apInoid OS|e pue p3|aAei] SIJIN I[I1YaA
23npaJ 01 d|ay |jIm SIy] *dU0Z [BIJUIPISDI DUO ISEI| JB UIYIIM SN
[EBUOILIPUOD B SB SNDY MOJ|E [|iM PUB UOIIBIIJISD JO SIe3A 331y} ulym
SNJV Hwad 01 SSUOZ YdIYM uo UoISIIap B 3ew |[Im Ajuno) ayl
"|e13USPISI BUIISIXS O} UOIHPPE U] S3UOZ [RIJUIPISAI Ul SASN |RIDJAWLLOD
1y31 Buimoje o 1adsoud a3y} pue (sNIv) SHUN [BIJWWO) AI0SSaIDY
21en|eAs |[Im Aluno) ay1 ‘weidoud 10(1d aseysied ayl o3 uoippe uj

€L

'SZ0T Alaes Aq
pa19|dwod aq pjnhoys ‘ssaJfoud uj

9z-bny

*dIysIaumMOo 3)21YydA 0} SaAlleu.d}|e apiaoud

01 suonipstnf Buioqysiau pue siaAojdws |euoiSas yum Bunaaw
|enuue ue y3noJy) 91e40qe||0d pue 7 T°Z wedSoid ul paquIsap
weugo.d 21eysied ay3 SSNISIP [[IM USWI|I 321ISN[ [BIUSWUOIIAUT
3YL "paisi| saA1123[qo |je sapn|oul 1eyl uondope Jo sieah Jnoj ulyum
JUSWF 321ISN[ [EIUSWUOIIAUT UB d)B3JD ||IM AJUNO)) Y] ‘UonIppe

u| ‘Auanoe jeaisAyd pue sswoy Asejiues pue ajes ‘ssadoe pooj Ayljeay
01 91e|3J 1BY] UBld |BJaUSD S JO SUO1199s dlelidoidde uj sadijod ppe
[l1m AJuno) ay) ‘(Y)ZOES9 SPOD JUSWUIIA0Y YD) 0} JUBNSIN "SBNSS]
2213snl |eIUBWUOJIAUB SsaJppe ey} sajdljod sey Ajpualand Ajuno) ayl

€L

uoneuawajdwyi Jo snieis

sweliawl|

CYRE](oTe}

weJsgoid Jo awey




Attachment — General Plan 101



Juawilipdeag Buiuupb|d Ajuno) oAu

nz<._n_ TVAdANIO
< S| LVHM




NVINTMOS8 331

"uUoIsSN||I UD SUIPWaJ
ABa1pa3s D INOYJIM UOISIA




up|d |pJBuss 0] diysuono|ay sunjd duloads

up|d 21J108ds D JO SJUSU0D

pauljeq - up|d ouioads
uonplusuwa|dul] unid |plauss
upid [pIBUSS 8Y]) JO 8sn
Adu81sI1SuU0)D

upld [PJauUs9 D JO SJUBUIS|T
DUIUOISIA UD|d |DJBUBS
pauljaq - up|d |ploauss

A3d3IN00 SLNIOd NIVIN

SJIdO1 10 AJVINNNS




"UOISIA SAIUNWILIOD BY] 9ASIYDD

1041 swiniboid uonojuswsduwil pup saloljod
'S|0ob a8yl saulap ‘S ||om SO ‘Bul} pPaljioads
O UIYIIM AJIunuduloD ay) J0) UOISIA O SUIDIUOD
1 ‘81NN Sl JO MaIA SuonaIpsUNl syl Juasaldai
0] up|d |pI1susb P 1dopo 0] JUSWUIBA0D

IDDO| Y208 salinbal M| DIUIOIDD "SBIIUN0D
PUD S3I1I0 DIUIOYIDD JO JUBWSOUDYUD

PUD ‘UONDAISSUOD Juauddojanap |poIsAyd

oyl buipinb juawinoop Buuup|d puo Aolod

abupi-Buo) jpdiound sy s1 uoid |IsuUBD v

o B = ¥
« 3¢ Qk = .q E = g
Sen raba 5 b = .

NVid
1VAdINIO
JHL




'SjUBUUB|S AlOJDPUDUL UBSASS

PUD 1UBUIS10IS UOISIA D 8pNn|oul O]

sup|d |piausb || salinbal Mmo| 8101 PuUD
‘AJUNOD 81 871181001y 10Y] Senssi| JO
A181LIDA 8pIM D sassalppL up|d [pisusb
oyl "AlunoD ayj Jo selppPUNOg ay)
uIyam Aioiiial ayl s1enoo unid [piasushb
a9yl "‘aAIsusayaidulod Ajjpoidoy puo
Ajjoolydoiboab yroqg si upid jpisusab sy|

¢NVid TVd3IN3IO
dH1 OLNI S309 LVHM




'sjuaWIL|e up|d [pisusb ay)

J0 swipliboid pup saloljod ey adoys 01
PasN aID PUD SJUBPISaI S 0] JuUPOdWI
a1 10Y1 sanssi Buluupid ayy ysinbunsip
SD [|oM SD AJluNWIUIOD 83 JO spasu
AJnUapI PUD SBN|DA |PBASI1 UDD BUIUOISIA
‘up|d |plauab ay) Jo uonpiodaid

ay1 ul aypdionund 01 agnd aus 10y
Alunyioddo up spinoid pjnoys sseooid
BuluoIsiA 8y sjuswisie up|d |pisusb
a1 JO Yyonas 10} padojersp suiniboid
pup saloljod ayj 10} uolPPUNO)

ay1 sAp| ‘up|d ay1 Ag peolojulsl

10 PBABIYID 8q 01 SO11S1I810040YD

PUD SBN|OA ‘SUORIPUOD 81niNnJ

081IS9P JO JUBWIBINIS D IO ‘UOISIA 8yl

NOISIA NV1d TV33IN3O FHL



JUBWIBIS SN PUB| 8U1 YIIM 81081102
aQ 1SNW puo up|d 8in1oNJISpIUl
UD SO SSAISS ]| 'SaII|I00} PUD
saninn agnd 20| pPuUDB ‘S|P ‘suondo
usuoa ognd ‘senijiony 8|1oAaiq
'SUONDBUU0D uplisapad ‘sejnol
uonouodsupl] ‘sainjybnolioy) Jolow
pasodoid pup Buiisixa Jo ubisap puo
"UONDDO| ‘UOIIDDIHIUSPI 8Y] S8pn|ou|

‘PUB| JO S8sN a10Ald
puoL ogNd JO JUBIXS PUD ‘UOIIDI0} ‘UOINGLISIP
|01ousb ay) 101dap 0] pasn o sa110B81D
asn pup] ‘Alsusp uonpindod pup Aususiul
Buip|ing Bulpn|ouUl ‘SPIDPUDIS PUD DIISIID
1uswdoeAsp saysiigrlsa pupb sulia) olydoib
PUD 8AIIDLIDU Y1Og Ul salppunog suonolpsun|
O UIYIIM SaJo 1o} swinlboid pup ‘saioijod
'SaAI108[q0 s8qIOSaP JUBWUS|S ©SN PUB| 8y 1

1VdINIO V 4O SININITH




‘AJ8)J0s pup Yoy
algnd 1oj pup ‘Uuoipaldal
100OpPINO 10} ‘S82IN0SAI
Jo uononpoud ay) Bulbououl
1o} 's82IN0Sal |DINIOU U0}
aonds uado buiniesald 1oy
sainspawl pup supid Ajoads
1Snud 1§ "82pds uado Jo
uonpAiesald wiisl-buo| sy
10} upid o spincid 0] spudy|
10VdS NidO

'SULIOJpUD]
0INI0U PUD J810M ‘SPD
IeIMPU pun ABlsus Buipn|oul
$821N0Sal JO 8SN puUD
uauldojaAsp ‘UONPAIBSUOD
'UoODYIIUSP! BY) SBSSBIPPY

NOILVAdISNOD

‘(3ybie si Ayunoo

oAur) sipaA aAy Jo bie
AJBAS ‘WNWIIUILL D 10 ‘PasiAal
ag JuaWwald siyl 1Y) salinbal

MD| 8101S 'SP8auU asoy)
198U 0] MOy S810J1SUoWap

pun sdnoib swoosul ||o
10} spasau buisnoy sazApuy

ONISNOH




quswidojaAag 21LUou0o]
PUD JUSUIUIBA09 JO S1udUIL|]
DJIXS 8yl spY AlJunoD
oAu| ‘sjuauusle AloiNIpls
aU) SP 10848 pub 9210
3UUDS 8] 8ADY SJUBLIB|S
[ouondo ‘swn 1eno yimoub
S| 01 8102l 1DY] SJUBUIBIS
layo 1dopn Apwi Ajunoo 1o
A1o b ‘Mmp} 81038 AQ palinbal
SJUBWISIS 8y} 01 UoRIPPDL U

SLININW3I14
1VNOILdO

‘wieyy
wiol) Alunwiwod ayj 10910.d
0} sa0ijod says||gnise
PUD ‘S8]N0J UOIIONODAS
‘SpJpZDY 8JIP|IM PUD ‘PO0Y
'0100]08b ‘olwis|es salnuap|

"S|OA9|
asiou [pusiod aypbiiwl 1o

210gD 0] SaINSPaW apN|oul
1SNUU pUB AJUNUILIOD 8yl

Al1d4dVS Ul sUolIpuod asiou payosloid
sazA|pup pup saljnuepl

iSION



AONILSISNOD




's100dUll @S0Y] SSaIPPL 01 UonLBIIW 8|qIspa) 8pIAcid 1snw
JUBUWIS|® UONDINDIID 3Y] ‘Dl1joJ] pup uonpjndod ul 8spaIoul
up Ul 3nsal 01 A|y1| 810 sal121jod Jusuus|e ash pupj JI ‘©ouisul
104 "18Y10UD U0 YIIM 1US1SISUOD g 1SNUJ SJUSWISIS ||V
1€
‘Jayroup 1ano Ajiond
sayo1 Ajjobs| 1uswis|e oN ‘sn1o1s |PB8| [pNbs aApY ‘syuswis|e
|ouondo paidopn Buipn|oul ‘Ubjd [DI8USS 8] JO SIUSWISIS ||V

2l

:SUOISUSWIP 8Al) SDY ADUS)SISUOD |pUsy|
US1SISUOD Ajjpulalul 8g 1SNUU UD|d [PI8uas
D ‘SI IDY] "UD|d |DIBUSS D JO sJUBUOdUIOD
oY1 Usamiaq 191)Juod saloljod onpuiwpIBoIP
10 [DNIX8] OU 10U salinbal Mp| 81015

AIONILSISNOD TVNYILNI




'SJUBWUBIS UD|d |pJBuss ay) Jo swplibouid

PUD Sa101|0d UsLIM 841 108]J8] 1SNUU SP8ID
82IN0sal [pINIOU pup 800ds uado ‘suuslsAs
UOoDINJJID ‘SUOIINQLISIP @SN PUD]| JO supIBBIP
a1 ‘SPJOM 1810 U] JUS1SISU0D 8 I1snul

Up|d |DI8U89 8yl UIylM SUUIDIBDIP pUb %81 8y

9

'Un|d [0I8UB9 ||DISAO 8U1 YlIM 1US1SISUOD 8 1Snul bain Adljod |piosds o
ul payiuepl suwpliboid uonoiuswsldwl pup ‘saloljod ‘seAnos(qo ‘sipob ||v

%

JUS1SISUOD Aj|DUJalul 30U S| JUBWBIS 8y ‘Buisnoy 8|qoPRIOHD

J0 8PPLIoYS D S8QIIOSSP UOIDSS JBYIOUD PUD PUDLUSP 81NN 198U |[IM
sallddns Buisnoy jus.ind 1Y) s81021PUI JUBWISIS BUISNOY 83 JO UONDaS
BUO JI ‘'©dU]sUl 104 Jayloup 8uo YiIM 1U81SISU0D 8q 1shud suupiboid
uonolusuus|dudl pup ‘sapoljod ‘saAinoslqo ‘sjpob ‘DI SIUsUISIS YoD]

€



'up|d |PJauss ayl ul paljiuapl saloljod pup sjoob ayl ylim
JUS1SISUOD 31D 8|S 10 uonIsINboL pup| 2llgnd 1o s1os(oid syiom
ollgnd S YoNs S1104J8 10U 10 JaY1aym auludial1sp 03 chEﬁco_mU
18410 AQ pamainal aq 0S| PINOYS UD|d [RJauss ay] paroiddo
Qg 10UUP2 Ady] ‘JUB1SISUODUI 8Q O] PauluLI81Bp alb Asyl J| "up|d
IDIBUSS 81 JO SUOISIACID BY1 YIIM 1U1SISUOD 80 1SNWU YIIYym
‘sup|d 21198ds PUD ‘@OUDUIPIO UOISIAIPGNS ‘8oUbUIPRIO Buluoz

0 SP yons sjoo1 Buluup|d 1ayio |pilenss sazijinn AjunoD ayl

S103irodid
ANV SINdANNDOO0Ad ALNNOD
dIHLO HLIM ADN3ILSISNOD




SNOILNLILSNI ANV 'SdNOY9 'I1d03Id IHL 1V X001 V

q

YRR R

!

¢NVid
TVAdINIO FHL
SiSNn OHM




‘Bunsbpng jpjusuundsp
pup ‘Builuwpibold soinies
‘Sjuswianosdudl PIdDD
‘suonpalddo Juswdolansp
BPullepISuod uaym
up|d |pJeusb sy) aousisjal
OS|P |IM siuswiIpdap
0 puUD }o1s AJunoD

'$sp1 aziolud pup ‘sjusuuanoidull
|0udoo upid ‘s3ebpNng s10N|PAS PUD B1PIBUSHD
‘sannoalqo wiiel-Buo| suluuIs1ep ‘SuUoIsIoap
WI8)-110ys pupn uiial-Buo| yrog axoul
03 Yyoiym uodn sispg o sp up|d jpisushb ayy
10 s8121j0d pup s|pob 8yl 8sn UOISSILUILLIOD
Puluupid pup siosinledns Jo pipog 8yl




‘up|d [pIoush
a1 ybnouyr Ajlunwiuiod sy Buibuoyus
pup Buiniesaid 10} 8ouppinb Neses
0S| U2 AJluNWWwo Juswdojensp
9l PUD ‘SIBUMO sSauIsng anioadsold
pup Bunsixe ‘syjuspisal JONPIAIRU

"aln1n} 8y 01 {pINB 8A1108||00
s AlunoD eyl AjnJy s1 upid
|0IBUSD BY] 'SBJIAISS PUD SPasuU
alniny Bunosfoid usym up|d
|0JauUSb ay) 03 18jal [|IM S81ouUsbo
|ouoibal pup |020] JBYIO




ACERRVEILEREIA]
DA AL AR ELED,
dH1 S| MOH




'SAYVANVLS INIWdO1IAIA ANV ISN ANV
HLOE ONIQYVOIY NOILDIYIA SIAIAOId ONINOZ
(.43IMOd 3D170d, S.NOILDIASIANT V SV NMONX

SI SIHL) 34V41IM 1VIINIO ANV STVIOW ‘ALIAVS
'HLIV3IH DO178Nd IHL 130ddNS ANV ILOWOYd Ol
SNOILVIN93I¥ ANV SMV1 3ID304N3 ANV 1dOAV Ol
ALISOHLNY TYNOILNLILSNOD IHL IAVH ‘SIILNNOD
MV 1V38INIO (‘068598 300D "LAOD) MV
VD01 40 LHOIIM IHL SII¥AVD ANV IONVYNIAYO

A8 d31d0AdV Sl ONINOZ 'ALd3dd0dd dIFHL H1IM Od
NVO SI4INMOANVT LVHM S1D141S3d 40O S3914DS3dd
LVHL SNOILVINS3Y 40 135S V SI '3A0D S.ALNNOD

V 40 L3dVd A1TVNSN IONVNIAYO ONINOZ V

¢JONVNIAQJO
ONINOZ V SI LVHM




J011SIP 8UO0z B Ul 8sN b s1qIyold yoiym ‘peniwiad

Jou, 1o ‘(uolssiuuIoD Buluupbid 10 Buupay o salinbal) ‘peniuied
Allouonipuod, ‘(palinbai Bulosy ou :Ajuoyino joroiddo

soy aaubisap 1o 10j08.IQ mc_cco_av |IoAOIAdD BAINDIISIUILIPD

10} SMOJ|I0 $8SI00 1SOUU Ul YIIym 101ISIP 8uU0z o Ul paniudiad,
18y AjooidAy 1o sasn "018 |pLIIsNPUl ‘Bsn paxiw ‘©onds uado
I0I2J8WIWIOD ‘oluspIsal Ajlpiinw joiuspIsal Ajlwin-a|buls
apN|oul sesn Jo se|dulpx3 ing g Ao 10Y1 Juswudojaasp jo adAl
9U1 s1011881 11 10Y) SI 8dupUIpIo Buluoz o Jo Jusuodulod Jofow vy

1SN



'sasn Jua2p(po Yum Juswudojeasp

Mau Jo Alljignodulod ay) ainsus 01 paubisep
210 pUDL ‘Pooyioqybiau Sil JO IX8IU0D By

Ul wulogiad |im Buipjing o moy a1ojnbal os|o
spippup]s Juswdolereq (*4v4, 10,010y
0aly 100J4, b UuMmouy 8simiayio) Buiand pup
'salnionuls Jaylo ‘sbuip|ing Ag palenod aq
Aowl 1043 811s D Jo abpjusoled ay) UO SHUUI|
SOWIIBWIOS pub ‘siiwll| 1ybiay ‘syonqies
sayioads (8sn o3 esn wol) Aipa Aow

UoIym) spupopunis ubisep eyl 'splopunis
ubisaq sp 03 palisiel AluowuloD a1p 8say |
4 ISNW BuIp|ing AUD YoIym Uiyim s}opgies
Buiping Ajnuapl seoubuIp.Io Buluoz

SAJVANVLS ININdOTIANIA




‘up|d
|pJBuUSb 8yl Ul 8sn pup| Buipuodsallod ey Jo) padojeasp saioljod
pUD S|POB 8y JO JUBIUI BY] 188W |0 ABy) ‘sielawiniod piopuw]s
JuswIdolanap pup asn Jualayip saljloads UoDDIISSPIO BUOZ Yoo
ybnoyl usAs pup ‘suoipIyIsSP|o auoz ajdiinu Ag papoddns

g Abw uonpubisep up|d |plBuBb BUQD "SESN |PIDIBUIUIOD

UM 1US1SISUODUI SI 1041 8sn Jaylo Aup 1o ‘@opds usdo

10 |0IIUSPISa 10U ‘S8SN |DIDIBUILIOD [ID18] 10) PUD| Y] Buluoz

AQ uoIsIA siyl oddns 1SN 82UDUIPIO BUIUOZ By ‘[DIDIBUILIOD
1018y so AomybiH b 01 1uBoB[pL pup| ay) seyubissp upid |Pioush
O JI :9|dwipxs 104 (3u83sIsuod &g 1snw supjd omy sy ‘upid [plousb
8y} Jo sajolj0d pup sjpob sy sjusuus|dudl 8dubuIpIO Buluoz

9yl 8snpoaq) up|d |oisusb sAlunwiUIoD 8yl Aqg Paysi|goIsaisesn

NVid 1V4INIO IHL Ol dIHSNOILV13IY




